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China XLX Culture
H RN E AL

We adhere to the culture of integrity and the corporate spirit of "working
hard to fulfil the needs of our customers" and we are committed to creating
the greatest value for the society with the least resources.

BPEBFHEX M TBCREEM WmERATRI MR -
HARAZRLPNERSEERIERANEE -

Focus on ourselves over the others
Prioritize subjective over objectivity
Value the end result over the process
HECDTHERA
BIBTERE
AMRTEBIR

Dedicated to hard work
Satisfy the needs of others
BoREEM
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Integrity
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Company Profile
ARAER

The Company’s Strategic Positioning and Tactics

N F) B S E (v B SR B

“1" Corporate Vision

[1] EEXER

“1"” Core Mission

[1] &R OMER

2" Adherences

[2] ER%F




“6"” Development Principles

[6] fEI3% R R A

Principle of strategic positioning direction:
never deviate from the main course and
committed to establish the position as
“Industry No.1"

RS FERLR A - e AR TN mBEEHIE -
REZRE [17X%— ] e -

Principle of pursuing excellence: be open-
minded and inclusive, learn from the most
advanced enterprises in the world and within
the industry, and improve various working
standards.

BREMRA : ARER  MERETTE
MNINRFEEBERE - A RARIIER
ﬁ o

Principle of customer orientation: promote a
main value chain that applies an “integrated”
high efficiency operation model, which is
concentrated in satisfying the demands of
the market and customers.

EEEARR  BAARETSRESE
LAROMERER (] FaE

Principle of pragmatic and highly efficient
management: upgrade management
with the purpose of increasing the
competitiveness and profitability of the
Company.

BESHXERRA - REFARARBHRED
BMENRER  FARER -

Principle of key capabilities enhancement:
strength technological research and
development, marketing, differentiation
capabilities.

B NRITRA e R &
B ER(CEN -

Principle of preventing and controlling
development risks: abide by laws and
disciplines, never take shortcuts, control
development and investment risks.

prEERERRERRA  EEATRE  TED
B EEEREERR
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Company Profile
DAAER

Located in the economic and technological industrial cluster of Xinxiang, Henan Province, it endeavours to build a
recycling, economic and chemical industry park with multiple ends, green environmental protection, high efficiency
and energy conservation

SRR ERMERERE - ENITE-BZRE  KERRFE - SUHENEREBECTIER
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Located in the Jishan Chemical Industrial Park, Jiujiang, Jiangxi Province, it endeavours to build a smart and modern coal
chemical production base with leading techniques in environmental protection and excellent profitability

fIATAE N THILTXER, & HITERRESL - BN —ROERICRRBME TAERE N




Company Profile
DAAER

Located in the Taxihe Industrial Park, Baojiadian Town, Manas County, Xinjiang Province, it endeavours to build a
green production base with high resource conversion, industrial chain synergy and unique product features
RFER AT ZEREEERN TERRER - ENTESEREL  EX#EDR  ExFeRENges
EEH
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China XLX was incorporated with limited liability on 17 July 2006 in
Singapore under the Companies Act, with the Group’s registered office at
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898. China XLX has been listed on
the Main Board of the SEHK since 8 December 2009 with stock code "1866"

The Group's headquarters and principal place of business is located in
Xinxiang Economic Development Zone, Henan Province, Taxihe Industrial
Park, Baojiadian Town, Manas County, Changji Prefecture, Xinjiang
Province, and Jishan Industrial Zone, Jiujiang City, Jiangxi Province in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"). The Group is principally engaged in
developing, manufacturing, and selling related differentiated products such
as urea, compound fertiliser, methanol, dimethyl ether, melamine, DMF,
hydrogen peroxide, furfuryl alcohol, furfural, 2-methylfuran, pharmaceutical
intermediates and gas.

The Group (also known as "XLX Group”) has always been adhering to the
technology-leading development strategy and owns scientific research
platforms such as the “National Enterprise Technology Centre’, “Postdoctoral
Research Station” and “Henan Provincial Fertiliser Production System
Energy Saving and Engineering Technology Research Centre” while actively
responding to the national development strategies of “cut fertilisers and
increase efficiency” and “soil testing and formula fertilization”. The Group
took the lead in proposing the brand positioning of “Chinese high-
efficiency fertiliser advocator” among the industry, and jointly developed
and promoted high-efficiency fertiliser products with the Chinese Academy
of Sciences and other scientific research divisions, so as to achieve
differentiation and refine the layout for fertiliser products.

PEOENERZZEZERFLA+TLEH
@ﬁ%M&”T&EﬁMﬁ&%ﬁiz
BRAR - A E R E R AR 80
Robmson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898 °
¢EMLM\_§Tﬂ¢+ AN\ B
RFrERERE BT AR (18661 ©
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Company Profile
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l Chinese high-efficiency fertilizer advocator

DELPESREEEE

- Nitrogen fertilizer efficient

utilization innovation center and
National Enterprise Technology
Centre

- RBE TS A A BT O A B R

RRBMTH L

- Awarded “Standard Enterprise

for Synthetic Ammonia
Efficiency Leaders” by the China
Petroleum and Chemical Industry
Federation for eleven consecutive
years

- EET-FRESTEAEAL

BTXBAERE
[EREREREAR
ERAT R

Q

)

- Water manure integration

engineering technology research
center

- JKRE— B E AR E A 0
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- Post-doctoral Research Station

- BLRB TIE

Jo

- New/High Tech Enterprise in the
PRC (enjoying preferential income
tax rate of 15%)

- PEISHEMER(ZX15%8
BEMEHRE)

- First producer mastering the
controlled release urea production
patented technology in the PRC

- PEE-REEEXRRELE
BRI EE R

O

- State-level green factory

- BIRAZETIR

- First state-level nitrogen fertiliser
research center and national
efficient agriculture service center
in the PRC

- HEBRRKAEHER LR
B = RUR FE AR TS L

- All our production facilities adopt
new coal gasification technology

- AERESBERAFEERL
i
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

WONG Wing Wang
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Corporate Information
NAEEHR

HEADQUARTERS

Xinxiang Economic Development Zone
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STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Code: 1866

CORPORATE WEBSITE
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Financial Highlights

B HE
RESULTS PERFORMANCE RERR
2021 Change (%)
(RMB million) (AR BES&T) RO FE 2 tb 241 (%)
Restated
Revenue WA 16,977 23,072 36
Cost of sales SHE AR (12,873) (18,723) 45
Gross profit E75 4,104 4,349 6
Profit before tax M Fi BT &R 2,178 2,180 0.1
Income tax expense Fr{SEFSZ (407) (372) ©)
Net profit A 1,771 1,808 2
Owners of the parent S e bE 1,295 1,326 2
Basic and diluted earnings per share AR EEAR K #E 2 7| 11057 109.67 08)
(RMB cents) (AR®ES)
Dividend per share (RMB cents) BRIRE(ARESD) 19 25 32
|
REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY SEGMENT DEERBA

FY2022
—EC_HREE
@® Urea @ Compound Fertiliser
PRZ BEHE
@® AdBlue @® Melamine
BRRERAR =RER

FY2021
T -UBEE

DME and Methanol
Z B B2 BREE

@ \Medical Intermediate @ Other

B A Hit

@ Furfuryl Alcohol

RELCED —T - —FFR

13



14

Major Events in 2022
“ERIFEARER

1 H JANUARY

Henan Xinlianxin Blue Environmental Protection
Technology Company was awarded as “New/High Tech
Enterprise”

MELECEBRREBHRIARATE - &K [ S d s ]
SRETHR

3 H MARCH

The grand opening of the ground-
breaking ceremony by Gansu XLX for the
construction project of special fertiliser
for new crops
HRLELFEEEAREEZKREAERL
RGN EERT

China XLX 2022 Annual Report

2 A FEBRUARY

XLX Group successfully obtained the title of “Leading
Entrepreneur Enterprise of Henan Province”
DELEBRINES [TEE AR X | 5%

22 innovations of Xinjiang XLX received
commendations from the Trade Union of the
Xinjiang Autonomous Region
FTIRLE L 22TRAIET IR - REBRRRAET S5
W




4 H APRIL

The successful commissioning of Jiangxi XLX Compound Fertiliser Tower
Project further enhanced the influence of XLX in the southern market and
injected new momentum for the improvement of profitability.
TALEVESIESEIER —RFEEKRY  £—FRS T LENER
FMSNZEN - REFENRIDEATERE

5ﬂ MAY

Jindadi Shenleng - a subsidiary of Henan XLX
Shenleng Energy (being a strategic gas segment of
XLX Group), has successfully signed an investment
cooperation agreement with the government of
Wuyang County regarding the “Comprehensive
Utilisation of Coal Chemical Tail Gas Project”
SELEEEBEIEREBREDTEOELRLERERFRR AR - BEGEBRKINZELD [ Rk
IRR&AATMAIAR | RESEHZE

51

Xinjiang XLX Manas Tianxin Coal Mine entered into a joint trial production, which is expected to fully meet the
demand for coal usage of the XLX Xinjiang Base, further strengthening the cost advantages and optimizing the
strategic planning of the Group

BOELBMNITRIRE AR S REE - REGHRS MR OELEEMARER - E—SZEK

REZVBCEEBBEGD
XLX Group's R&D centre in Zhengzhou was successfully inaugurated. The R&D centre engaged in cooperations with research institutes and universities to

establish a collaboration research of production, learning, study, and enhance technological innovation capabilities

AE O E B BN FFE T OIERIIBRE - RO BRI - SREETAEEE BYRFHE - B - HEERE - BBl

In 2022, XLX Group received the honorary title of “Energy Carbon Demonstration Enterprise”in Henan Province
AVEL RIS 2022 FNFE [REARE IR EE | RETER

6)% JUNE

Henan XLX jointly established the “Xinxiang High Efficiency Fertiliser Industry Research Institute” with a
number of university institutes, which aims to carry out research and achieve industrialization in multiple
areas as high-efficiency smart fertilisers

AELE LA Z Fa R b AR [ e MR EXEM R | - B EEZS RS 2R
ZERRERATAER(

45

The rare gas refining project of Henan XLX Shenleng Energy was
successfully put into operation, which will promote rare gases to
customers at a faster and better rate and deploy into high end markets,
which holds great significance in improving the overall operating
efficiency

AELELIRS LR E REBEIEE RRE - HERE ity
BHRERRENES  HREHT%S  HRRABRLEEEA
EEEES

62

RELOED —T - —FER
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Major Events in 2022
—ECCHEEARER

7)3 JULY

The Department of Industry and Information Technology of Henan Province and the Department of Industry
and Information Technology of Jiangxi Province received letters of gratitude from the General Office of
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology respectively. XLX Group paid attention to political
developments while taking the macro environment into consideration and made every endeavour to stabilize
and increase production, which has made outstanding contributions to the supply of fertilisers for the spring
ploughing season

A TEMERE T4 IENEREED BIWER 8 BRI EME S ABRESHIE
SELEEEBR - BAR - THAMBERE  REMUEHEELREER

8 H AUGUST

The 2022 Nitrogen Fertiliser Work Conference cum the Seventh Council was grandly held,
which XLX Group won four grand industry awards including “Top 20 National Nitrogen Fertiliser
Enterprises for Synthetic Ammonia Output of the Year 2021, “Top 20 National Nitrogen Fertiliser
Enterprises for Urea of the Year 2021", “Top 20 National Nitrogen Fertiliser Enterprises for Gross
Profit of the Year 2021" and “National Advanced Energy-Saving Enterprises in the Synthetic
Ammonia Industry of the Year 2021"

R FRAETEIEESHEEFSESEM - MBELEEBERTEREN [2021F
ZRRAELEAKRAESR 2058 [[2021 FERAIELERRESR 2038 [ 2021 F2EARLE
A B 2058 2021 FRESKAITEERE L E LR | MIAALR

The container expansion construction of XLX Group's special railway line was officially
commenced, marking a key progress for XLX Group to achieve the logistics model of “road, rail,
sea"for the combined transportation in a single container
DEOEBEREREERBIEEIAR FARE - BEE0ELM (A - # - 8 BE—
BEIENYRENEL TR —2

Jiangxi XLX's 100,000 tons DMF project
was successfully put into operation,
which is a major event for Jiangxi XLX
to establish the development position
of “Fertiliser as foundation, fertiliser and
chemical side by side”

ST A E A 108 BEDMFIE B F 8
KT - RIIALELEE [LAER
2 BB | BREUNEZRF
#

9 B SEPTEMBER

XLX Group was recognised as the “Synthetic Ammonia Efficiency Leader” for eleven

consecutive years
SELEERE [SRRENERE ] +—EE

16 China XLX 2022 Annual Report



1 Oﬁ OCTOBER

Jiangxi XLX was appraised as “A-class
Enterprise for Environmental Protection
Performance”of Jiujiang City
TALEOEFTIH [BRRERAR
|

1 1 H NOVEMBER

The successful commissioning of Gansu XLX Tower
Granulation Compound Fertiliser Project has laid
a solid foundation for further expansion into the
northwestern market and accelerated the Group's
nationwide expansion.

HBEOBEL —HSBESEEEXKNRE - B
E—SHRELTISEE T REER - ARd
IR T AEEHNZ B -

1 2 H DECEMBER

China XLX was recognised as a listed company with the “Best
Small to Medium Market Value”
B OEDSRE [REFR/NME] ETAR




Chairman’s Statement
FERE

LIU Xingxu 2| &g
Chairman of the Board

EFETE

Dear Shareholders,

| would like to express my gratitude for your support to, and confidence in XLX.

In the past year, in the face of the complex international and domestic economic
situations, significant market fluctuations and recurring pandemic, we insisted on
pulling our weight and firmly facilitated the planning of, the transformation and
upgrading of, and the chain extension of multiple production bases, laying a solid
foundation for the next rapid and steady development.

18 China XLX 2022 Annual Report



Serve with Heart and Operate Steadily

In 2022, the chemical fertilizer market showed an upward trend before falling. In accordance with the development strategy
of “fertilizer as the foundation, fertilizer and chemical side by side’, we strengthened our capacity, expanded our scale and
improved our management. Jiangxi Compound Fertilizer Tower, Henan Compound Fertilizer Multi-Purpose Tower, Shenleng
Rare Gas, Jiangxi DMF Phase I, Gansu Jinchang Compound Fertilizer and other projects were completed and commenced
operation. We adjusted our internal organizational structure, optimized the process system, and clarified the responsibilities and
authorities. Besides, we improved operational efficiency, focused resources on the market, and initially established an efficient
operational system to adapt to the group-oriented development.

In 2022, with the focus on the optimization of the three major bases in Henan, Xinjiang and Jiangxi, we continued to improve
the quality and competitiveness of our operations based on the safe and long-term operation of the bases. China XLX
continued to rank No. 1 in the industry with a comprehensive energy consumption of 1,182.6 kilograms of standard coal per
ton of ammonia, and has been honored as the energy efficiency “leader” in the industry for 11 consecutive years. The urea
production ranked first in the industry, while the synthetic ammonia production ranked fourth in the industry. The two major
bases in Xinjiang and Jiangxi were honored as the "A-class Enterprise for Performance Enterprise”in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region and Jiujiang, respectively, for their comprehensive strength of environmental protection and efficiency. Subsequent to
the Henan and Xinjiang bases, the Jiangxi base was also awarded the “Green Factory”in Jiangxi Province. The three major bases
were all included in the “Green Factory”list, further boosting the Company's green development.

Serve with Heart and Follow Our Hearts

Our development strategy is “fertilizer as the foundation, fertilizer and chemical side by side’, meaning taking fertilizer as the
foundation and developing fertilizer and chemical simultaneously. The fertilizer segment expanded its scale, improved its
quality, increased its volume and enhanced its ranking to establish an absolute leading position, leading the development of
the industry. The development of chemical products adhered to specialization and high-end, entered the market with low
cost and high quality, quickly established absolute advantages, and seized development space. By organically combining the
“stableness” of fertilizers with the “liveness” of chemical, the Group has established an industrial system with a solid foundation,
thus able to respond to the market flexibly. With the dual drive of the fertilizer and chemical industry, we will maintain a strong
and lasting development momentum.

The “fertilizer as the foundation” approach is determined by the characteristics of our business. Fertilizer is the "food" of food,
with characteristics such as rigid demand, high demand and long life cycle. China XLX has been deeply involved in the fertilizer
field for more than 50 years with a deep understanding of the industry. With a high sense of social responsibility, we have taken
the lead in positioning ourselves as the “high-efficiency fertilizer advocator”. We vigorously researched and promoted high-
efficiency fertilizer products with high utilization rate and enhanced quality, making outstanding contributions to fertilizer
supply and national food safety.

RELCED — T —FFR
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

“Fertilizer and chemical side by side” is the result of our initiative to adapt to the market and seek changes. As fertilizer is a
seasonal product, the profitability of fertilizer enterprises varies greatly with market fluctuations. In order to solve this problem,
we utilized our own characteristics and advantages, focusing on low-cost syngas, and using our advantages in hydrogen,
nitrogen, ammonia and other basic chemical raw materials to diversify into the downstream of the coal chemical industry and
related development. At present, a series of products such as methanol, dimethyl ether, melamine, furfural, furfuryl alcohol,
DMF, CO2, and rare gases have been created. In the next step, we will devise a flexible production mode that can flexibly adjust
the product structure in accordance with the strategy of strengthening, extending and supplementing the chain, forming a
vertical and horizontal product chain and product network. By flexibly adjusting the product structure according to the market
demand, not only can we make full use of the resources, but also maintain the best profit level and create the greatest social
value.

Serve with Heart, Hope and Positivity

China XLX always insists on creating the greatest value for society with the least amount of resources, and adheres to the basic
principles of advanced technology, moderate scale and outstanding advantages in scale expansion. We have progressively
introduced new processes and technologies for the manufacturing of traditional products, such as the fixed bed modified
coal slurry, syngas centrifugal compressor, CO, stripping process, etc. Although the investment was large, new processes and
technologies were stable, safe, environmentally friendly, clean and efficient. We prudently expanded the traditional products
without complicating the technology, prudently expanded new products with high profitability, and resolutely refrained
from blindly investing in high-profit products in unfamiliar fields. By the end of the 14th Five-Year Plan, we strive to produce
10 million tons of “urea + compound fertilizer” and achieve a leading position in the industry. At the same time, we will also
develop chemical products with low-cost syngas as the main raw material to balance the periodicity of fertilizers and chemicals,
adhering to the principle of "there is more than one way to skin a cat".

Serve with Heart and Nurture The Good

Once again, I would like to thank all investors for your attention and support to China XLX. What we have chosen is a traditional
yet vibrant, simple yet dynamic industry. It is our bounden duty to increase agricultural production and farmers’ incomes.
Contributing to green development and sustainable development is our unswerving pursuit. Let us join hands and work
together towards a better tomorrow!

LIU Xingxu
Chairman of the Board

China XLX 2022 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN WD

()

BUSINESS REVIEW

Affected by the continuous impact of geopolitics, environmental
protection policies and the resurgence of pandemic during 2022,
the prices of food have been rising across the globe, which resulted
in the prices of fertilisers and coal chemical-related products being
driven up.

With the successively commissioning of the renovation and
upgrading projects of the Group’s second and third plants in
Xinxiang Base and the reconstruction and extension projects of
the Tinanxin Coal Mine in Xinjiang Base, high-quality production
capacity has been further released, transformation and upgrading
of industrial chain has accelerated, thus promoting the diversified
development of coal chemical-related products. In the financial year
ended 31 December 2022 (“FY2022"), the Group has continued
to grow its production capacity, geographical reach and products
offerings, hence achieved new of record of revenue and profitability.

REVENUE

Revenue increased by approximately RMB6,095 million or
approximately 36% from RMB16,977 million in the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021") to RMB23,072 million in
FY2022, mainly due to the fact that sales volume increased in urea
and compound fertiliser products, propelling higher turnover.

UREA

Finished urea products

Revenue derived from the sales of urea increased by approximately
RMB1,817 million or approximately 36% from approximately
RMB5,013 million for FY2021 to approximately RMB6,830 million
for FY2022. This was mainly due to the increase in sales volume
and the average selling price of urea products of the Group by
approximately 18% and 15% year on year (“YoY"), respectively. The
successful commissioning of the green manufacturing project at the
Xinxiang Base of the Group and the release of high-quality flexible
production capacity resulted in an increase in urea sales volume to
approximately 2,713,000 tons.
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Urea solution for vehicle

Revenue derived from the sales of urea solution for vehicle
decreased by approximately RMB13 million or approximately 2%
from approximately RMB556 million for FY2021 to approximately
RMB543 million for FY2022. This was mainly due to a decrease in
sales volume by 6% YoY to 373,000 tons for FY2022. By enhancing
marketing transformation and upgrading, the Group further
optimized the product structure through flexible adjustments
to products. Coupled with market profitability, urea gradually
transformed into products with strong profitability.

COMPOUND FERTILISER

Revenue derived from the sales of compound fertilisers increased
by approximately RMB2,362 million or approximately 63% from
approximately RMB3,754 million for FY2021 to approximately
RMB6,116 million for FY2022, mainly due to the increase in average
selling price and sales volume of the Group by approximately 28%
and 27% YoY, respectively. The increase in sales volume was mainly
due to continued release of quality compound fertiliser production
capacity, accelerated expansion of marketing network and increased
channel coverage, while the increase in average selling price was
largely due to an increase in percentage of high-efficiency fertilisers
sold.

METHANOL

Revenue derived from the sales of methanol increased by
approximately RMB508 million or approximately 29% from
approximately RMB1,775 million for FY2021 to approximately
RMB2,283 million for FY2022. The increased sales of methanol were
a result of the increase in average selling price and sales volume of
the Group by 6% and 21% YoY, respectively. The Group continues to
increase flexible production adjustments, minimizes self-produced
methanol and offsets the losses caused by self-produced methanol
through the development of methanol trade.
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DIMETHYL ETHER (DME)

Revenue derived from the sales of DME decreased by approximately
RMB193 million or approximately 13% from approximately RMB1,438
million for FY2021 to approximately RMB1,245 million for FY2022,
mainly due to the decrease in sales volume by approximately
20% YoY. The decline in sales was due mainly to the resurgence
of the pandemic, leading to weakening demand, hence lowering
the Group's sales volume in DME YoY. This was partly offset by an
increase in average selling price by approximately 8%.

MELAMINE

Revenue derived from the sales of melamine decreased by
approximately RMB239 million or approximately 20% from
approximately RMB1,206 million for FY2021 to approximately
RMB967 million for FY2022. This was mainly due to the decrease
in sales volume and the average selling price of the Group by
approximately 10% and 11% YoY, respectively. On one hand, affected
by the war between Russia and Ukraine, exports to Russia were
restricted, resulting in a decrease in export volume. On the other
hand, in order to ensure production safety and steady operations,
the Group has carried out scheduled shutdown for maintenance in
the third quarter, decreasing overall production volume.

FURFURYL ALCOHOL

Revenue derived from the sales of furfuryl alcohol products
decreased by approximately RMB224 million or 27% from
approximately RMB835 million for FY2021 to approximately RMB611
million for FY2022. Due to the continuous impact of the pandemic,
the operating rate of downstream industries has declined with the
weak demand and insufficient raw material support, leading to a
decrease in the average selling price and sales volume of furfuryl
alcohol of the Group by approximately 22% and 6% YoY respectively.
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MEDICAL INTERMEDIATE

Revenue derived from the sales of medical intermediate decreased
by approximately RMB68 million or approximately 13% from
approximately RMB508 million for FY2021 to approximately
RMB440 million for FY2022. This was due mainly to the decrease of
average price and sales volume of medical intermediate of Group
by approximately 12% and 2% YoY respectively, as a result of the
decline of downstream industries affected by pandemic, weakened
domestic and foreign demands.

PROFITABILITY
UREA

Gross profit margin of urea of the Group decreased by approximately
3.3 percentage points to approximately 28% for FY2022 from
approximately 31.3% for FY2021. The decrease was due mainly to a
higher increase in the cost of goods sold of 21% of urea, the impact
of higher cost was partially offset by the 15% increase in the average
selling price. The increase in the cost of goods sold was largely due
to epidemic and environmental protection policies, coal market
demand and supply mismatches, causing continuous high price of
raw coal.

UREA SOLUTION FOR VEHICLE

Gross profit margin of sales of urea solution for vehicle decreased
by approximately 4.9 percentage points from approximately 27.1%
for FY2021 to 22.2% for FY2022. The decrease was due mainly to an
11% increase in the cost of goods sold as a result of the increase in
price of urea which is a new material.

COMPOUND FERTILISER

Gross profit margin of compound fertilisers of the Group marginally
increased by approximately 0.1 percentage point to approximately
12.8% for FY2022 from approximately 12.7% for FY2021.
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METHANOL

Gross profit margin of methanol of the Group decreased by
approximately 11.8 percentage points to approximately negative
0.4% for FY2022 from approximately 11.4% for FY2021. Affected
by the rise of international energy prices, methanol cost of goods
sold increased approximately 20% YoY. In this regard, in order to
maximise marginal benefits, the Group has compressed the output
of self-produced methanol to the greatest extent, and minimised its
adverse effects.

DIMETHYL ETHER (DME)

Gross profit margin of DME of the Group decreased by
approximately 10.4 percentage points to approximately 1.5% for
FY2022 from approximately 11.9% for FY2021. Impacted by low
demand and high cost of raw material, DME cost of goods sold
increased by approximately 21% YoY.

MELAMINE

Gross profit margin of melamine of the Group decreased by
approximately 11.7 percentage points to approximately 49.2%
for FY2022 from approximately 60.9% for FY2021. Russia-Ukraine
conflict sparked energy shortages, energy prices soared and
demand slumped, resulting an approximately 16% YoY increase in
the cost of goods sold for melamine.

FURFURYL ALCOHOL

Gross profit margin of furfuryl alcohol products of the Group
decreased by approximately 16.7 percentage point from
approximately 13.9% for FY2021 to negative 2.8% for FY2022. This
was due mainly to weak demand from the downstream industries
affected by the epidemic. As a result, the average selling price of
furfuryl alcohol fell by 22% YoY.

MEDICAL INTERMEDIATE

Gross profit margin of medical intermediate of the Group decreased
by approximately 7.7 percentage point from approximately 20.8%
for FY2021 to approximately 13.1% for FY2022 mainly due to an
approximately 12% decrease in the average selling price of medical
intermediate.
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains increased by approximately RMB18 million
from approximately RMB169 million in FY2021 to approximately
RMB187 million in FY2022. The increase was mainly due to (1) an
increase in bank interest income of RMB15 million in FY2022; (2) an
increase in subsidy income of RMB9 million in FY2022; and (3) an
increase in exchange gain by RMB5 million in FY2022. Such increase
was partially offset by a decrease in net profit from sales of by-
product, water, electricity and steam amounting RMB15 million .

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
RMB53 million from RMB476 million in FY2021 to RMB529 million
in FY2022. The increase was mainly due to: (1) an increase of
approximately RMB48 million staff expenses from recruiting sales
staff and implementing staff incentive policies to support the
Group's production capacity and business volume increase and (2)
an increase of approximately RMB5 million in storage rental fees as a
result of continued expansion of warehouse and storage network in
order to building a nationwide sales network.
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GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses increased by approximately
RMB137 million from approximately RMB935 million in FY2021
to approximately RMB1,072 million in FY2022. The increase
was mainly due to: (1) the impact on salaries of approximately
RMB108 million due to factors such as ramping up the training
and incentives of core technical talents, and at the same time,
the introduction of a talent tank in order to promote the layout of
new bases and the construction of large projects; (2) an increase
in expenses such as various taxes, labor union funds and disability
insurance of approximately RMB24 million as the Group’s large-
scale development project continued to grow; and (3) an increase
of approximately RMB5 million in professional service fees for
ditigalisation and upgrading of the information and business
intelligence system of the Group.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by approximately RMB79 million from
approximately RMB583 million in FY2021 to approximately RMB662
million in FY2022 due to the increase in amount of interest-bearing
borrowings and loans.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense decreased by approximately RMB35 million
from approximately RMB407 million in FY2021 to approximately
RMB372 million in FY2022.

PROFIT FORTHE YEAR

The profit for the year increased by RMB37 million or approximately
2% from approximately RMB1,771 million in FY2021 to
approximately RMB1,808 million in FY2022.
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GEARING

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the aggregate of total capital and net debt.

(1)

B F R 5 12

BEERE

AR A B k(B S
IR IA MR A A R R A 3
ERAR -

2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Restated
Trade payables 2 5 ENFIR 645,698 774423
Bills payable ANE S 496,618 850,474
Contract liabilities BRAE 1,514,349 1,079,227
Accruals and other payables e B A R E e 58 2,525,832 2,365,180
Other liabilities Hih & & 111,856 117,867
Due to related companies JE{S B A RFIA 71,632 81,166
Loans from non-controlling interests FEERRIERE K 48,800 47,800
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5188877 R E &K 12,335,527 11,368,775
Bonds payable [ERHER 299,481 494,704
Lease liabilities HEaE 23,251 23258
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BERReEEY (1,469,765) (893,116)
Pledged time deposits BT AT (595,496) (753,545)
Net debt BEFH 16,007,783 15,556,213
Equity attributable to owners of the parent ~ &HA AlEA A fE(h gz 6,886,203 5,694,856
Less: Statutory reserve fund B OATEREE (665,869) (511,091)
Adjusted capital KERARER 6,220,334 5,183,765
Capital and net debt BEARKAEFE 22,228,117 20,739,978
Gearing ratio BEAEBHE 72.02% 75.01%
|

Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
bonds payable, trade and bills payables, contract liabilities, amounts
due to related companies, accruals and other payables, other
liabilities, and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged time deposits. Capital includes equity attributable to the
owners of the parent less the above-mentioned restricted statutory

reserve fund.
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LOANS &N
Group
rEH
2022 2021
—E—— T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Analysed into: PaRiv]
Bank loans repayable: AEBERITER
Within one year or on demand —F AR EK 4,966,043 5,834,004
In the second year F_F 3,634,656 2,080,704
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZERF(E) 2,680,099 2,241,039
Beyond five years AFE - 170,000
11,280,798 10,325,747
Loans from leasing company/ ERNEENRER BE
finance lease payables: HE :
Within one year or on demand —FAFIREK 590,042 568,209
In the second year B4 362,120 332,883
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ZERF(E) 102,567 141,936
1,054,729 1,043,028
12,335,527 11,368,775
I
PROSPECTS m MREE

In 2022, affected by the recurring pandemic and geopolitical
tensions, rising food prices and energy shortages encouraged high
and volatile price of fertilisers. Meanwhile, due to the rising concern
of food safety issue, the demand for high efficiency fertilisers were
favorable, driving up the performance of leading enterprises in the
industry.

In 2023, while international energy prices rebound, the supply and
demand of fertiliser will continue to be in tight balance. At the
same time, the 2023 central document clearly stated that China
shall endeavor to ensure the stable production and supply of grain
across the country. Therefore, this will continue to increase demand
for chemical fertilizers. Fertilizer prices are expected to remain
stable, but prices may fluctuate and are subject to seasonal factors.
In terms of chemical products, with the further optimization of
epidemic control and favorable policies to promote the recovery
of downstream demands, it will stabilize and help the recovery of
chemical products prices.
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Facing a new round of transformation and upgrading of the coal
chemical industry, the Group has always adhered to the principle
of "taking fertilizer as the foundation and developing fertilizer
simultaneously”. On one hand, consolidate the main business
of fertilizers, focus on strengthening differentiated urea and
compound fertilisers, and continue to strengthen R&D and promote
high efficiency fertilizers. On the other hand, strengthening “One
Head and Multiple Tails” flexible production to improve efficiency,
taking full advantage of low syngas production cost competitive
advantage, extending downstream chemical products, increasing
efficient use of energy resources, and strengthens the competitive
advantage of products chain, thereby promotes the transformation
and upgrading of the industrial chain.

As for the project construction, a million-ton ecological fertiliser
project for Liaoning Huludao base of the Group is under
construction in an orderly manner according to plans. In addition,
the green urea project with an annual capacity of 700,000 tons at
Xinxiang base is expected to be completed and put into operation
this year. By then, the advantages of the Group’s principal business
will be further enhanced with sustainable development capability,
supporting the high-quality continuous development of the Group.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB25 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the
“Proposed Final Dividend") (2021: RMB19 cents per share), subject
to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Company will further announce
details of the Proposed Final Dividend, the annual general meeting
and the period of closure of the Company’s register of members for
determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final Dividend in due
course.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

1.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL RISKS

M

(1n

MARKET RISK

The major market risks of the Group include changes
in the average selling prices of key products, changes
in the costs of raw materials (mainly coal) and
fluctuations in interest and exchange rates.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The Group is also exposed to commodity price risk
arising from fluctuations in product sale prices and
costs of raw materials.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The major market interest rate risk that the Group
is exposed to includes the Group's long-term debt
obligations which are subject to floating interest
rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's revenue and costs are primarily
denominated in RMB. Some costs may be
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars or Singapore dollars.
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INFLATION AND CURRENCY RISK

According to the data released by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, the consumer price
index of the PRC increased by approximately 2% in
the year ended 31 December 2022 as compared
with an increase of approximately 0.9% in 2021. Such
inflation in the PRC did not have a significant effect
on the Group's operating results.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group monitors its risk exposure to shortage
of funds. The Group regularly reviews the maturity
of both its financial investments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables and other financial
assets) and projects cash flows from operations. The
Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank overdrafts and bank loans. As at 31
December 2022, approximately RMB5,556 million (31
December 2021: approximately RMB6,402 million), or
approximately 45.04% (31 December 2021: 56.31%)
of the Group's debts will mature in less than one
year based on the carrying value of the borrowings
reflected in the financial statements.
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(vi)

GEARING RISK

The Group monitors its capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders
value. The Group manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may raise new debt or
issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
The gearing ratio of the Group (calculated as net
debt divided by the aggregate of total capital and
net debt) decreased from approximately 75.01% as at
31 December 2021 to approximately 72.02% as at 31
December 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2021: Nil).

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

As at 31 December 2022, the Group was not involved in any
material litigation or arbitration (2021: Nil).
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SCOPE OF WORK OF ERNST & YOUNG

The figures in respect of preliminary announcement of
Group results for the year ended 31 December 2022 have
been agreed by the Group's auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, to
the amount set out in the Group'’s consolidated financial
statements for the year. The work performed by Ernst &
Young LLP in this respect did not constitute an assurance
engagement in accordance with International standards on
Auditing, International Standards on Review Engagements
or International Standards on Assurance Engagements
issued by International Accounting Standards Board and
consequently no assurance has been expressed by Ernst &
Young LLP on the preliminary announcement.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) has reviewed the accounting principles and
standards adopted by the Group, and has discussed and
reviewed the internal control and reporting matters. The
results for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company devotes to best practice on corporate
governance, and has complied with all the code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK
(the "Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December
2022.
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10.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUER

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and its
amendments from time to time as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. The Board confirms that, having made specific
enquiries with all directors of the Company, all directors have
complied with the required standards of the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the securities of the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, there were 9,313 (2021: 8,698)
employees in the Group. Staff remuneration packages are
determined in consideration of market conditions and the
performance of the individuals concerned, and are subject
to review from time to time. The Group also provides other
staff benefits including medical and life insurance, and
grants discretionary incentive bonuses to eligible staff based
on their performance and contributions to the Group.

DISCLOSURE ON THE WEBSITES OF THE SEHK AND
THE COMPANY

This report is published on the website of the SEHK (http://
www.hkexnews.hk) and on the website of the Company
(http://www.chinaxlx.com.hk).
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Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretaries
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Board members, from left:

FEREE RESLE TRREE BIFNE S
MR. LI SHENGXIAO  MR.ZHANG QINGJIN  MR.ONG KIAN GUAN MR. LIU XINGXU
ERCEE FHESRE BREL+

MR. ONG WEI JIN MR. LI HONGXING MS. YAN YUNHUA




BOARD
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LIU XINGXU CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Aged 68, is principally in charge of overall strategic planning and business
development of the Group. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive Director
on 26 July 2006. He is also a member of the NC and the sole shareholder
and a director of Pioneer Top Holdings Limited, a controlling Shareholder.
Mr. Liu graduated from Xinxiang Broadcasting and Television University in
July 1986 with a Diploma in Arts. In 2006, he completed EDP (Executive
Development Program) from Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University. In 2010, Mr. Liu was awarded the EMBA degree from Tsinghua
University. Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in the chemical fertiliser
industry. He is currently the senior vice chairman of China Nitrogen Fertiliser
Industry Association. Mr. Liu was appointed the factory head of Xinxiang
Fertiliser Factory, a state-owned enterprise, in charge of factory operations
in 1994 and then became the chairman and the general manager of XLX
Chem from July 2003 to July 2006. He was the general manager of Henan
XLX from July 2006 to April 2016, and has also been the chairman of
Henan XLX since July 2006. In 2004, he was awarded the “Henan Province
Labour Model (Advanced Worker)”and in 2005, he was awarded the “Henan
Province Outstanding Private Enterprise Entrepreneur” by the People’s
Government of Henan Province. He was also the winner of “National Labour
Day Medal"in 2009 issued by All China Federation of Trade Unions, and was
awarded the “China Petroleum & Chemical Outstanding Private Enterprises
Entrepreneurs Innovation Award” in 2014. He was awarded the “Henan
Economic Celebrity of the year 2014" and "Model Worker of China”in 2015,
and also the “Most Excellent Citizen in Xinxiang”in 2017. He was awarded
the 2nd session of Henan Province’s "Most Beautiful Environmentalist” in
2018, and also the "Outstanding Member of the Communist Party in Henan
Province”in 2021.
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MR. ZHANG QINGJIN

Aged 56, is principally in charge of the decision making with respect to
overall management and day-to-day business operations of the Group.
Mr. Zhang was appointed as an executive Director on 27 March 2015.
Mr. Zhang graduated from Zhengzhou Engineering College (currently
known as “Zhengzhou University”) in July 1987 with a diploma in chemical
equipment, and obtained the EMBA degree from Tsinghua University in
2009. He has over 20 years of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry.
He is currently the senior advisory of China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry
Association and the vice president of China Phosphate and Compound
Fertilizer Industry Association. Mr. Zhang joined Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory
in July 1987 and held various positions, including unit head of equipment
and facility department, unit head of production and technical department,
section head of equipment and facility upgrade and department head of
technical upgrade in Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory. Mr. Zhang was appointed as
the manager of the technical centre of XLX Chem from August 2003 to July
2006. He was also the manager of the technical centre of Henan XLX from
July 2006 to November 2006. Mr. Zhang was the deputy general manager
of Henan XLX from November 2006 to July 2011, and was the executive
deputy general manager of Henan XLX from July 2011 to April 2016, and
then he has become the general manager of Henan XLX since April 2016.
In June 2016, he was awarded the "Outstanding Member of the Communist
Party in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region” by the Party Committee
of the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region. In September 2018, he was
awarded the “Outstanding Individual” by China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry
Association and the “Labour Day Medal of Henan Province”in May 2021.
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MS. YAN YUNHUA

Aged 52, is principally in charge of the decision making with respect to all
financial matters within the Group. Ms. Yan was appointed as an executive
Director on 10 November 2006. She is also the sole shareholder and a
director of Go Power Investments Limited, a substantial Shareholder. Ms.
Yan graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in July 2003 with a degree
in accountancy. Ms. Yan obtained the EMBA (Executive Master of Business
Administration) degree from Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University in July 2009. Ms. Yan has 20 years of accounting and finance
experience. Ms. Yan is currently the executive chairman of the Finance
Research Committee of China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry Association and
the vice chairman of Henan Provincial Association of CFO. Ms. Yan joined
Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in December 1997 and held various positions in
Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory, including the deputy head of finance division
and the deputy chief accountant. She was also the chief accountant in
charge of finance of XLX Chem from 2003 to July 2006. She was the deputy
general manager of Henan XLX from July 2006 to April 2016, and has
become the vice chairman of Henan XLX since April 2016. Ms. Yan obtained
the "Accountant” certification from the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in
May 1997 and obtained the “Senior Accountant” certification from Henan
Province Accountant Series Senior Assessment Committee in December
2005. Ms. Yan was awarded the "Accountants Contribution Award” and
“Excellent Leaders in the Enterprise Information construction of the China
Petroleum and Chemical Industry”in the PRC in 2008, “Advanced Worker
in Accounting of Henan Province” in 2009, “Labour Day Medal of Henan
Province”in 2015, and “National Labour Day Medal"in 2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. ONG KIAN GUAN

Aged 55, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the AC and a member of both
the RC and the NC. Mr. Ong graduated from the Nanyang Technological
University in Singapore with a Bachelor of Accountancy degree in May
1992. Mr. Ong has more than 20 years of professional experience in financial
audits of multinational corporations and public listed companies from
diverse industries. He is a practising member and a fellow of the Institute of
Singapore Chartered Accountants, and also a partner of Baker Tilly TFW LLP.
He is also an independent non-executive director of Omnibridge Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of SEHK) since 15 December
2020. Mr. Ong resigned as an independent director of Alliance Mineral
Assets Limited (a company listed on SGXST) with effect from 17 December
2019. He has ceased to be an independent non-executive director of IAG
Holdings Limited and RMH Holdings Limited (both companies are listed on
the GEM of SEHK) on 30 April 2020 and 24 September 2021 respectively. He
is an independent non-executive director of Eindec Corporation Limited (a
company listed on SGXST) since 23 April 2022. Mr. Ong is also a committee
member of the Singapore Division of CPA Australia.
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MR. LI SHENGXIAO

Aged 60, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the NC and a member
of both the AC and the RC. Mr. Li graduated from Hangzhou University
(currently known as Zhejiang University) in July 1987 with a graduation
certificate in politics. He then obtained a master's degree in law from
Hangzhou University in July 1990. Mr. Li has been working in Shaoxing
University since September 1995, and successively served as secretary of
the Party Committee of the Department of Economics and Trade, director
of the Department of Economics and Management, and executive vice
president of the College of Economics and Management. From June 2004
to November 2013, he served as the dean of the School of Economics
and Management and the deputy secretary of the Party Committee. He
is currently the dean of the Yueshang Research Institute (i ff3E6T)
of Shaoxing University and the director of the Regional Development
Research Center of Shaoxing University. Mr. Li has been the instructor
of establishment of small and medium enterprises in Zhejiang Province
since 2006. Mr. Li has been appointed as an independent director of Bank
of Shaoxing Co., Ltd. from November 2013 to June 2020. Mr. Li is also an
independent director of Zhejiang China Light & Textile Industrial City Group
Co., Ltd (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from 2014
to 2020. He was as an independent director of Anhui Jiangnan Chemical
Industry Co, Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange)
between 2012 and 2018. He is also an independent director of Zhejiang
Furun Digital Technology Co,, Itd (since June 2020) and Kuaijishan Shaoxing
Rice Wine Co., Ltd. (since May 2021) (both companies are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Li was awarded the “high school outstanding
youth teacher of Zhejiang Province”in September 1991.
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MR. ONG WEI JIN

Aged 56, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the RC and a member of
both the AC and the NC. Mr. Ong obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree
from the National University of Singapore in 1990, a Master of Business
Administration degree from University of Hull in 1993, and a Master of
Laws degree from the National University of Singapore in 1995. Mr. Ong is
a partner in Harry Elias Partnership LLP (a Singapore law firm). He was an
independent director of Luzhou Bio-chem Technology Limited (ceased on
8 December 2020), CFM Holdings Limited (ceased on 26 June 2020), and
Camsing Healthcare Limited (formerly known as Jacks International Limited)
(ceased on 20 March 2019), all these companies are listed on the SGX-ST.

MR. LI HONGXING

Aged 47, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 16 May 2018. Mr. Li received a Master of Business Administration
from Australian Graduate School of Management in 2011 and a Bachelor
of Arts in International Business from the Guangdong University of Foreign
Studies in 1997. Mr. Li has been the Managing Director of CDG International
Company Limited since 2016. Mr. Li served as the supervisor in Farasis
Energy (GanZhou) Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange) from July 2020 to November 2020; and the head of energy,
mining and equipment (corporate finance) in CITIC CLSA Securities from
2010 to 2016; and an equity analyst of HSBC with a focus on Asian oil and
chemicals from 2007 to 2010. Before that, Mr. Li had worked in BP Group,
Dongguan Nokia Mobile Phones Co., Ltd. and PricewaterhouseCoopers
China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MR. MATONGSHENG

Aged 53, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 18 March
2019. Mr. Ma graduated from Zhengzhou University with an EMBA
degree and Nanjing University of Science and Technology with a degree
in Computer Technology. Mr. Ma has over 26 years of experience in the
fertiliser industry in China. Mr. Ma was the supervisor and assistant manager
of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory* (GFT4B{LAE4ER), a state-owned enterprise,
from July 1992 to July 2000. He was the production manager of compound
fertiliser of Henan XLX from August 2000 to October 2005; the deputy
head of Production Plant Il from November 2005 to January 2010; the head
of Production Plant Ill from February 2010 to July 2012; the manager of
production management from August 2012 to December 2016; the director
of Production Management Centre from January 2017 to July 2017; and the
general manager of the Compound Fertiliser Company* (# & B2 &)) from
August 2017 to October 2018.

Note:  Mr. Ma Tongsheng resigned as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on
24 March 2023 and Mr. Song Wanlei succeeded his position

MR. WONG WING WANG

Aged 52, is the Chief Financial Officer of China XLX since 18 March 2019.
Mr. Wong is a member of CPA Australia, and holds a Bachelor degree of
Commerce from Newcastle University in Australia. Mr. Wang has over 20
years of experience in the corporate finance industry in Singapore. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Wong has been the managing director of Crowe
Howarth Capital (Singapore) (“Crowe Singapore”) since April 2017, and
was the chief executive officer of Partners Capital (Singapore) Pte Ltd. (a
boutique corporate finance firm with a CMS license from the Monetary
Authority of Singapore, which was acquired by Crowe Singapore in April
2017) from January 2008 to April 2017. He was a partner of SAC Capital
Pte Ltd,, a corporate finance advisor in Singapore, from December 2006 to
December 2007.
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MR. WANG PINGBIAO

Aged 52, is the deputy general manager in charge of the safety,
environmental protection, procurement, chemical sales, railway
transportation and engineering management department of Henan
XLX since 29 April 2016. Mr. Wang has more than 20 years of experience
in the chemical fertiliser industry. Mr. Wang graduated from Zhengzhou
Engineering College (currently known as Zhengzhou University) with
a tertiary certificate in June 1992, and obtained a master degree in
Executive Master of Business Administration from Tsinghua University
in 2008. Mr. Wang joined Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in July 1992 and
held various positions, including the deputy director of technical
transformation of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory and the deputy head
of nitrogen fertiliser plant. He was the head of Branch Il, Henan
XLX Fertilizer Co, Ltd. Of] B8 & 3 DL BB B R 2 8] = o 2 7)) from
January 2005 to September 2008, the head of Factory lll, Henan XLX
Fertilizer Co., Ltd. CAIF/NMELMEIEBR A F =9 H) from September
2008 to January 2010 and the head of Branch IV, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,,
Ltd. OF /038 OB BE B BR 72 BP9 9 A &) from October 2010 to April
2016.

MR. REN RONGKUI

Aged 54, he was appointed as the Deputy General Manager of Henan XLX
on 18 March 2019 and in charge of products research and development
and agricultural development. Mr. Ren graduated from Henan Normal
University with a bachelor degree in computer science in June 1992 and
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Xi'an Jiaotong
University in January 2017. He was qualified as a safety engineer. From
June 1992 to January 1997, Mr. Ren served as a workshop staff member of
Xinxiang Fertilizer Factory. From January 1997 to July 2000, he served as
director of the Instrument Workshop of Xinxiang Fertilizer Factory. From
July 2000 to July 2005, he served as manager of the agrochemical center
of Henan Xinxin Fertilizer Co,, Ltd., and served as deputy director of Factory
I, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from January to July 2007. He served as
director of Factory |, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from July 2007 to August
2008, and manager of Branch I, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from August
2008 to October 2010, and served as the assistant of general manager of
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from October 2010 to July 2017
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MS. SUN HONG

Aged 54, she was appointed as the deputy general manager of Henan
XLX on 18 March 2019 and in charge of human resources and group
informatization. Ms. Sun graduated from Henan Normal University in July
1991 with major in chemistry, and obtained a master’s degree in applied
chemistry from Dalian University of Technology in July 1994. She obtained
a Ph.D. in Business Administration from Huazhong University of Science
and Technology in June 2011. From August 1994 to February 2004, Ms.
Sun worked in Henan Xinfei Electric Appliance Co., Ltd,, as a technician,
the deputy director of the manufacturing department, director, manager
of the advertising department, and deputy manager of the marketing
department, etc. From March 2004 to October 2012, she served as the head
of quality department, deputy general manager of quality department and
general manager of quality department in Henan Xinfei Electric Appliance
Co.,, Ltd. In November 2012, she served as assistant to general manager of
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd.

MR. JIA XINCHAO

Aged 49, is the deputy general manager in charge of the operation of
black technology and the corporate administration of Henan XLX since
2 November 2020. Mr. Jia obtained a EMBA Master from Zhengzhou
University in April 2013; and obtained a EMBA Master from Tsinghua
University School of Economics and Management in June 2016. Mr. Jia
held various positions in the Group: the corporate management officer of
Xinxiang Fertilizer Factory from August 1996 to August 2003; the director
of supply of Henan XLX Chemicals Co., Ltd. from August 2003 to October
2005; the manager of the purchasing department of from October 2005
to July 2011 Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd.; the executive deputy general
manager of Compound Fertilizer Branch, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from
July 2011 to August 2012; the general manager of Compound Fertilizer
Branch, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. from August 2012 to September 2015;
the general manager of marketing centre of Henan XLX Fertilizer Co.,, Ltd.
from September 2015 to April 2016; the assistant of general manager and
general manager of marketing centre of Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from
April 2016 to July 2017; and the assistant of general manager of Henan
Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co., Ltd. from July 2017 to October 2020.
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MR. GUO ZHENG

Aged 49, is the deputy general manager in charge of the operation
and production of the Xinxiang Ammonia department of Henan XLX
since November 2020. Mr. Guo graduated from Zhengzhou Engineering
College in July 1994 with a major in chemical technology. Mr. Guo held
various positions in the Group: participated in the preparation of building
the first urea device of China XLX on 1 July 1994; the director of the
thermoelectricity workshop and deputy head of Factory I, Henan XLX
Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from 1999 to September 2008; the head of Factory |,
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. from September 2008 to August 2012; the
head of Factory Ill, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. from September 2012 to
March 2014; the deputy general manager of the production department of
Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy Chemical Co., Ltd. from April 2014 to September
2015, participated in the preparation of constructing Xinjiang 2848 Project;
the executive deputy general manager of Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy
Chemical Co., Ltd. from October 2015 to March 2016; the assistant of
general manager of Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy Chemical Co,, Ltd. and the
executive deputy general manager of Xinjiang company from April 2016 to
June 2017; and the assistant of general manager of Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,,
Ltd. and general manager of Xinjiang company from July 2017 to October
2020.

China XLX 2022 Annual Report
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
MS. LEUNG KWAN WAI

Ms. Leung Kwan Wai was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company since 4 July 2019. Ms. Leung is a senior manager of Corporate
Services of Tricor Services Limited (a global professional services provider
specializing in integrated business, corporate and investor services). She has
over 15 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field and has been
providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies
as well as multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. Leung is a
Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and an Associate
of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.

MS. CHEOK HUI YEE

Ms. Cheok Hui Yee was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company since 6 March 2018. Ms. Cheok is a senior manager of Tricor
Evatthouse Corporate Services, a division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd. (a
leading provider of integrated business, corporate and investor services
in Singapore). She has over 10 years of experience in corporate secretarial
practice in Singapore. Her area of exposure includes advisory and
assistance in compliance matters of public and private limited companies
in Singapore, foreign companies registered in Singapore as well as offshore
incorporated companies. She is currently the appointed company secretary
of several public companies listed on the SGX-ST. Ms. Cheok is a Practising
Chartered Secretary and an Associate of The Chartered Secretaries Institute
of Singapore.
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Investor Relations
BREEBZ

In 2022, the Company continued to consistently conduct investor relations
activities, aiming to demonstrate the highlights of the Company to the
capital market, the Company is able to tie closely with the capital market
through our timely, impartial, fair and accurate information disclosure and
our multi-channel and all-round investor relations activities. The Company
also listens attentively to various suggestions and proposals from the capital
market with regard to the Company’s operations and management in a
proactive, sincere and humble manner, so as to improve the Company’s
operational management quality, enhance the Company’s profitability and
Shareholders'value and maximise their interests.

TIMELY, RIGHTEOUS, FAIR AND ACCURATE INFORMATION
DISCLOSURE

The Company has been in strict compliance with the information disclosure
regulations for listed companies by making timely, righteous, fair and
accurate information disclosure, which improve the transparency of the
Company, moreover, establish a smooth communication channel and
enhance its interaction and communication with the capital market. In
2022, 58 publications have objectively and comprehensively disclosed
information regarding the results, operating performance, financial
information, dividend payment, poll results of shareholder meetings and
certain other voluntary disclosures. The Company’s website (www.chinaxIx.
com.hk) is also an important channel for its information disclosure and
important platform for investors to obtain information on the Company.

MULTIPLE-CHANNEL, COMPREHENSIVE INVESTOR
RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

In 2022, the Company continued to consolidate the foundation of investor
relations activities, updated the relevant process and database, and strived
to promote the development of investor relations activities. The Company
continued to conduct comprehensive communication with capital market
through various communication channels including results announcement
conference, roadshow promotion activities, reverse roadshows, one-on-one
investor meetings, press releases and WeChat groups. The Company were
able to timely convey the strategic planning, development philosophy,
growth story, and the latest developments and performance of operation
and management of the Company to the capital market, as well as sharing
our understanding and outlook on the industry and market. In addition to
organizing regular results announcement meetings, we also innovated the
form of roadshows to eliminate the impact of the pandemic. The Group has
organized nearly a hundred roadshow promotions through a combination
of online and offline channels to proactively announce and push
notification of favourable news and shared in real time the highlights of the
Company in various communication channels (including official accounts
and WeChat groups), which attracted the attention of a large number of
investors, industry analysts and securities companies.

China XLX 2022 Annual Report
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In 2022, due to the frequent occurrence of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the number of on-site visits by investors was correspondingly reduced.
However, according to the needs and styles of analysts and different
investors, the Group flexibly and proactively arranged corporate senior
management to participate in numerous online investor relations activities.
During 2022, the Company’s senior management including the Chairman
of the Board and the management participated in plenty of investor
activities to fully communicate with the capital market, which realised
multi-channelled communications. The Company attended various investor
forums organised by a number of investment banks and funds, conducted
one-on-one meetings and conference calls regularly, and made interactive
communication with around 300 investors and analysts throughout the
year, so as to further provide investors and analysts a better understanding
of the business and operations of the Group.

STEADY AND CONTINUOUS SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

The Company attaches great importance to the Shareholders’ views on its
dividend payout. The Company determines its dividend payout every year
with reference to the Company’s financial status, long-term development
needs and potential investment opportunities. For the year of 2022, the
Group proposed dividend of RMBO0.25 per Share and a dividend payout ratio
of 23.2% net profit attributable to owners of the parent.
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The situation of the Company’s dividend payment since listing
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance principles and processes in managing the
business and affairs, so as to improve the performance, accountability,
and transparency of the Group. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct
and growth of the Group's business.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has reviewed its
corporate governance practices and considers that the Company has
complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised below.

A. CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board has established the Group’s purpose, values and strategy,
and satisfy itself that these and the Group's culture are aligned. All
Directors must act with integrity, lead by example, and promote
the desired culture. The Board should instil such culture into the
Company and continually reinforces across our Company’s values of
acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly.

A healthy corporate culture set up by the Group, including integrity
and accountability, is vital for the Company to achieve its vision and
mission towards sustainable growth. It is the Board's role to foster
a corporate culture with core principles to guide the behaviours of
its employees, and ensure that the Company’s vision, values and
business strategies are aligned to it.

The Board carries out ongoing comprehensive review of the Group’s
formulation of business strategies and policies, which covers the
Group's position in the major markets and service lines, leading
drivers of change in the industry and markets, and marketing
strategies to seize business opportunities in long run.
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B THE BOARD

B1.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The primary role of the Board is taking leadership and
control of the Company to protect and enhance long-term
Shareholders’ value. It sets the corporate strategies of the
Group, and sets directions and goals for the management.
The Board also supervises the management and monitors

performance of these goals to enhance Shareholders’

value. The Board is responsible for the overall corporate
governance of the Group.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group are delegated to the executive Directors and
the management. Each executive Director has accumulated
sufficient and valuable experience to hold his/her position
in order to ensure that his/her fiduciary duties can be carried
out in an effective and efficient manner.

The Board has established an internal framework to ensure
that the type of material transactions which required Board's
approval is consistently applied throughout the Group.
Matters requiring Board's approval include:

Overall Group business and budget strategy
ii. Capital expenditures, investments or divestments
exceeding certain material limits

iii. All capital-related matters including capital issuance
and redemption

iv. Significant policies governing the operations of the
Company

V. Corporate strategic development and restructuring

Vi Risk management strategy

Vii. Any major corporate activities involving changes in

Shareholders'rights and risk profile
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TEERRE
Regular meetings of the Board are held to deliberate the EEERTEHERE UMD
strategic policies of the Company including significant SIARAIMEBS B - B
acquisitions and disposals, review and approve annual RERNKENHEEE
budgets, review the performance of the business and EMRMAEFEER - WE
approve the publicly issued periodic financial results. EBRBARERINAHEY
TEHRRI G345 o
All Directors are from time to time obtain information FrEEEHEIHESEH
concerning the Company to enable them to be fully RRARWER - A FIaE
cognizant of the decisions and actions of the Company’s WEESHARRIEREE
management. The Board has unrestricted access to the HEPRE MR A {78 -
Company’s records and information. Any Director may E - Fe 35 PAN/NS EOERE &1
request for independent professional advice in appropriate BRAEI RS o (F[
circumstances at the Company's expense, upon reasonable EERNESFSELHAEE
request made to the Board. kig - FIREE BN TECK
BURXER  BRAAXR
CIES
Senior management members are available to provide SREEREeAGRENM
explanatory information in the form of briefings to the EEWMENAEESTEYR L
Directors or formal presentations at Board meetings, or by EERVER - IR EAE
external consultants engaged on specific projects. B X2 8EERITEE &
SNEPRER R AR E KL
The Board has formed specialised committees namely the EEeRHANZEZERZE
AC, the RC and the NC (collectively the “Committees’) 2 EZREZEET - FWE
to assist in carrying out and discharging its duties and BgiREZEg (SB[ £
responsibilities efficiently and effectively. The Committees Eg)) UBBESEEUSE
function within clearly defined terms of references and B B S 5 X MITAE
operating procedures, which are reviewed on a regular TEBRENMET - T8
basis. The effectiveness of each of the Committees is also REBERELGEHRT A
constantly reviewed by the Board. o 5 B B 0 B FE (IR AR
BITIE-EEQ e TEH
WA EEZE RN »
The company secretary(ies) of the Company (the “Company RRARH R AIME ([ DB
Secretary(ies)”) and/or his/her representative(s) attend(s) EDR/HERRSHER
all Board meetings and meetings of the Committees to EESEERNELZEEN
ensure that Board procedures are followed and applicable 2% MRZEZESRERE
rules and regulations are complied with. Draft minutes of EgRFMETHEANRA
meetings of the Board and the Committees are circulated to MER BEFEREEEE
Directors and the Committees members, as the case may be, FENEECENRIAMR
for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting BEEREEZEEGZE(R
and the final version of minutes are available for Directors’ FIERME) BFH - AHE
inspection. EEF—REREBENEIER

RINREHEER  MEFECE
RRERAIBEESERH -
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B2.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2022, the composition of the Board is as
follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Xingxu (Chairman of the Board and

Member of the NC)

Mr. Zhang Qingjin
Ms. Yan Yunhua

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ong Kian Guan (Chairman of the AC, Member of
the RC and the NC)

(Chairman of the NC, Member of
the AC and the RC)

Mr. Li Shengxiao

Mr. Ong Wei Jin (Chairman of the RC, Member of

the AC and the NC)

Mr. Li Hongxing (Member of the AC, the RC and

the NC)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has
met the requirements of Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of
having at least three independent non-executive Directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board) with one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and related financial management expertise.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and
objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement. The independent non-executive Directors
bring different business and financial expertise, experiences
and independent judgement to the Board and they are
invited to serve on the Committees. Through participation
in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflicts of interests and/or serving on
the Committees, the independent non-executive Directors
have made contributions to the effective direction of the
Company and provided adequate checks and balances
to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the
Shareholders.
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TEERBRE
The biographical details of the Directors and the relationship EENEREFBULESS
between Board members, if any, are set out in the section KBz HREER (A ) H7
headed “Directors, Senior Management and Company RAFRIEE aRER
Secretaries” of this annual report. EBRARIMWE] —& -
The Company has established a Board Independence KRARERZE 77&1’1@4
Evaluation Mechanism during the year 2022 which sets E=A PO AV R Y T
out the processes and procedures to ensure a strong HIERESS /\ﬁi%ﬁ
independent element on the Board, which allows the NITTENREMNER  F%
Board effectively exercises independent judgment to better 2 B H WM 1T F & L H
safeguard Shareholders'interests. B - A i AR R A %R o
The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board FEEERAESSME -
effectiveness, maximise strengths, and identify the areas that EHEEED - WHRIFTH
need improvement or further development. The evaluation SOl — B RERER o 57
process also clarifies what actions of the Company need to HBERIERA T ARARR R
be taken to maintain and improve the Board performance, RNRAEESELMEER
for instance, addressing individual training and development BMziT8  PINERERES
needs of each Director. REAFNFIZER TR -
Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, BIEEETSBE TG #®
the Board will conduct annual review on its independence. t  EEZGREFEHHEE
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board Ve BEZT I _F+ =
reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Board A=+—RHLFE %<
Independence Evaluation Mechanism and the results were EEFHESS B TG
satisfactory. B S AR - MAE R

WAE

The Company has received written annual confirmation RRABIEWENGEBILIEH
from each independent non-executive Director of his TESRE EMHRUNNRE
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing EREBERYMENEERTF
Rules. The Company considers all independent non- EHERE - ARRRBAA
executive Directors to be independent in light of the B EMITES I AEBRE
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules. TR BIPIIE A B L M

SIHBILIE -
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B3.

B4.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company supports the division of responsibility
between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in order to ensure a balance of
power and authority and preserve a balanced judgement
of views. During the year under review, Mr. Liu Xingxu is
the Chairman of the Board, focusing on the overall strategic
planning and business development of the Group; whereas
Mr. Ma Tongsheng is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, taking care of the overall management and day-
to-day business operations of the Group. Such separation of
the roles and duties of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
would enable timely management of the Group’s affairs and
further reinforce the Group's development.

In addition, the Directors are of the view that the balanced
composition of executive Directors and non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
on the Board and the existence of AC, RC and NC (comprising
all or a majority of independent non-executive Directors) in
overseeing different aspects of the Company’s affairs would
help to maintain the balance of power and authority.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and processes of appointment and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Constitution.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, whereas the Company has
issued a letter of appointment to each of the independent
non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors. All
Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years.
They are also subject to retirement and re-election in
accordance with the Constitution at least once every three
years at an AGM.
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B5.

W&

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that
he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The existing Directors are continually updated with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to refresh their knowledge and to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings
and professional development to Directors are arranged
whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the
Group are provided to Directors from time to time for their
studying and reference.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors
have participated training as follows:

- All Directors (being Mr. Liu Xingxu, Mr. Zhang Qingjin,
Ms. Yan Yunhua, Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao,
Mr. Ong Wei Jin and Mr. Li Hongxing) received regular
briefings and updates from the Company Secretaries/
Company’s management on the Group's business,
operations and corporate governance matters.

- All directors attended relevant seminars organised by
professional firms/institutions.

- Mr. Liu Xingxu, Mr. Zhang Qingjin and Ms. Yan Yunhua
read technical bulletins, periodicals and other
publications on subjects relevant to the Group and
on their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.
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B6.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS B6. ESBHERH
The attendance records of each Director at the meetings BFEESEREBE_ZT -
of the Board and the Committees and the annual general TZRA=+T—RLEFEARR
meeting of ("AGM") the Company held during the year AIRITNESEg% £8
ended 31 December 2022 are set out below: ggaBRRAEFAE (R
REBAFAE ) WEFLEH
FIEAT
Attendance of Meetings
BEEEAY
Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EZ® ENZRe  FHZEE BFZEf RRAFAS
No. of Meetings held 5 5 1 1 1
SENH
Name of Director
EEf?
Bxecutive Directors: HiTEE :
Mr. Liu Xingxu B @Rk 3 - - 1 1
Mr. Zhang Qingjin RESLLE 4 - - - 1
Ms. Yan Yunhua BEZEgt+ g _ _ _ 1
Independent non-executive Directors: BV HHTEE -
Mr. Ong Kian Guan TRREE 5 5 1 1 1
Mr. i Shengyiao TEREE 5 5 1 1 1
Mr.Ong Wei Jin TACRE 5 5 1 1 1
Mr.Li Hongxing MIBRE 5 5 1 1 1
In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting o - REIBEERN  EFE
with the independent non-executive Directors without BT IERITESETT
the presence of executive Directors during the year under T—REgH g LWERT
review. BEEIE -

While the Board considers Directors’ attendance at the
meetings of the Board and the Committees to be important,
it should not be the only criterion to measure the Directors'
contributions. The Board also takes into account the
contributions by Board members in other forms including
periodical reviews, and provision of guidance and advice on
various matters relating to the Group.
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B8.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code (Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules) as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors'dealings in the Company’s securities. The Company
has made specific enquiry of all the Directors, and the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”), governing securities transactions
by the relevant employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
relevant employees was noted by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period
for dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will
notify the Directors and relevant employees in advance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board has reviewed and
monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
AC, the RC and the NC, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company'’s affairs. All the Committees have been established with
defined written terms of reference, which are available on the
websites of the SEHK (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.
chinaxlx.com.hk). All the Committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

All the Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

C1.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The AC currently comprises a total of four members, being
the four existing independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei
Jin and Mr. Li Hongxing. The chairman of the AC is Mr. Ong
Kian Guan, who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
None of the members of the AC is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the AC are reviewing the financial
information and reports of the Group and considering any
significant or unusual items raised by the financial officers
of the Group or the external auditor before submission to
the Board; reviewing the relationship with and the terms
of appointment of the external auditor and making the
relevant recommendation to the Board; and reviewing the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function.

The Company has in place a whistle-blowing policy for
employees of the Group and those who deal with the
Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.
The AC constantly receives updates from the external
auditor pertaining to the latest changes to the accounting
standards and issues which have a direct impact on financial
statements.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the AC has held 5
meetings. Details of individual attendance of each member
at the meetings are set out in section B6 above. The AC has
performed the following major works during the year ended

31 December 2022:

- Review and discussion of the annual financial
statements, results announcement and report for
the year ended 31 December 2021 together with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
("ESG"), and the related accounting principles and

practices adopted by the Group;

- Review and discussion of the interim financial
statements, results announcement and report for
the six months ended 30 June 2022, and the related
accounting principles and practices adopted by the

Group;

- Review and discussion of the financial results for
the first quarter ended 31 March 2022 and the third
quarter ended 30 September 2022 respectively;

- Consideration and discussion of the major audit
findings (including Key Audit Matters) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 from the external auditor;

- Consideration and discussion of the major internal
audit findings for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the first three quarters ended 31 December 2022

respectively;

- Review of the independence of the external auditor
and recommendation of its re-appointment for the

year ended 31 December 2022;
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- Review and discussion of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2022;

- Review and discussion of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting system, the risk management
(including ESG risk) and internal control systems and
the internal audit function;

- Review of the arrangement of whistle-blowing
policy; and

- Review and discussion of Ernst & Young LLP’s audit
plan for the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the external
auditor has met the AC twice and discussed with the AC on
issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.

The AC, having reviewed all non-audit services provided
by the external auditor of the Company, was satisfied that
the nature and extent of such services would not affect the
independence and objectivity of the external auditor. The
AC recommended that Ernst & Young LLP be nominated for
re-appointment as the Company’s external auditor at the
2023 AGM. There is no disagreement between the Board and
the AC regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The RC currently comprises a total of four members, being
the four existing independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei Jin
and Mr. Li Hongxing. The chairman of the RC is Mr. Ong Wei
Jin. All aspects of remuneration, including but not limited
to Directors' fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses and benefits
in kind, will be covered by the RC. Each RC member will
abstain from voting on any resolution in respect of his own
remuneration package.

The Company’s remuneration policy is to ensure that the
remuneration offered to employees, including Directors
and senior management, is based on skill, knowledge,
responsibilities and involvement in the Company’s affairs.

The principal responsibilities of the RC include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure and the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management (i.e. the
model described in the code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG
Code is adopted), to review and/or approve matters relating
to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The
RC is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, and
the remuneration will be determined by the Board with
reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as the market practice and conditions.
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In setting remuneration packages, the RC will take into
consideration the salary and employment conditions in
comparable companies within the industry. The RC will
also review the remuneration packages of the independent
non-executive Directors and the non-executive Director to
ensure that they are commensurate with the contributions
and responsibilities of the Directors. Each of the executive
Directors entered into a service contract with the Company,
which covers each of their terms of employment. The
Company will submit the quantum of Directors' fees of each
year to the Shareholders for approval at each AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the RC has held 1
meetings. Details of individual attendance of each member
at the meeting are set out in section A6 above. At the said
meetings, the RC: (i) reviewed the remuneration framework
for the Directors, key executive staff, top five highest paid
employees and employees who are immediate family
members of the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the remuneration proposal for the year ended 31
December 2022, by reference to the Group's performance
and profitability as well as the remuneration level of
certain listed corporations within the industry; (i) reviewed
the letters of appointment, including the remuneration
packages, of the Directors appointed during the year under
review, with recommendations to the Board for approval;
and (iii) reviewed, confirmed and ratified the renewal of
service contracts and/or letters of appointment of the
Directors with recommendations to the Board for approval
and ratification.
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Pursuant to the code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December
2022 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

RIEDEEASFRISFRNES
FEISGE HE-_FT -~

+-A=+—HIFESH
EIRENK B R FEFHizE
BB HEHFET -

Number of individuals

FiNsiE (AR¥T) AE
800,000-1,000,000 1
1,000,001-1,200,000 6

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The NC currently comprises a total of five members, being
the Chairman of the Board, namely Mr. Liu Xingxu, and the
four existing independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei Jin and
Mr. Li Hongxing. Accordingly, a majority of the members are
independent non-executive Directors. The chairman of the
NC is Mr. Li Shengxiao.

The principal responsibilities of the NC include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on an annual basis
and recommending any changes to the Board; identifying
qualified and suitable individuals to become Board
members and selecting and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to
the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

China XLX 2022 Annual Report

cs.

HE-_Z-_—_#+=A
T+ —HEFESEENFE
HEF B SN AN F R G I
WRMIFEOR ©

REZES

REZEEHaR_THRKE
MK BEESTFIEE
A RMBIREBILIFATT
E=TERALE  TERSE
£ ERCERERFUESL
e Hit - REDKBET S
BIUFNTES - RREE
SEREATEREL -

REZBENIBHE LR
FERINEFENRE - A
AR (BEREE - HH
Kf&pom) - WA
RE=ESRLER  WER
BREEARAEZETESSN
BMAL AHhERERER
ATHEESEHRERES
SiRMER  STELIEN
TEENBEYE: RUES
REREHZENHEBER
UNRERHRIATINESTS
R -



The NC has established and implemented processes
including taking into consideration the attendance records
at the meetings of the Board and the Committees for
monitoring and evaluating the performance of the Board
as a whole and effectiveness and contribution of individual
Directors.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other significant offices held by them. Where a Director has
multiple directorships, the NC will evaluate whether or not
the Director is able to carry out and has been adequately
carrying out his/her duties as a Director. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Board is satisfied that each Director
has allocated sufficient time and resources to the affairs of
the Company.

The Company has also adopted the Director Nomination
Policy. Such policy, devising the criteria and process of
selection and performance evaluation, provides guidance to
the Board on nomination and appointment of directors of
the Company. The Board believes that the defined selection
process is good for corporate governance in ensuring the
Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level,
and enhancing better Board effectiveness and diversity
as well as in compliance with the applicable rules and
regulations.

The NC and/or the Board may select candidates for
directorship from various channels, including but not limited
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral by other
member of the management and external recruitment
agents. In selecting and evaluating candidates for
directorship, the NC may make reference to certain criteria,
such as the Company’s needs, the integrity, experience,
skills and professional knowledge of the candidate, and the
amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to
discharge his/her duties and responsibilities. Each candidate
shall be ranked by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and check by the Company. The NC shall
report and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of appropriate candidate for directorship for
decision.
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TEERRE
The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits RARINRANREESTE
of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at KEZTk#EmRE - B
the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the EEEEENZ TR AR
Company’s competitive advantage. The Company believes BARRBRFEZNEEZR
that greater diversity of directors is good for corporate - RARARR EFRE
governance and is committed to attract and retain ZTBEMEEER WS
candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies LIl kBEESSHEA -
from the widest possible pool of available talents, and NEAREBEERZHALE
assesses regularly the diversity profile of the Board and the B AREHRNEEEES
senior management prepared for Board positions under the TALIBER RIZARRINES
succession planning of the Company and the progress on BEETEIBEAEENASAE
achieving diversity objectives, if any. A Board diversity policy ZAREENAREEE -
was adopted by the Company, pursuant to which the Board HmERZ T BIZERE (10
and the NC is responsible for reviewing and assessing the B) c ARRIKMESEZ T
Board composition under diversified perspectives (including {EBGR - Bt EFGRIE
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational HEEGAERSZTTILAE
background, or professional experience) and for ensuring (BIEETRAMER - F#L
that changes to the Board's composition can be managed MERBEERSEELR)
without undue disruption. The NC shall report its findings R KA HEFEKRESR
and make recommendation to the Board, if any. Such policy B - WHEREAXTE &
and objectives, if any, will be reviewed from time to time to BATAIERESEGHENE
ensure their appropriateness in determining the optimum FoREREEgHmEEE
composition of the Board that are aligning with the BERAZEFTSIELHHEBEER
Company's strategy and objectives. (IhB) - ZFBERKEZE(

B) BT ARRE S
REFEARDEIREREBRZR
NEFSREARNVERN
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For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity REBEZFEE TLBUR -

policy, the following measurable objectives were adopted:- Ty & E B IRC RN
at least one member of the Board shall be female; . EL—REEENE
fE R
at least one-third of the members of the Board shall EL=pr—MES
be independent non-executive Directors; 2K ERABEIEH
TEE
at least one member of the Board shall have obtained . EL—REEENE
accounting or other professional qualifications; EE ST EM
BEERK
at least 40% of the members of the Board shall have . ELANME ST
more than 20 years of experience in the industry in BREREAEEREHE
which he/she is specialised; and BFA FMEE
&
at least one-third of the members of the Board shall . EL=pr—RES
have China-related work experience. gXERAEGHEPEH
FERER T1EASES ©
The NC considered an appropriate balance of diversity REZEERREZTGHH

perspectives of the Board is maintained. RE TR EE T -
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The Company values gender diversity across all levels of
the Group. The following table sets out the gender ratio in
the workforce of the Group, including the Board and senior
management as at the date of this annual report:

RABERANEEEERD
R Z Tt - TREIARE
E(RREEe e R ER
B)RAFHRAPHEIM
alll=at T

Female Male

ziE B

Board e 14.29% (1) 85.71% (6)
Senior Management SRERE 14.29% (1) 85.71% (6)
Other employees HitfEg 26.20% (2,436) 73.80% (6,863)
Overall workforce BREET 26.18% (2,438) 73.82% (6,875)

The Board is committed to improving greater gender
diversity in the Board, senior management and other
employees of the Group.

Further details on the gender ratio of the Group together
with relevant data are set out in the ESG Report of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the NC has
held 1 meeting. Details of individual attendance of each
member at the meeting are set out in section B6 above.
At the said meetings, the NC: (i) reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board to ensure that it has
a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
to the requirements for the business of the Group; (ii)
assessed the independence of all the independent non-
executive Directors; (iii) recommended the re-election of the
retiring Directors at the 2022 AGM; and (iv) reviewed and
confirmed the renewal of service contracts and/or letters of
appointment of the Directors with recommendations to the
Board for approval and ratification.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and is mindful of
its obligations to furnish timely information and to ensure full
disclosure of material information to the Shareholders in compliance
with statutory requirements and the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
management has provided such explanation and information to
the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of the Group
and put forward to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems perform
a key role in the identification and management of risks that are
significant to the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.
The process of business risk management has been integrated
throughout the Group into business planning and monitoring
processes. The Company’s management continuously assesses the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans, monitors
the risk management progress, and reports to the AC and the Board
on all findings. The management would also report to the AC and
the Board on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.
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The AC ensures that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management (including ESG risks) and internal control
systems covering all material internal controls (including financial,
operational, compliance and information technology controls),
with respect to the design, implementation and monitoring of such
systems, is conducted annually and put forward to the Board for
consideration. In this regard, the AC reviews the audit plans and the
findings of the external and internal auditors, and ensures that the
Company will follow up on the auditors' recommendations raised, if
any, during the audit process.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board, with the assistance of
the management and the AC, has the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Company'’s strategic objectives,
and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management (including ESG risks) and internal control systems to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the Group's assets.

Based on the reports submitted by the external and internal
auditors and the various management controls put in place, the
Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems for the year ended
31 December 2022. With the concurrence of the AC, the Board
considered that the Group's risk management and internal control
systems maintained by the management are effective and adequate
to address the financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management of the Group throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has also
received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company that (i) the financial records have
been properly maintained and the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the Company/Group’s operation and finances; and (ii)
the Company/Group has put in place and will continue to maintain
reliable, comprehensive and sound systems of risk management,
internal control and corporate governance that will withstand the
scrutiny of any audit and review by the external auditor.

The Company has implemented control procedures throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022 to ensure that unauthorised access
and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

The Company has also put place the Anti-Corruption Policy to
safeguard against corruption and bribery within the Company.
The Company has an internal reporting channel that is open and
available for employees of the Company to report any suspected
corruption and bribery. Employees can also make anonymous
reports to the internal audit function, which is responsible for
investigating the reported incidents and taking appropriate
measures. The Company continues to carry out anti-corruption and
anti-bribery activities to cultivate a culture of integrity, and actively
organizes anti-corruption training and inspections to ensure the
effectiveness of anti-corruption and anti-bribery.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company held ten
anti-corruption trainings and briefings to all employees. There were
no non-compliance cases in relation to bribery and corruption.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The primary functions of the Company’s internal audit include
assessing if adequate internal control system is in place to protect
the funds and assets of the Group and to ensure compliance with
the internal control procedures; assessing whether the operation of
the business processes under review is conducted efficiently and
effectively; and identifying and recommending improvements to
the internal control procedures, where required.

The Board, with the concurrence of the AC, is satisfied with
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget and effectiveness of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. Leung Kwan Wai of
Tricor Services Limited and Ms. Cheok Hui Yee of Tricor Singapore
Pte. Ltd., both of which companies being external service providers,
have been engaged as the Company’s Joint Company Secretaries.

The Company Secretaries' primary contact persons at the Company
are Ms. Yan Yunhua, an executive Director, and Ms. Gui Lin, the Head
of Securities Department of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company Secretaries
have taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor's Report”of this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s external
auditor, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are analysed below:
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Fees paid/payable
2N BNEAR
Type of services provided by the external auditor (S$'000)
SN AT RN R ER (AR®FT)
Audit services
ERRE
- Audit fee for the year ended 31 December 2022 4,799
HE T -_—F+-_A=-t+—BLFENEZER
Non-audit services 175
F BRI
- Tax compliance service
MRS RIS
TOTAL:
HEt 4,974
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Group recognises the importance of transparent and timely
disclosure of corporate information, which enables Shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decision. Price sensitive
information will be publicly released before the Company’s
disclosure of any of such information to any investors or analysts.
Financial results and reports will be announced or issued within the
prescribed periods under the statutory or regulatory requirements.

In line with continuous obligations of the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules, the Company's Shareholders’ Communication Policy
is that all Shareholders be informed of all major developments
that impact the Group. The Board had reviewed the policy and
considered that the implementation of the policy was effective.
Information is disseminated to the Shareholders and investors on a
timely basis through:

i. Announcements, financial reports, circulars and news
releases published on the website of the SEHK;

ii. Financial reports prepared and issued to all Shareholders;

iii. Press releases on major developments of the Group;

iv. Notices of and explanatory memoranda for AGM and
Extraordinary General Meeting ("EGM"); and

V. the Company’s website at www.chinaxlx.com.hk at which
the Shareholders can access information of the Group,
roadshows and plant visits.

Please refer to the section headed “Investor relations” of this annual
report for more details.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings to ensure
high level of accountability and to stay apprised of the Group's
strategy and goals. Notices of general meetings will be published
on the websites of the SEHK and the Company. The chairmen of the
Committees are normally available at general meetings to answer
any question relating to the work of the Committees. The external
auditor shall also be present at AGM to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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Besides, for putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders
and investors may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries. Shareholders and investors may send their written
enquiries to the following:

Address:  Room 1903-04, 19/F, Hong Kong Trade Centre, 161 Des
Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2435 3724
Email: ir@chinaxix.com.hk
Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS'RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution shall be proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors, for Shareholders’' consideration and voting.

J1. CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL METING

Pursuant to Article 47 of the Constitution, the Directors
may whenever they think fit, and shall on requisition in
accordance with the statute, proceed with proper expedition
to convene an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM”).

Pursuant to the Companies Act:

(a) Shareholders holding 10% or more of the paid-
up capital of the Company which carries the right
to vote at general meetings as at the date of the
deposit of the requisition, may request the Board
to convene an EGM. The written requisition must
specify the objects of the meeting, be signed by
the Shareholders concerned and deposited at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of
the Board or the Company Secretaries;
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(b) The Board shall proceed to convene an EGM within
21 days of the deposit of such written requisition.
Such EGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such written requisition; and

() If the Directors do not within 21 days after the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed to convene an
EGM, the Shareholders who deposited requisition, or
any of them representing more than 50% of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves, in the
same manner as nearly as possible as that in which
meetings are to be convened by Directors, convene
an EGM, but any EGM so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from that date.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

In general, subject to the paragraph below, no resolution
may be proposed at a general meeting (whether it is an EGM
or an annual general meeting ("AGM")) if such resolution is
not included in the notice convening the general meeting.
However, if the proposal is to amend an existing resolution
set out in the notice convening the general meeting and
such amendment is within the scope of the notice, such
amendment may be made if approved by the Shareholders
by ordinary resolution.

On the requisition in writing of either (i) any number of
Shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the general meeting to which
the requisition related; or (ii) not less than 100 Shareholders
on which there has been paid up an average sum, per
Shareholder, of not less than 5$500, the Company shall be
under a duty to:
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(@) Give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting; and

(b) Circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice
of any general meeting sent to them any statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and
any such statement shall be circulated, to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by
serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each such
Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice of
the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be given
to any other Shareholder by giving notice of the general
effect of the resolution in any manner permitted for giving
him/her notice of meetings of the Company. The requisition
shall be deposited at the registered office of the Company at
least 6 weeks before the meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholder must provide
his/her full name, contact details and identification, in the
originally signed written requisition, notice or statement (as
the case may be), in order to give effect thereto. Information
of the Shareholder may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any changes to the Constitution. An up-to-date version of
the Constitution is available on the websites of the SEHK and
the Company. Shareholders may refer to the Constitution for
further details of the rights of Shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings shall
be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules, and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the SEHK and the
Company after each general meeting.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd.(the “Company”) are
pleased to present their statement to the Shareholders together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the statement
of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

In the opinion of the Directors,

(i) the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group
and the statement of financial position and statement of changes
in equity of the Company are drawn up so as to give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 December 2022 and the financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022; and

(ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to
believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they fall due.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 48 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion on
the Group's future business development, and the description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis of this
annual report. The financial risk management objectives and policies of
the Group are set out in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Financial Highlights of this
annual report. Discussions on the Group's compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations and relationships with its key stakeholders that have a
significant impact on the Group are included in the Chairman’s Statement,
Investor Relations and Corporate Governance Report of this annual report
and in this Directors' Statement.

The Group places much importance on environmental protection, energy-
saving and emission reduction, continuously processes environmental
transformation of production systems, promotes the implementation of
clean production, and continuously formulates and improves a series of
regulation policies to improve our environmental management, laying
a solid foundation for future development. Please refer to the separate
2022 Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG’) Report of the Group,
sent together with this Annual report, for further details of the Group’s
ESG-related risks, environmental policies and performance and other ESG
information.
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DIVIDEND

Considering factors including domestic and overseas economies, industry
policies and the Company’s future development plans, profit targets,
investment and cash flow, capital requirements, the Group’s annual
dividend policy for 2022 to 2024 is updated, of which the details will be
distributed with reference to the index range of audited debt-to-asset ratio
(ie. the total liabilities divided by total assets) for the year.

1. When the debt-to-asset ratio is less than or equal to 60%, the
distribution ratio of net profit attributable to the parent for the year
is greater than or equal to 25%;

2. When the debt-to-asset ratio ranges between 60%-70%, the
distribution ratio of net profit attributable to the parent for the year
ranges between 20%-25%;

3. When the debt-to-asset ratio is greater than or equal to 70%, the
distribution ratio of net profit attributable to the parent for the year
ranges between 15%-20% (including 20%);

4. If the net profit realised by the Group for the year is negative, no
profit distribution will be made;

5. In the event of force majeure such as war or natural disaster,
or changes in the external operating environment that have a
significant impact on the production and operation of the Company,
the Company may adjust its profit distribution policy.

In addition, the Group can also make profit distribution based on the actual
distribution situation for the Year and on the basis of the above distribution
proposal, in combination with other means of allotment.

The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends, including without limitation to: (i) financial
results; (i) cash flow situation; (iii) availability of distributable profits; (iv)
business conditions and strategies; (v) future operations and earnings; (vi)
capital requirements and expenditure plans.
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The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with the
Constitution and the applicable laws and regulations. The Board will review
the said dividend policy as appropriate from time to time and there can be
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 93 to 234 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of RMB25 cents (2021: RMB19 cents) per
ordinary share in respect of the year to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members on 9 June 2023. Subject to the approval
of Shareholders at the 2023 AGM, the final dividend will be paid on 23 June
2023.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out on page 234 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital is set out in Note 38 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Constitution or
the laws of Singapore, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2022, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
amounted to approximately RMB536,314,000 of which RMB307,030,000 has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 8% (2021: less than 8%) of the total sales for the
year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 34%
(2021: 28%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 13% (2021: 12%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Company has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Company.
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
RMB6,458,000 (2021: RMB11,867,099).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Liu Xingxu
Zhang Qingjin
Yan Yunhua

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Ong Kian Guan
Li Shengxiao
Ong Wei Jin
Li Hongxing

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors and considers them to be
independent.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARIES

Biographical details of the Directors, the senior management of the Group
and the Company Secretaries are set out on this annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the year was the Company a
party to any arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is,
to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 28 March 2020
(renewed for a term of three years commencing from 28 March 2023),
unless terminated in accordance with the provisions of the service contract
by either party giving to the other not less than six months’ prior notice in
writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive Director for
a term of three years, unless terminated by either party giving to the other
not less than three months’ prior notice in writing.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is subject to approval by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and

performance and the results of the Group. Details of the Directors’

remuneration are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year, the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the
Group are all Directors and senior management of the Company. Details
of the highest paid individuals are set out in Note 10 to the financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

As set out in Article 147 of the Constitution, a permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Continuing Connected
Transactions” and in Note 43 to the financial statements, no Director nor
a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
year under review.

DIRECTORS’AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company in shares of the Company, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the
Companies Act and Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS

ap)
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SR i T AR BB % 1 Frak AViZ 2 <F AI)ZE
MEARNR R MEZFTRI RS T

Number of ordinary shares interested

BERENEBERHE
Approximate
percentage’ of
the Company’s
issued share
Personal Corporate capital
Name of Directors interests interests Total interests (KA T2 31T
EEns Bz NEER BERE REANYBEIE?
Mr. Liu Xingxu 600,000 415,277,999 415,877,999 33.86%
2IE R & (Note Pk (a))
Ms. Yan Yunhua 300,000 255,965,000 256,265,000 20.86%
BaELt (Note PfIE (b))
Mr. Ong Kian Guan 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%
TRERREE
Chief Executive Officer
HEHITE
Mr. Ma Tongsheng 8,000 - 8,000
BlErE
# The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December
2022.
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Notes:

(@) These shares were held by Pioneer Top Holdings Limited (“Pioneer Top”), an
investment holding company established in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").
Mr. Liu Xingxu beneficially owned 42% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top,
and held the remaining 58% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top in trust for 7
beneficiaries (including Mr. Zhang Qingjin) under a trust agreement dated 26
July 2016. Pursuant to the trust agreement, Mr. Liu Xingxu is irrevocably granted
the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights and the rights to the day-to-
day management of Pioneer Top.

(b) These shares were held by Go Power Investments Limited ("Go Power”), an
investment holding company established in the BVI. Ms. Yan Yunhua beneficially
owned 12.74% of the equity interest in Go Power, and held the remaining 87.26%
of the equity interest in Go Power in trust for a total of 1,463 beneficiaries under
a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016. Pursuant to the trust agreement, Ms. Yan
Yunhua is irrevocably granted the absolute discretion to exercise the voting
rights and the rights to the day-to-day management of Go Power.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which has been recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the Companies Act
and Section 352 of the SFO, or which has been notified to the Company
and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors has any interest in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has no equity-linked agreements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the following parties had interests of 5% or more
in the issued shares and underlying shares of the Company according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 88 of the Companies Act and Section 336 of the SFO:

LONG POSITIONS

e

FERRARS - HERDNERE

s

R-E-—F+-_A=+—H " EARQA
RBIEA Tf%%M& EHNEEIKRGE

BIFEFTENER

St THETR

ViN/N TE%H&@%E@%&MLM%”:

Number of issued
ordinary shares

Approximate percentage?
of the Company’s issued

interested share capital
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Pioneer Top (Note Bff 5T (a)) Beneficial owner 415,277,999 3381%
EanEAA

Go Power (Note FiI&E (b)) Beneficial owner 255,965,000 20.84%
EnEAA

The percentage represents the number of issued ordinary shares interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31

December 2022.
ZADLIEEEEENEBITTRREBBRALRA

Pioneer Top is an investment holding company established in the BVI. Mr. Liu
Xingxu beneficially owned 42% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top, and held
the remaining 58% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top in trust for 7 beneficiaries
under a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016, including 7% for Mr. Zhang Qingjin,
an executive Director; 7% for Mr. Shang DeWei, the Company’s employees; 7%
for Mr. Zhu Xingye (retired), 16% for Mr. Li Buwen (retired), 7% for Mr. Li Yunshun
(retired), 7% for Mr. Ru Zhengtao and 7% for Mr. Wang Nairen (retired). Mr. Liu
Xingxu has the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights held by Pioneer
Top in the Company in accordance with the trust agreement. Such interest held
by Pioneer Top has also been disclosed as the interest of Mr. Liu Xingxu in the
above section headed “Directors’and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares".
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(b) Go Power is an investment holding company established in the BVI. Ms. Yan
Yunhua beneficially owned 12.74% of the equity interest in Go Power, and held
the remaining 87.26% of the equity interest in Go Power in trust for a total of
1,463 beneficiaries under a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016. Ms. Yan Yunhua
has the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights held by Go Power in
the Company in accordance with the trust agreement. Such interest held by Go
Power has also been disclosed as the interest of Ms. Yan Yunhua in the above
section headed “Directors’and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares’

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other than
the Directors whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares” above, had an interest or a short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company that
was required to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 88 of the Companies Act and Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions, which are the related party transactions set out in Note
43 to the financial statements that constituted continuing connected
transactions, and has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Liu Xingxu, Ms. Yan Yunhua and Mr. Zhang
Qingjin (being executive Directors) collectively held an aggregate of
approximately 13.67% interest in XLX Chem, and together are the largest
shareholder of XLX Chem and have the largest influence through their
shareholders’ rights on the major decisions in XLX Chem. Therefore, XLX
Chem, its subsidiaries and associates (collectively “XLX Chem Group”) are
deemed as the Company’s connected persons under Rule 14A.07 of the
Listing Rules.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

The Group entered into the Equipment Purchase Agreement on 5 February
2021 with XLX Chem Group, pursuant to which XLX Chem Group agreed
to supply and provide the relevant installation services for equipment,
including pipes, vessels and pressure vessels, to Henan XLX. Accordingly,
the Group benefits from reliable and timely delivery of equipment and
cost effectiveness. Pursuant to the agreement, the prices for equipment
purchases are determined by the Group’s internal qualification and
tendering procedures with potential suppliers of equipment, which vary
depending on the product type, quantity and quality specifications as
required by Henan XLX.

The Equipment Purchase Agreement has an original term commencing
from 5 February 2021 up to and including 31 December 2023. The
Group has set the annual cap for the amount paid by the Group to XLX
Chem Group for the purchases of equipment under the agreement at
RMB40,000,000 from FY2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount paid by
the Group for the purchases of equipment from XLX Chem Group was
approximately RMB10,712,000. The amount of RMB441,000 has been
included in spare parts inventories in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position. Besides, the Group paid RMB24,165,000 as anti-corrosion
service fees which has been accounted for as general and administrative
expenses in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above

continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these continuing

connected transactions have been entered into:

) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available from independent suppliers; and

(3) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s auditor, were engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with International
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference
to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young LLP have issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the SEHK.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set out in
Note 33 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 48 to the financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public at the date of this report.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Act requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. These financial statements should give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period of a particular year and on the financial performance of the Group
for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
should:

(a) select and apply consistently appropriate accounting policies, and
make prudent, fair and reasonable judgement and estimation;

(b) report the reasons for any serious deviation from accounting
practice; and

(©) prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless
it is inappropriate to assume that the Group could continue to
operate.

RARZEAN LK SR SR B R
BIEE B RSB M BERR 25 e
BR7%ZE BI| 300008 [ BF & B A #1851 3k 3
FIA Sy G FERE | W2 R E RSB )E
7405% [ BN BB _L AR VATl 142 2
RBEEEEN AT ] RAEBIFERER
SPRRME - TXEFTMBHEMERE L
MARBIZE 14AS6 EFEAE BN EXHER
RBEFBERHBHLBEEAETERIER
RERBE R - ZEEN R EIAE R

AR FEBRFRL -
RITERRHEMER

7452 B A 4R 17 B AR R B 8 SR I BB
B TR A M3 33 -

B 22

7R FM I 2 7 WA B R M
48 °

ERABERE

RBARREFHNAFEN MIBEESMA
B MARETIEEY  ARFNE#ET
BRABEPZE D 25%HARALTHEE -

ESRUBHRARENEE

REVEREEFAR S EM B FEREY
BHE e ZEMBHRRAEERQF i
PImASRERREFERE B GEE B
BAOREASEBEEZ A FFENMBR
B o EREZFVHHRRE EFE

@  RREMEMEEOEHHE
LB - AT RABHHNR
fit

b)) ERBERBEMSTERNR
P Rk

© IASEKEEEREVBRE K
BB AEEREFBELEATIRE o

RELCED — T —FFR

91



Directors’ Statement
EERE

The Directors are responsible for the proper keeping of accounting records
in order to secure the assets of the Company and the Group. The Directors
are also responsible for adopting reasonable measures to prevent and
check any fraudulences and irregularities.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept
re-appointment as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

Liu Xingxu Yan Yunhua
Director Director
24 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBETRE

P>
EY:

To the members of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd
(Incorporated in Singapore with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group”), which comprise
the statements of financial position of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2022, the statements of changes in equity of the Group and
the Company and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash flows of
the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the
Group, the statement of financial position and the statement of changes
in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the “Act”), Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS (I)s”) and International Financial
Reporting Standards in Singapore (“IFRSs”) so as to give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2022 and of the consolidated
financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the year
ended on that date.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority ("ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public
Accountants and Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF CASH-GENERATING UNITS (“CGUS")

The management has performed the mandatory annual impairment
assessments of the following CGUs with material allocated goodwill as at 31
December 2022:

Coal mining operations (“Coal mining CGU") with property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, coal mining rights, and goodwill
amounting to RMB813,504,000, RMB16,391,000, RMB233,434,000
and RMB25,361,000, respectively; and

Medical intermediate CGU with property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and goodwill amounting to RMB272,686,000,
RMB38,307,000, and RMB34,021,000 respectively

Management has determined the recoverable amount of the CGUs based
on value in use calculations using discounted cash flows projected for the
CGUs. As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the
key assumptions included budgeted sales, growth rates, gross margins,
operating costs, commodity prices and the discount rates that consider
the specific risks relating to the respective CGUs. Based on the impairment
assessments, management has concluded that the CGUs are not impaired.
We determined this to be a key audit matter because the impairment
assessments were complex and involved significant management
judgements and estimates in making assumptions about the future
market and economic conditions, revenue growth, margin and efficiency
improvements.

As part of our audit, we obtained an understanding of management’s
bases and processes to determine the carrying amounts and recoverable
amounts of the respective CGUs. We checked that the CGUs cash flow
projections were based on approved management budgets that reflected
business plans and the estimates of coal outputs and mining reserves of
the Coal mining CGU. We engaged our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing management’s valuation methodologies and the key
assumptions used in the respective discounted cash flow computations.
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We evaluated the key cash flows assumptions used by considering our
findings on past budget variances, comparing management’s budgeted
sales and operating costs to historical data and information on expected
efficiency improvements; corroborating these budgets against economic
and industry forecasts from external sources; and additionally in the case
of the Coal mining CGU, comparing the mineable reserves inputs that
budgeted sales are based on to the mines' proven and probable reserves
estimates provided by the relevant authority; and comparing commodity
prices used to external observable data.

We assessed the discount rates used by the management by comparing
to external data of comparable companies with support from our internal
valuation specialists. We performed sensitivity analyses of the impairment
assessments to reasonable changes in key assumptions. We also assessed
the adequacy of the Group's disclosures made on the impairment
assessments and related sensitivity analyses that are included in Notes
17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements and those disclosures
related to significant accounting judgements and estimates that are
included in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS
FORTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with the provisions of the Act, SFRS (I)s and IFRSs, and
for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are
properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit
the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain
accountability of assets.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’'s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY BN E

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to
be kept by the Group have been properly kept in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Lai Hiang.

Ernst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore

24 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
Notes (Restated)
B (1g&:7)
Revenue A 6 23,071,897 16,977,281
Cost of sales SHE AR (18,723,015) (12,873,163)
Gross profit EX 4,348,882 4,104,118
Other income and gains HAYIA Kz 6 187,293 169,368
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RO HEMATZ (529,379) (475,975)
General and administrative expenses —MITHAY (1,071,615) (934,618)
Other expenses EAs (87,200) (88,589)
Finance costs B TEAAR 8 (662,193) (583,370)
Impairment losses on financial assets S REERRESE 7 (9,806) (14,570)
Share of profits of associates FEILEEE A R] 4,675 1,232
il
Profit before tax BRBEATEF 7 2,180,657 2,177,59
Income tax expense FTiSHEFsZ 11 (372,482) (406,514)
Profit for the year FRER 1,808,175 1,771,082
Profit attributable to: FEAEEF) -
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEPE PN 1,326,211 1,295,445
Non-controlling interests PG RE T 481,964 475,637
Total comprehensive income for the year £ (2 UK A 4458 1,808,175 1,771,082
T
Earnings per share attributable to BARZSERER
ordinary equity holders of the parent BEAEGEERER
Basic and diluted (RMB cents per share) HARE#E 13 109.67 11057
(BRARES)
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Statements of Financial Position
Eji%;lﬁiﬂ:i As at 31 December 2022 R=—FE = —#+=—H=+—H

Group Company
rEE ¥

2022 2022 2021
—=E=-= —E__ T4
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT AR¥T T ARETT

Notes (Restated)
bFsa (g&eE7))

Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment 1% ~ E K& 14 19,457,875 18,058,005 - -
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 1,386,660 980,046 - -
Intangible assets EmEE 16 59,219 65,965 - -
Goodwill e 17 63,022 63,022 - -
Coal mining rights R SR 18 233,434 236,961 - -
Equity investments at fair value 1ZAFH{EFT A

through profit or loss BRI A 19 6,708 6,708 - -
Prepayments for purchases ~ BEE Y - HE M

of property, plant and R EIE B TR

equipment RIE 20 117,923 81,892 = -
Due from a related company ~ FEUXBEE N a5 IE 26 3,522 - = -
Pledged time deposits BHIRE BIER 27 23,833 9,700 - -
Deferred tax assets PR IAE B 37 84,737 102,523 - -
Other assets Hith &2 21 92,038 36,883 - -
Investments in associates REEERFIRE 41 107,318 95,643 - -
Investments in subsidiaries RIBARIRE 48 - - 2,014,915 1,717,275
Total non-current assets R EEARE 21,636,289 19,737,348 2,014,915 1,717,275
Current assets RENEE
Equity investments at fair value #Z A F{EET A

through profit or loss KRR & 19 11,817 13,076 11,817 13,076
Prepayments TER SRR 20 1,230,583 1,027,737 = -
Deposits and other receivables 1% & E 4th fE UL

IR 20 194,128 472,664 - -
Inventories ES=Y 22 1,699,459 1,607,385 - -
Other assets Hih&E 21 13,799 - = -
Derivative financial instruments  $74A % T & 23 9,827 28 - -
Trade and bills receivables H 5 EMGRIE &
EMEE 24 1,019,675 1,004,578 = -

Contract assets BHEE 25 6,084 - = -
Due from related companies/ FEULEAE N 7],

subsidiaries )= PNSIE O] 26 4,087 8,890 17,556 18,836
Pledged time deposits EEFEHRTER 27 571,663 743,845 - -
Cash and cash equivalents HWeMReEEY 27 1,469,765 893,116 2,032 7,634
Total current assets REBEEHARE 6,230,887 5,771,319 31,405 39,546
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Group Company
G AR
2022 2022 2021
—=E=-= —E__ T4
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETT BN E ARWETT N

Notes (Restated)
liEsd (1 =3))
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables & Z N FIE 28 645,698 774423 - -
Bills payable ENER 29 496,618 850,474 - -
Contract liabilities BHAE 30 1,514,349 1,079,227 - -
Accruals and other payables  fEZTE A &
Hith FEASRIE 30 1,936,448 1,815,284 15,710 15,589

Due to related companies/a  FEREEAF]

subsidiary [ D)EEYNET B erE] 26 71,632 81,166 1,200 1,886
Income tax payable FERT PSR - 167,337 - -
Deferred grants PEAEFHAL 31 10,426 9619 = -
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 3,738 2,541 - -
Interest-bearing bank and FTRIRITR

other borrowings HABER 33 5,556,085 6,402,213 - -
Other liabilities HitB & 35 6,280 5983 - -
Bonds payable ERES 36 299,481 198,222 - -
Total current liabilities B A AR 10,540,755 11,386,489 16,910 17,475
Net current (liabilities)/ RE(BE) BE

assets R (4,309,868) (5615,170) 14,495 22,071
Total assets less current HEERRBERE

liabilities 17,326,421 14,122,178 2,029,410 1,739,346

| DI I

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Loans from non-controlling  FEIEARIETR B

interests 32 48,800 47,800 = -
Interest-bearing bank and FHEIRTTR

other borrowings HAMER 33 6,779,442 4,966,562 - -
Deferred grants ERERH AL 31 72,068 71,881 - -
Lease liabilities HEBRE 15 19,513 20,717 - -
Deferred tax liabilities BERIREE 37 118,062 68,520 - -
Provision for rehabilitation IRIETEE 34 25,748 25,342 - -
Accruals and other payables  JE&HE F &

Hith A TRIE 30 589,384 549,896 - -

Other liabilities Ht&E 35 105,576 111,884 - -
Bonds payable JERTES 36 - 296,482 - -
Total non-current liabilities JEREIEEHEEE 7,758,593 6,159,084 - -
Net assets PEE 9,567,828 7,963,094 2,029,410 1,739,346

L N
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Statements of Financial Position
Eji%;lﬁiﬂa% As at 31 December 2022 R=—FE = —#+=—H=+—H

Group Company
AEE ¥
2022 2022 2021
—E-— S —=E—— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETT BN E ARWETT N
Notes (Restated)
iE=d ¢ =ely
Equity FEm
Equity attributable to [SINGIE 2PN
owners of the parent =
Share capital f&As 38 1,493,096 1,194,686 1,493,096 1,194,686
Special reserve R 39 4,127 4127 - -
Statutory reserve fund EEMES 39 665,869 511,091 - -
Other reserve Hbf#E 39 2,013,106 2,202,942 - -
Retained profits RE R 2,710,005 1,782,010 536,314 544,660
6,886,203 5,694,856 2,029,410 1,739,346
Non-controlling interests FEIERRAER 2,681,625 2,268,238 - -
Total equity R 9,567,828 7,963,094 2,029,410 1,739,346
| I
Liu Xingxu Yan Yunhua
215: /8 EAEE
Director Director
EF EF
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Statements of Changes in Equity

BEBEIR  rorme financial year ended 31 December 2022 {2 —F = =4+ =H =+—HIFH K F/E

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANTERAEL
Special
reserve Non-
Share  Statutory safetyfund  Retained controlling
capital reservefund Otherreserve  HERME profits interests  Total equity
k& EeRfEe AR REe  REER FEhEs s
(Note38)  (Note39) (Note39)  (Note39)
(W) (WaEse)  (Mdse)  (W&E39)
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
GEEl ARETT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTr ARMTR ARMTz ARET:R
Group r&E
At1January 2022 WZE-Z%-A-H 1,194,686 510920 2,202,942 4127 1780875 5693550 2267832 7,961,382
Ffect of adoption of amended standards  SRAVEIEATERINS/E - m - - 1,135 1,306 406 1,712
At1 January 2022 (restated) R=8=z£-f-A
(&3 1,194,686 511,091 2,202,942 4127 1,782,010 5,694,856 2,268,238 7,963,094
Profitforthe year,representing total RERRT - REERE
comprehensive income for the year ARAEE - - = - 136211 132621 48194 1,808,175
Acquisition of non-controling interests ~ WEBKTBAEIE
of subsidiaries FERER - - (190992) - - (19099)  (458%)  (236882)
Capital contrbution fom non-contolling. A SRR IRRE
shareholders of subsiciaies A - - 21,178 - - 21,178 64,972 86,150
Share-based payment IR Z [RES - - (21,169) - - (21,169) 28,782 7613
Issuance of shares Bid 298410 - - - - 298410 - 298410
Waiverof amount duetonon-controllng.  SAGIERRIER B
inerests FEENHNE - - 1147 - - 1,147 837 1,984
Transferto statutory reserve fund SETETER - 154778 - - (154778) - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling TNEHERER
shareholders HRE - - - - - - (e (17,278
Final 2022 dividends paid XRE_ERERE 0 - - - - (w3m8 (43439) - ()
At31December 2022 \ZE-C
+-A=1-H 1,493,096 665869 2,013,106 4127 2710005 6886203 2681625 9,567,828
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Statements of Changes in Equity

EZBEHR ore financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHHKF/E
Attributable to owners of the Company
KRAREAER
Spedial
feserve Non-
Share Statutory safety fund Retained controlling
cptal  resenefund  Otherresene RS proft Tota interests~ Totalequity
R irREe  EMEE REE  RERT o FARER o
(Note 38) (Note 39) (Note 39) (Note 39)
(W) (aEse) (W) (WaE30)
Notes RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000
i ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETr ARETT ARETH
Group r&E
At1January 2021 WoE=-£-F-A 1194686 200307 217760 4599 913,081 4530433 1893941 6424374
Profitfor the year representing total ERER RRERZE
comprehensive income for the year Yo\t (&5
(restated) - - - - 1295445 1,295,445 475637 1,771,082
Acquisition of non-controlling interestsof ~ AREEMIB 2 ARSI R E
subsidiaries i - - [40116) - - @16 (36217) (96333)
Capital contribution fom non-controling ~ FBAAIEERREM T
shareholders of subsidiaries & - - 1279 - - 12,7% 4206 55000
Share-based payment MRS AR - - 11419 - - 11419 - 11419
Waiverof amount due tonon-contolling  SREFEIERIERERFE
interests EHHE - - 1085 - - 1085 i 1877
Transferto statutory reserve fund (iestated)  ERE 7T HES (HE
i) - 30 - - (0784 - - -
Safety product costfund REERAAES - - - (47) 47 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controling TNEEERERNRE
shareholders - - - - - - (88121) (88,121)
Final 2022 dividends paid IH-E-FRERE 1 - - - - (16204 (116204 - (116204
At31December 2021 (restated) R-B--£+-R8
=t-A(&£E5)) 1194686 S0 200094 47 178010 5E%48%6 2268038 7963094
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Share capital Retained profits Total equity
&N R F B
(Note 38)
(Fft3E 38)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ANREFTT ARETIT
Company VNN
At 1 January 2022 R-EBE-_—F—H—H 1,194,686 544,660 1,739,346
Profit for the year REEHRR - 235,092 235,092
Issuance of shares BEITIRD 298,410 = 298,410
Final 2022 dividends paid (Note 12) SN ZEZ_FRERE
(Mf7E12) - (243,438) (243,438)
At 31 December 2022 7y - =
+=A=+—8 1,493,096 536,314 2,029,410
|
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—%—HA—H 1,194,686 481,293 1,675,979
Profit for the year REERER - 179,571 179,571
Final 2021 dividends paid (Note 12) SN —FREKE
(FF&E12) - (116,204) (116,204)
At 31 December 2021 R-B—-—F
+=A=+—8 1,194,686 544,660 1,739,346
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEBEERER  rorthesinancial yearended 31 December 2022 BE = FE = —F+=H=+—HILTHFE

2022 2021

—=E=-= T

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETT

Notes (Restated)

B (1g&:7)

Profit before tax FRAE A 32 ) 2,180,657 2,177,596

Adjustments for: KRR

Finance costs BATEAAR 8 662,193 583,370

Amortisation of intangible assets | A EHH 7 9,199 7,824

Amortisation of coal mining rights R R 5 7 3,527 3,486
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BB REE

equipment e 7 1,374,785 1,013436

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE 7 33,353 43,759
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEK

equipment HBEEBMEE 7 38,070 46,610

Bank interest income RITRLEMA 6 (36,692) (21,859)

Gain on other investments HAg & e 6 (551) (204)
Gain on disposal of derivative financial HEMESRITE

instruments Was 6 (317) (550)
Loss on fair value change of financial ST EMNATE

instruments HEER 7 1,259 2,988

Loss on fair value change of derivative PTES BT A

financial instruments NEEEEE 7 154 -

Exchange gain from bank loans RITERE R Was = (460)

Impairment losses on financial assets SRVEERRERTE 7 9,806 14,570
Impairment of property, plant and L IE YR

equipment EE 7 - 5,856

Impairment of inventories GFERE 7 27,537 10,650

Amortisation of deferred grants i R e B 8 6 (9,672) (10,152)

Amortisation of other assets HitbhEE#H 6,450 8,960

Interest accretion on bonds payable FERHEHFIBIE N 4,777 4812

Share of profits of associates FEAEES = N Rl A (4,675) (1,232)

Share-based payment expense VAR 9 SZ A B I =2 7 7,613 11,419
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2022 2021
—=E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
Notes (Restated)
B (1g&:7)
Operating cash flows before changesin ~ EEERBE K E
working capital He&ERE 4,307,473 3,900,879
Increase in inventories FEEM (119,610) (625,886)
Increase in trade and bills receivables E 5 e IE & R
=S| (27,833) (278,966)
Increase in contract assets BHIEEEM (6,084) -
Decrease in other receivables Ho A R IR IE R 371,575 147,063
Increase in deposits and prepayments FER K IBA ZRIEE h1 (202,846) (513,556)
Movement in balances with related RSN RAER
companies (8,470) 61,716
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills B 5 e B R RER
payables O,/ (482,581) 5,105
Decrease/(increase) in pledged time deposits £ &1 7E #3717 3¢
A, (3E ) 113,699 (46,110)
Increase in accruals and other payables FEET B R R EMER
FRIAIE N 588,383 344,583
Cash flows generated from operations RETEHEENRS
mE 4,533,706 2,994,828
Government grants received 2 SR R T 4 31 10,666 230
Interest received BeFIE 30,270 17,996
Tax paid EASHIE (192,098) (265,884)
Net cash flows generated from operating JE&FBHELNERS
activities REFHE 4,382,544 2,747,170
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHERSE
E
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand  HE¥E « E MR
equipment PRSI 62,012 127,884
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B E¥1% - [E K& # (3,750,998) (3,788,943)
Purchases of intangible assets BERLEE 16 (2,453) (10,404)
Purchases of right-of-use assets BEGRREEE (4,642) (18014)
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets & F REE EFS
A 267 2,719
Purchase of investment in associates BEREEARIRE (7,000) -
Gain on other investments received B HE AR B W= 551 204
Purchase of derivative financial instruments  BBESTESRIT A (9,636) (5,264)
Disposal of derivative financial instruments ~ HEPTESRIT A - 5814
Purchases of coal mining rights BB B (11,820) (41,400)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REFEIFTARESTE
REE (3,723,719) (3,727,404)
RELED T —FER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERESRER

2022 2021
—=E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
Notes (Restated)
B (1g&:7)
Cash flows (used in)/from financing BLESEE (FTA) A8
activities Heneg
Dividends paid on ordinary shares B E BB 12 (243,438) (116,204)
Dividends paid on non-controlling shares EAT IR AR (7 ] (117,278) (88,121)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U B IR AR A 2 (236,882) (96,333)
Injection by non-controlling interests IR ERITE 80,938 48,962
Payments of lease liabilities YREEaE 15 (5,168) (48672)
Repayment of a long-term bond EERHRGES 36 (200,000) -
Proceeds from loans and borrowings ERRERAEFIE 33 11,155,083 7,836,434
Repayments of loans and borrowings EEERRER 33 (10,221,450) (5,783,192)
Increase in pledged time deposits BT BB g N 44,350 -
Interest paid BRFE (636,741) (561,565)
Issue of shares BTG 298,410 -
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from BEEE) (FTA) B
financing activities RERBFHE (82,176) 1,191,309
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IHERBELZHEY
12 nF R 576,649 211,075
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#E & LIRS EEY
year 27 893,116 682,041
Cash and cash equivalents attheendof HFRBEERRLSZEEY
year 27 1,469,765 893,116
T

During the financial year, there were acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment with a total cost of RMB3,308,243,000 (2021: RMB3,929,560,000)
of which RMB406,000 (2021: RMB619,000) pertains to the provision
for rehabilitation. In addition, accruals and other payables increased
by RMB31,721,000 was unpaid (2021: decreased by RMB308,691,000).
Prepayments for purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
increased by RMB36,031,000 (2021: decreased by RMB38,168,000). The VAT
input was paid to gain the property, plant and equipment with a total cost
of RMB375,003,000 (2021: RMB206,242,000). The net cash outflow for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment was RMB3,750,998,000 (2021:
RMB3,788,943,000).
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Notes to Financial Statements

MEBRRMETE rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = — 4+ = H =+—HIF K F/E

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Singapore on 17 July 2006 under the Singapore Companies
Act and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The registered office of the Company is located at 80 Robinson Road, #02-00,
Singapore 068898. The principal place of business of the Group is located at
Xinxiang Economic Development Zone (Xiaoji Town), Henan Province, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The principal activity of the Company
is investment holding. Particulars of the Group's subsidiaries and associates
are disclosed in Note 48 and 41(a) respectively.

During the year, the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are mainly the development, manufacturing, and trading of related
differentiated products such as urea, compound fertiliser, methanol,
dimethyl ether (DME), melamine, furfuryl alcohol, furfural, 2-methylfuran,
urea solution for vehicle and medical intermediate.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of
financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
(International) (“SFRS (1)) and International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs").

For the purpose of SFRS (l)s, financial statements that have been prepared in
accordance and complied with IFRS are deemed to have also complied with
SFRS (I)s. SFRS (I) comprise standards and interpretations that are equivalent

to IFRS. All references to SFRS (I) and IFRS are referred to collectively as “IFRS”

in these financial statements, unless specified otherwise.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. The financial
statements are presented in Renminbi ("/RMB”) and all values in the tables
are rounded to the nearest thousand ("RMB’000") except when otherwise
indicated.

1. 2RAEAREEER

FELEMMEBER AR ([ARAR]) R
“EERFEATEHBREHINEARE
EFMEAMR I ER AR - HROR
EEBAERSMBRAR LT - XAFA
=F it 3% =5 B2 122 7 80 Robinson Road, #02-00,
Singapore 068898 ° ANE5 B+ 2 & 5 ih B 7
AR EEARILAE ([HE]) A EaHsm
AZSBERERE (NEE) - RARIME
DEBRIGEZER - AEBEME QR K
BNRZFFEDRIRM T4 K41 HE -

RAFE  ARFNBRRNEEXBR
e AESEEERE  EAE - FE -
C B RS R R 2-FE
KW - BAKEAR  BETEESHE
ERCEmR °

2.1 REEE

REB 2 HFEMBERR AR E 2P BN
R N B R O RTINS R
SR (R ) (1303 Bt 7% s = 22 Bl (0
iR ) 1) Re BAER B 75 o o 22 A (1 B B 755 ¥

A RS -

AT BREER(BR)ME - 2k
R B8 B 65 S o 4 B A 1) X0 588 17 0 B 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

The Group had net current liabilities of RMB4,310 million (2021: RMB5,615
million) as at 31 December 2022. After taking into account the cash flows
projection for the following twelve months from the reporting date, the
available unutilised banking facilities and exclusion of contract liabilities
(non-financial liabilities) of RMB1,514 million as at 31 December 2022, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group will have sufficient funds
to finance its operations and financial obligations as and when they fall due,
and accordingly, are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to restate the values of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e,, existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(@) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

Consolidation of the subsidiaries in the PRC is based on the subsidiaries’
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs. Profits reflected in
the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs may differ from
those reflected in the PRC statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries,
prepared for PRC financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations, profits available for distribution by the PRC
subsidiaries are based on the amounts stated in the PRC statutory financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

2.2 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
financial year except that in the current financial year, the Group has
adopted all the new and amended standards which are relevant to the
Company and are effective for annual financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022. Except for the impact arising from the amendments to
IAS 16, the adoption of these standards did not have any material effect on
the financial performance or position of the Group and the Company.

AMENDMENTS TO IAS 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
PROCEEDS BEFORE INTENDED USE

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibits entities from deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment, any proceeds of the sale of items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity should recognise the proceeds of the sale of items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendment must be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
when the entity first applies the amendment.

The changes arising from the amendments to IAS 16 have been applied
retrospectively and comparative information was restated in the year of
initial application. Please refer to Note 49 Comparative figures.

The amendments to IAS 16 do not have any significant impact to the
Group’s net profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 CEMEERERKZER
The Group has not adopted the following standards and interpretation  AEE I AREKA FIEAR AR R EE
applicable to the Group that have been issued but not yet effective: B B AR AR AER R 2R

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after

RT3 B #s 2%
Description FBNEERBLER
IFRS 17 Insurance Contract BUPR A RS R 1758 /R 1 January 2023
Ba# —T-=%#—A—H
Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or REEERIE 1 SRR HEE 1 January 2023
Non-current DI E I E) —T-=%—H—H
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: BIFR R 4ERIZE 1 5% K BPR B i s 1 January 2023
Disclosure of Accounting Policies ERBEBASE2RERIAN @85 —T-=F—H—H
Vg 0kid7 3
Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates Bt E 8 RIS A - @51 1 January 2023
FHHIESE —T=%—HA—H
Amendments to IAS 12: Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities BRast B 29 IBRT A ¢ Al 1 January 2023
arising from Single Transaction —XGELHWEERAEERBY —T_=%F—H—H
Amendments to IFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback PREATS RS LRI 16 RIERT A - 1 January 2024
E#HEHEE & —E-F—HA—H
Amendments to IAS 1: Non-current Liabilities with Covenants BIPRSFTERIE 1 RISETA « fiER 1 January 2024
SR EA B —E-F—HA—H
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sales or Contribution of Assets PREA TSRS 2ERISE 109 R BIFR & Date to be determined
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture SHERIE 28RIER] AN - EZE £ &
B\ aja & EF 2 FHE
EHELTE

The directors expect that the adoption of the other standards and ~ EEFEEIRM L K2R RZEE TS
interpretation above will have no material impact on the financial HEBXERAFENTERRELEEAY
statements in the period of initial application. 2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value
which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December 2022. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners of the parent, and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the
parent.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such
circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but does not
have control or joint control of those policies.

The Group account for its investments in associates using the equity
method from the date on which it becomes an associate.

On acquisition of the investment, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the investee’s identifiable
assets and liabilities represents goodwill and is included in the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair
value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment is included as income in the determination of the entity’s share
of the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

Under the equity method, the investment in associates are carried in the
balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of net assets of the associates. The profit or loss reflects the share of results
of the operations of the associates. Distributions received from associates
reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Where there has been a
change recognised in other comprehensive income by the associates,
the Group recognises its share of such changes in other comprehensive
income. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associates.

Where the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether
it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group's
investment in associate. The Group determines at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in profit or loss.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared as the same

reporting date as the Company. Where necessary, adjustments are mad to
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

China XLX 2022 Annual Report

3. TESTBEREE(E)

LN

Ll WNCIPSRIS SEICE: £ §0 = Pag:nl)
T R 48 TR SR TE (B 30 A ) = HL R 42 6
AEBRNERE °

AEBMBHEKREE QT2 BREAER
EHEABEARNRELETERERE

WIBIRER - RERAB B A S B RIS
BETORERIEEMBEZ A FEFHE
WA B ERE B AL AREREE
AEBRERRETAHMNEERARZ
RNHEFREIBIRE XA EREBO S
Wt NEENERBERSHBENERREG

B AR -

RIEHEZE - N—HBERRZRELK
RINAEERIER 2 AR FEEZWHEER
HEHABERBR - BaRREERE
’&722“‘ SXAE o REBE QR 2B WA
D IRBTIRREREE o W2 QR EA
EENSERES) - AAKEERNE M
EPHENGEREELS - REEERZEQ
AERZFELZAER AR  HHEEER
NI 5

WAKEDEBEARBRENRBBE
REERR 2 M AEB T ERE—F
BiE - BRIFEEAERHHARBE R A)E
RN

REMEDER  AEEEREREE®

ERAEEREE R RIRE R TREI
HMEERE ARERSHEHAREERS
FHEFEEBEERBE R ZRERBE -
MEEMLL - NEBAKRESRERBE
AAAWESREARAE ZRANE
SRR

e N R B HRR BARRREERE A
IR - HARE - Y STHBRELH
EPABAREE -2 -



3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

The Group’s principal operations are conducted in the PRC. The directors
have determined the currency other primary economic environment in
which each entity in the Group operates, i.e., functional currency, to be
RMB. Sales prices and major costs of providing goods and services including
major operating expenses are primarily influenced by fluctuations in RMB.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial
recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating
those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or
on translating monetary items at the end of the reporting period are
recognised in profit or loss.

For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated into RMB at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss are translated at the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. The exchange differences
arising on the translation are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or
loss.

China XLX 2022 Annual Report

3. TESTBEREE(E)

DFERE (&)

IR B EREN AV BHRABRANEE
IEEMNS  AREZBNSHEHRE
Ao B (ERE AP EFERREMS
BEANKEBERABB EEREEL
TRFRER -

WEEE

AEBZETEXRBRTEET EFETE
AEERERKENHEHMTIELEREE
B(AIREEE) BARE - =M m &R
BRHEBERMEIEXRA(BREELE
FX) TBEXARBKBTE AEEY
EERBETHIGEEY  MitASER

PG ERR 2B TIATIRE EHETE -

INER S

SNERZ ZTIAR R B R EWERRE R
M B2 WERFERE - XA
MR EBIRENR 5 B e ERE XS
MERARR - MINBEHENEREERE
BIRAERE RO EBEXRBE - REF
SERRAAINE T EREERIAR LIFR
5 AHIMERGE - RN FENINEFTE
HBFERIAR UEE A THEE AMERK

= o
>t

ARBEMRSEEREE BB EHE
B mELSREN ZRHERERAFER -

RETHEEAR  BIRBHEENEE
DRBERRNEXBERARE - M
HERRX5AHNRTERRE - BE
LM E H RN M 2 e R R
R HEBINRBE - BREZEESINE
B HEMbEEEZ BO RN BEwERDE

=7
e



3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family is and
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or a parent of the Group;
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(if) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 B4 = E = —F +=H =+—HIFHHFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset
and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(CONTINUED)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and plant and machinery
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

COAL MINING RIGHTS

Coal mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. A coal mining right is amortised over its
useful life using a unit-of-production method once production commences.
The coal mining right is written off to profit or loss if the coal mining
property is abandoned. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately are measure on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite life are reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category that is
consistent with the function of intangible assets. The estimated useful lives
are as follows:
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but
are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date
the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit or loss.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group recognises prepaid land lease payments as right-of-use assets
at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Refer to the accounting policies on Leases for more
details.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

FINANCIAL ASSETS
INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price as
disclosed in the section Revenue recognition.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through OCl, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed
at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through OCl are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no
recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables,
and loan to an associate and loan to a director included under other non-
current financial assets.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through OCl (debt instruments)

For debt instruments at fair value through OCl, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as
for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognized in OCl. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recognised in OCl is recycled to profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

3. TESTBEREE(E)
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Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity
investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCl
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCl. Equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.

(d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments, bills receivable, listed and
non-listed equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through OCl. Dividends on listed equity investments
are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established.

Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-
financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a separate
derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract
is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 B4 = E = —F +=H =+—HIFHHFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Derivatives (continued)

Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

DERECOGNITION

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e,, removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset When the Group
has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
DERECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and financial
guarantee contracts. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is recognised for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCl, the Group applies the low
credit risk simplification. At every reporting date, the Group evaluates
whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the internal
credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when the contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 B4 = E = —F +=H =+—HIFHHFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments
are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bill payables, certain
accruals and other payables, loans from a non-controlling interest, amounts
due to related companies, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
bonds payable.

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

(@) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

China XLX 2022 Annual Report

3. TESTBEREE(E)

TREERE (&)

ERHONTEMOX ARERRERE
EHREQ - AWM £#ETHERT &A%
BEARER R - BRI ERMKRAN
EHTT%E%f$$@ﬁﬁmEHFQ
1go8 7 FIRBURBI R TR A WFIER - £

BMEERHIRELD maﬁAﬁﬁ%W@
BRRERER  BHHESREE -
TREE

VT HER LT E

ﬁﬂ%@&@%%a#“ﬁ%Lﬂﬁl
RNHEFENEBEE  BEFMER - X
TERIEERBREPR L TANITE

[}
oA °

MEHRLBEER - oA TE
SHRIEHOREEEE AT A -

rEENERABERRESENT
BES: S %?fﬁ%%&ﬁ@ﬁﬁ
IR ER - BNBEER E ﬁ
BERT &ﬁm#ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%

zar

a) EFRRER

—

RIaTERIE - St BB MG KR A
HXAFTE - RIFTEFEALTER - &
AIEE R ERRAZE - WIARRARTI R
QETE%WM Yegs &%EFE%%W
FER - WEITERNREIHBIE -

At B R AR A E R B IR A R AR 5 F
— D MBI E SR B IA K B SR
MAZREEN - BERFZHHEBSNIE
PRI TERAS o



3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a
liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position, net
of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long-term liability on
the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction
costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments
are first recognised.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BONDS PAYABLE

Bonds payable are classified under loans and borrowings and recognised
initially at fair value. After initial recognition, bonds payable are
subsequently measured at cost because the effect of discounting would be
immaterial as their terms are relatively short.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits are recognised as an expense, unless the cost qualifies
to be capitalised as an asset.

(A) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund Scheme in
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to the
defined contribution pension scheme are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related service is performed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
(B) EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Group's subsidiary operates an equity-settled share-based
compensation plan and grants restricted stock unit awards to the Group’s
employees. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of restricted stock unit awards is recognised as an expense with
a corresponding increase in the non-controlling interests over the vesting
period.

The total amount of restricted stock unit awards to be recognised over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value which is the
market price of the stocks of the subsidiary on the date of the grant.

At each state of financial position date, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of restricted stock unit awards that are expected to vest and
recognises the impact of the revision of the estimates in profit or loss with
a corresponding adjustment to the non-controlling interests over the
remaining vesting period.

LEASES

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

GROUP AS A LESSEE

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASES (CONTINUED)
GROUP AS A LESSEE (CONTINUED)

(i) Rights-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of
the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Land 210 20 years
Plant and machinery 3to 15 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the
accounting policies in section Impairment of non-financial assets.

(ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease
liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they
are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

3. TESTBEREE(E)

B (&)
AEERAMEA (B)
0  EREEE

AREBERHEERR BB (AIEEEE #
ERBEM BRRACHEEE - EREEE
BB R E JRERETE
ViHERE A EMTEFLAE -
ERREECKABREEREERAELZ
TR BEEZYFERRA - ARRFA
B E#isk 2z BiYE L Z RIS N FORERE
WHEES - EAEEERERENHE
AREGHATERFHUABREELE) A
AR E (W TAR) ¢

3 2E 20
W= K i gs 3B 154

WRMEEENMERCEHENRERE
REBSAARREITEREEZRE - A
EREENMAHERFRAEE -

ERAREENTRIBETE - 5203k
BMEERE TSR -

(i) HEEE

REERB A AEEERZEERNR
RIEH 2 HENFRAEFEZHERRE -
HENHRBERERNR(BEEEEERR
TR ) AT (A A B AR R R W ERIE - BURN IR
BN R 2 A] B AH G RRIA LA K TR BAAR IR F
HREERERIN 2R HENFTERE
EHEHRMRAEEITER ISR ERE
- BRRIEEE 2 S5 - WIFBURR 5
Brak M R 2 PR BN SR IR B AR
ZEH RGN 2 RN ER AR (RIE
HEHREEFEMEL) °

RELCED —T - —FFRH

137



138

Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASES (CONTINUED)
GROUP AS A LESSEE (CONTINUED)

(ii) Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases of machinery and equipment (i.e, those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

GROUP AS A LESSOR

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or
loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good or service to the customer, which is
when the customer obtains control of the good or service. A performance
obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of
revenue recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance
obligation.

SALE OF GOODS

The Group is in the business of manufacture and trading of urea, compound
fertilizer, dimenthyl ether I, methanol, melamine, urea solution for vehicle,
furfuryl alcohol, medical intermediate and related products. Revenue is
recognised when the goods are delivered to the customer and all criteria
for acceptance have been satisfied.

The amount of revenue recognised is based on the estimated transaction
price, which comprises the contractual price, net of the estimated volume
rebates. Based on the Group's experience with similar types of contracts,
variable consideration is typically constrained and is included in the
transaction only to the extent that it is a highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting date, the Group updates its assessment
of the estimated transaction price, including its assessment of whether
an estimate of variable consideration is constrained. The corresponding
amounts are adjusted against revenue in the period in which the
transaction price changes.
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INCOME TAXES

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating
segments based on their products and the segment results are reported
directly to the management of the Company who regularly reviews the
segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to
assess the segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these
segments are shown in Note 5, including the factors used to identify the
reportable segments and the measurement basis of segment information.

CONTINGENCIES

A contingent liability is:

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group;

or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recognised because:

(i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
or

(i) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group, except for contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that are present obligations and which
the fair values can be reliably determined.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes 12 to the financial statements.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

INCOME TAXES

The Group has exposure to income taxes in Singapore and the PRC.
Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. The
carrying amounts of the Group's income tax recoverable, deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2022 were RMB72,891,000,
RMBB84,737,000and RMB118,062,000 respectively (2021: income tax payable
RMB167,337,000, RMB102,523,000 and RMB68,520,000 respectively and no
income tax recoverable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF CASH-GENERATING UNITS (“CGU")

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
coal mining rights and goodwill included in Coal mining CGU and Medical
intermediate CGU are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable in
accordance with the accounting policy for the impairment of non-financial
assets in the section of summary of significant accounting policies. The
recoverable amounts of the property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, coal mining rights and goodwill, or, where appropriate, the CGU to
which they belong, are calculated as the value-in-use. Estimating the value-
in-use requires the Group to estimate the expected future cash flows from
the CGU and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. At 31 December 2022, no impairment
loss has been recognised for the CGUs. Further details are given in Note 17
and Note 18.

COAL MINE RESERVE

The estimation of the Group’s coal mine reserve is inherently imprecise and
represent only approximate amounts because of the subjective judgements
involved in developing such information. There are authoritative guidelines
regarding the engineering criteria that have to be met before an estimated
coal mine reserve can be designated as "proved" and "probable". Proved
and probable coal mine reserve estimates are updated on regular intervals
taking into recent production and technical information about each mine.
In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year, the estimate
of the proved and probable coal mine reserve also changes. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting purposes and is reflected
on a prospective basis in related amortisation rates.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
COAL MINE RESERVE (CONTINUED)

The capitalised cost of the coal mining right is amortised over the estimated
useful life of the related coal mine reserve. The useful life is reviewed
annually in accordance with the production of the plants of the Group and
the proven and probable reserves of the coal mines. The carrying amount
of the coal mining rights at 31 December 2022 was RMB233,434,000 (2021:
RMB236,961,000).

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on its products, and has eight reportable operating segments (2021:
eight) as follows:

(i) Manufacturing and sale of urea

(ii) Manufacturing and sale of compound fertiliser

(ii) Manufacturing and sale of dimethyl ether (DME)

(iv) Manufacturing and sale of methanol

(v) Manufacturing and sale of melamine

(vi) Manufacturing and sale of urea solution for vehicle

(vii)  Manufacturing and sale of furfuryl alcohol

(viii)  Manufacturing and sale of medical intermediate

In the opinion of the directors, there were only limited operations in the
subsidiaries that are engaged in coal mining and the sale of coal and
the assets and liabilities were not material for the purpose of segment
reporting. Accordingly, a separate operating segment for the coal mining

business carried out by these subsidiaries has not been presented.

Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated
to form the above reportable operating segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of gross profit. Group
financing (including finance costs), income taxes and other unallocated
items, as explained below, are managed on a group basis and are not
allocated to operating segments.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market
prices.

ALLOCATION BASIS

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items
comprise other income and gains, other expenses, selling and distribution
expenses, general and administrative expenses, finance costs and income
tax expense.

Group assets and liabilities cannot be directly attributable to individual
segments as it is impracticable to allocate them to the segments. Assets of
the Group are utilised interchangeably between different segments and
there is no reasonable basis to allocate liabilities of the Group between
different segments. Accordingly, it is not meaningful to disclose assets,
liabilities and capital expenditure by operating segments.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. RK&o5H&ER (&)

>
_1_
A

=B R

paN-i1
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the segment resultis ~ ARAIEERBHOEEEREF -
the gross profit.

\u

SEGMENT PROFIT INFORMATION

Compound Urea Solution Furfuryl Medical
Urea fertiliser DME  Methanol  Melamine forvehicle alcohol  Intermediate Others ~ Elimination Total
Yearended 31 December 2022 & gaR ZFR FE Bk ERRENR BE BEMER i 45 it
Hz-g-CF RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
tZA=t-ALEE i ARMTT ARMTR  ARMTRL  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR
REVENUE WA
Saes o externelustomes BELHGER  6BOM3 61ISE 15T 223000 %6SM G631 611098 MOM8 40368 - BTy
nesegentsdes Hmue B 54788 ST U MRS 1A - R B -
Total revenue g\ 8,253,315 6,570,639 145201 3022325 1,186,084 720,806 622,552 440,448 4TIATIA (3764213) 23071897
Seqment resul DS 1,909,460 785,398 18826 (9,042) 475,456 120534 (17,3%9) 57,61 1,007,997 - 4,348,882
Reconciion: HE
Ineretincome LN 36692
Unalocated oherincomeand gans - RAREAHA
R 150,601
Unalocated expenses et FORET FE (1,693,325)
Fiance costs i (662193)
Prfit beforetx (i 2180657
Income taxexperse HEET (n48
Proftforthe year TEER 1808175
Other segment information: EhauEs .
Losson isposal propery plartand ~ HEYE « i
equipment Note ) TEENEE
(Hit7) 3070
Deprecaionofpoperty plntand. 9% + BT
equipment Note ) REAE
(it7) 1374785
Amorisafon ofinangbleasets BT/ EEES
MNte?) (it7) 9199
Depectioncirghtofuseasets  FHEAENE
(Note) (Ht7) 3335
Amorisafonofcod minngrights SRR RS
(Note?) liE2) 350
Capte expendiue’ ERER 331921
||
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, * BERRAZBEREYE  BEREE £
right-of-use assets and intangible assets. AEEEREBAE -
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5.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT PROFIT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

«7#541

mr

%Bﬁﬂ (lnﬁ)

(ompound Ure3 Solution Furfury Medica
Yearended 31 December 2021 Urea ferliser DME Nethanol Melamine ~ forvehicle deohol  Intermedliate Others— Elmingtion Total
(iestated) k& el i B cRER ERRERK BE  BEORR Hfb 3 oy
R 5--F RMBO0O RMB000 RIBO0D RMBO0O RIB000 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMB000 RMBO00 RVB000 RMBO00
TZAZT-BLEE (HE7) MRETL  ARETm  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
REVENUE WA
Saes o externel ustomers BERIER  sooes sl 48 M 120508 55748 8348% 18 SN (78
Itetseqent sdes PEIET W5 esdel W W 13I% 7 % SIS -
Totalrevenue 20N 5821891 4408308 1441199 1911122 1449521 708946 834913 509425 14044% (2592560 1697781
Segment et BEES 1571351 416% 171070 M58 734595 150668 116241 105847 574049 - 4lmng
Reconciton g
Inerestincome HESA 21859
Unallocated otherncomeandgains - RAREHIA
R 147509
Unallocated expenses, net FALRR 58 (1512520
Finance osts i [563370)
Proft before tax BT 21775%
Income taxexpense SRR (406514
Proftforthe year FEREA 177102
Other segment information: EhAuER
Losson disposal poperty partand. - £ ENE « i
equipment [Note ) hikEnER
(Hit7) 4610
Deprecition of property plantand 41+ BER:
equipment ote) B
(Hit7) 1013486
fmorisafon ofnengbleassets  EEEES
(ote ) liE2) 78
Deprecitionofightcfuseassels ~ (EFEAENE
ote ) (hst7) 8%
Amortiationofcoalminng ights  FETERRIRIER
Mot (Hst7) 3486
Captd expendiure’ U 4116710
]

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, right-

of-use assets and intangible assets including assets acquired from the acquisition

of subsidiaries.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

5. ReaIMER (&)

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION Hh B & R
The Group mainly operates in Mainland China. REEEZHEFBEAMHLE
Revenue from external customers: REINEBE P HIHA -
Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
(Restated)
(1&:%)
China: Central Region R AR 8,187,549 6,262,389
East Region Bl 15 9,957,501 7,305,483
Western Region PoEhlE 3,099,380 1,921,888
North-east Region FAb IR 1,251,626 931,773
Overseas AN 575,841 555,748
23,071,897 16,977,281
T

The revenue information of continuing operations above is based on the
locations of the customers.

INFORMATION ABOUT A MAJOR CUSTOMER

The Group had no customers from whom the revenue derived individually
accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue in year 2022
and year 2021, including sales to a group of entities which are known to be
under common control with that customer.

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after deduction of
relevant taxes and allowances for returns and trade discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

6. WA - HBRAR W ()

REBERUYA - E A A K& as 5 47 40
o

Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E-= T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARETIT
(Restated)
(FE5))
Revenue WA
Type of goods or service EmSREESE
Sales of goods* HESEm* 23,071,897 16,977,281
T
Timing of revenue recognition WA TSRS
At a pointin time A (RS R 26 23,071,897 16,977,281
T

* Please refer to Note 5 for disaggregation of revenue.

* BRI D - B2EIRES -

CONTRACT BALANCES
Group
AEH
2021
—s-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Trade receivables (Note 24) E S W TE (MFE 24) 470,624 341,551
Contract assets (Note 25) BHEE (H5E25) 6,084 -
Contract liabilities (Note 30) AHaE (HEE30) 1,514,349 1,079,227
]

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the Group's obligation to transfer
goods to customers for which the Group has received advances from
customers. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue as the Group
performs under the contract.
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

CONTRACT BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

6. WA - HBRAR W ()

BRI (E)
IATHIE B AT T EREREOBA T

Amount included in contract liabilities at the STAFUIEHEaBEZHIE
beginning of the year

Group

rEE
2022 2021
== —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETFT
1,060,775 805,464

]

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is summarised
below:

SALE OF INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the industrial
products and payment is generally due within 30 to 180 days from delivery,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally required.
Some contracts provide customers with a right of return and volume
rebates which give rise to variable consideration subject to constraint.

AEBBROEENHERERAT -

HEITEER

BHEENIREMINEETK @ iR
FORE AN R 1E302 180 KA B AT -
W EPREZABENK - A BHAE
PREREELIEDN - B &
PFRE(AXRH) o

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS H AR A R s
Group
rEH

2022 2021

—E—-— T4

Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000

Bt AR¥T T ARETFT

Bank interest income HRITFLEMA 36,692 21,859
Net profit from sales of by-products, water,  SHEBIEMR * /K ~ EX

electricity and steam FSTHY AR 75,470 89,087

Rental income HEWA 3,221 4,550

Amortisation of deferred grants PR A7 AL 5 31 9,672 10,152

Subsidy income IR 34,744 25,343

Compensation income HEW = 9,716 2481

Gain on other investments HA1% & W 551 204

Gain on derivative financial instruments PTHESRT RN 317 550

Exchange gains Al 5,543 235

Others Hity 11,367 14,007

187,293 169,368

T
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 B4 = E = —F +=H =+—HIFHHFE

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7. BRBLATEF
AEBEOBRBATRM IR (REA) -

Group
rEH
2021
—E-—F
RMB'000
AREBFT
Notes (Restated)
FfaE (FgE5))
Cost of inventories sold HEFERAK 18,723,015 12,873,163
Depreciation of property, plant and S J’r‘?ﬁb%j& P 14
equipment mITE 1,374,785 1,013,436
Amortisation of intangible assets ER A EEH 16 9,199 7,824
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELETE 15 33,353 43,759
Amortisation of coal mining rights VTG B £ 18 3,527 3,486
Minimum lease payments under operating 4% 447/ ’]IE—I—E’]E—&Q 15
leases: GiEE AN e
Factories B 6,061 5627
Buildings BF 30 93
Land T 495 83
6,586 5,803
Auditor's remuneration BRI S 4,550 4,188
Employee benefit expenses (including BERFHAX
directors remuneration: (BEEEFHH)
Salaries and bonuses i*%f&*é,ﬁl 1,335,709 959,925
Pension scheme contributions (defined BRE E‘I’%\Jﬁi\%(
contribution scheme) (REHFETED 148,658 119,461
Benefits in kind B 102,758 88,516
Share-based payment expense VARS A7 S A5 Y BB IS A 40
53 7,613 11,419
1,594,738 1,179,321
Impairment losses on financial assets SREBERBESE 24 9,806 14,570
Impairment of property, plant and ME - BB M 14
equipment* A ERIE - 5,856
Impairment of inventories* FERE* 2 27,537 10,650
Unrealised exchange (gains)/losses, net* REHE H B8
Wzs) - FER> (6,281) 750)
Realised exchange losses/(gains), net* IEERJ%TE'/
(Hﬁz §) 0 FE 737 (985)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - HER
equipment REEER 38,070 46,610
Loss on fair value change of financial TETANAFE
instruments through profit and loss, net* SE)EIE - JFRE 1,259 2,988
Loss on fair value change of derivative PTESMITARNFEE
financial instruments, net* B e EEE 154 _
Donations IgRE 6,458 11,867
]
* Included in “Other expenses”disclosed in the consolidated statement of profit or * BREEReEE KA EERRRPHKE

loss and other comprehensive income.
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8. FINANCE COSTS

8. BABERA

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BIERADITIAT -
Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Interest on bank loans, other loans and bonds IRITE  HER K
BRI E 660,887 581,439
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFIE 1,306 1,931
662,193 583,370
]
9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEME

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

KREEFEERTETHRAENME - BIE
FHRBIEE  FBEARNEHIE383(1)a@)
(b) () 2 () 1 J2 22 R e 91 365 2 88 9 (4R R
EHRESENNER) BTREOT ¢

Group

rEE
2022 2021
—E—_— —EB-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETFT
Fees we 1,050 1,050

Other employments: Hinp < -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYAS 2,576 2517
Performance related bonuses* ES PR 31,112 29,508
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 117 133
33,805 32,158
34,855 33,208
T

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonuses which are
determined as a percentage of the profit attributable to owners of the parent.

* RRARETHTESERESRASEE
BAIEERAE 2D L EERIFEAL -
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(A)  INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were

as follows:

9. EEM2R)
A BUFBITES

FANTELIFRTES 2RI ¢

Group

rEH
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETFT
Ong Kian Guan TR 300 300
Li Shengxiao TER 250 250
Ong Wei Jin TR 250 250
Li Hongxing TR 250 250
1,050 1,050

T

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-

executive directors during the year (2021: Nil).

China XLX 2022 Annual Report

FARERN TIBILIFRITE SR E N

(B -—F )



9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 9. EEME (E)

(B)  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (B) HITEERITHEH

Year ended 31 December 2022

Salaries,
allowances and
benefits in kind

e RER

BEMAz@
RMB'000
ARBT T

Performance-
related bonuses
ZEAL
RMB'000
AR%T R

Pension scheme
contributions
BiRe
FHEMER
RMB’000
ARBT T

Total
remuneration

TS
RMB'000

ARBTR

Executive directors: HITEE
Liu Xingxu ZIEE 900 13,336 - 14,236
Yan Yunhua e 681 10,472 39 11,192
Zhang Qingjin RES 681 6,654 39 7,374
2,262 30,462 78 32,802
|
Chief executive director: e,
Ma Tongsheng SRt 314 650 39 1,003
|
Salaries, allowances Pension scheme
and benefits in kind Performance- contributions Total
¥4 2B R related bonuses BiRe remuneration
Year ended 31 Decernber 2021 R ZIEIEAT STEIER st
HE-_Z——F RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
tZA=+—RILFE ARBTT AREBFT ARBTT ARETT
Executive directors: HiTES:
Liu Xingxu L 867 12,700 33 13,600
Yan Yunhua Baz 684 6,336 36 7,056
Zhang Qingjin RES 684 9972 36 10,692
2,235 29,008 105 31,348
Chief executive director: TR,
Ma Tongsheng ik 282 500 28 810
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAY EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2021:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 9 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2021: two) non-director,
highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

10. HERERSHFMES

AEEBAFENTERSFMEEBE=
FH(ZE—F: =ZR)EF - Hems
BEN EXHE BRESHMA(ZF
——F WA FEERSFHHEER M
TR -

Group

rEE
2022 2021
—=E—— T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R2MEEYH S 694 667
Performance-related bonuses Ex vzl 1,800 1430
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHE 78 72
2,572 2,169

T

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follows:

MeB T HE 2 NNIEES = EHMNE
EMHEABNT :

AR#1,000001 T2
AER#E 1,500,000 7T

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the five
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company is incorporated in Singapore and is subject to income tax at
the rate of 17% (2021: 17%) for the year.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to income tax at
the rate of 25% (2021: 25%). During the year, thirteen (2021: eleven) of the
subsidiaries were given the New/High Tech Enterprise Award as recognition
of their innovation and use of state-of-the-art equipment. This award
brought these subsidiaries a tax concession of a lower income tax rate (i.e.
15%) for three years since the subsidiaries awarded the New High-Tech
Enterprise Award.

The major components of income tax expense for the financial years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 are:

11. FBFHMAx

ARFRIIH ML+ RAE B
179 (=% = —2F © 179%) ) 15 B B A
BB -

WA E A3 77 FEER B M B IR IR AN SR B 4K
ERERNBZKRITOREGE -

biN/NS I O By RN D N Tl AN b =R g R R
FRE 5% ( —F — —F @ 25%) BUNTIIE -
RAFE HA+=R(ZZEZ—F : +—
R)MBAREESFRMEERE - U
BT EBHR AR R TR as s o
ZEBEFZENB AT BESHESIIT
MEHEBEER=—FANZEREMESHRE
K (B115%) FIFSER ©

HE-_Z2-_—_FRrR-_ZFE=-_—F+=A
=t BUHMBRFEMSHASIcTES
ST :

Group
rEH
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
(Restated)
(F&=E5))
Current - PRC BNER - AR EY
Charge for the year FEMXZ 300,184 413,135
Under/(over) provision in respect of prior years 3B FET R, (HB%E) Bifs 4,970 (22,905)
Deferred charge (Note 37) IRIEHRR (FF3E37) 67,328 16,284
Total tax charge for the year REERIBF T 85 372,482 406,514
]
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for the countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries

11. Fﬁ- ﬁrﬁﬁi(nﬁ)

AP BERERBBRRARRREME R
Tﬁﬁﬁl%ﬂ’]%mt%ﬂ—u BRI A F

Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

China XLX 2022 Annual Report

are domiciled to the tax charge for the financial year at the effective tax rate B IE R 2 EIR B R T R AT B e T 1B R 2
is as follows: HERIAT -
Group
TEH
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
RMB000 RMBO0O
AR® T ARETFT
(Restated)
(FeED))
Profit before tax BR A5 B a A 2,180,657 2,177,596
]
Tax at statutory tax rates REEREFENIE 545,164 544,399
Effect of a tax concession (as above) B EE g (0 i) (249,469) (163,618)
Withholding tax TEHIBIE 64,851 37,570
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIEEE 11,956 6,358
Expenses not deductible for tax kiR 5,325 8,794
Under/(over) provision in respect of prior years ~ BEFE TR,/ (HB5E) B 4,970 (22,905)
Income not subject to tax BARBIA (6,635) -
Effect of other concession HiEEs 2 (4141) (3,165)
Others Hity 461 (1,419)
Tax charge at the effective rate of 17.1% BREBRRE171% \
(2021:18.7%) (—=—— E 18.7%) st EHY)
BIAFI X 372,482 406,514
]
12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
Group
TEH
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETFT
Final dividend paid-RMB19 cents SRR - Eh il
(2021: RMB8 cents) per ordinary share AR 195 (_ T
AR¥85) 243,438 116,204
]
Proposed final dividend-RMB25 cents EEAHRE -SREER
(2021: RMB19 cents) per ordinary share AREESH(Z T ——4F
AR#195) 307,030 222,608
]
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the — RFREZEN KRR S AFAR B BRERMN

B ERITR R BFERE LHE - 1ARI{E

E o



13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares (inclusive
of mandatorily convertible instruments issued) of 1,209,288,000 (2021:
1,171,621,000), as adjusted to reflect the convertible bonds issued in 2011.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on the

FRAEBRERSTHE ARG

BREF

=]

515

EREAREERFCEIBREF AR L
BRESEEABRLFERGN @ MEHAE
R =T ——FE BT RRESH
L AR ANAE 9 801,209,288,000 % (B 3E T
BITHR BT R T R) (T - —5F:
1,171,621,000 B&) 5+

IR RN T 58 B R TR DA T B 5

following data: (Sl
Group
rER
2022 2021
—E-— T4
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
(Restated)
(5&:7)
Earnings B
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders AR ESRERREERT
of the parent, used in the basic and diluted M AR EBERERIFTA A
earnings per share calculation FE(E ST 1,326,211 1,295,445
]
Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
Number of shares Number of shares
& & E IR 8B
Shares idn)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AT EERERREERF
(inclusive of mandatorily convertible i & A AL NAE S 5 2R
instruments issued) for the purpose of (BIEE BT TR HI1E
calculating basic and diluted earnings per MR TA)
share 1,209,288,000 1,171,621,000
]
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Notes to Financial Statements
WERBRMEE  ror the financiar year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE = F = —4F+ = =+—HIHKFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRKE
31 December 2022 —E-—fF+=-H=+—H
Office

Otherfixtures equipment
and structures Plantand  and furniture Construction

Buildings EftEE  machinery HWAZE  Motorvehicles inprogress Total

B7 MEUREE RERER RERGR RE ERIR it
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O

ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR

Cost AR
At January 2022 R-E--%-5-H 2394085 3369975 13104742 540,064 188450 3379489 2976805
Effect of the adoption of armendments to S 16 FOERemEZ 0 R BIR
e - - 1,99 - - - 1994
At 1 January 2022 (restated) RoBZZE-A-BUEEF)) 234085 3369975 13,106,736 540,064 188450 3379480  22,978799
Additions hE 1,191 14,844 125,644 31,244 7592 310813 3308649
Reclassfication ENE 12332 1029656 3236825 109,344 1569 (4759,726) -
Transfersto ight-of-use assets (Note 19) ERzRREaE (M) - - - - - (a90m9)  (429079)
Disposals e (23,508) (14681) (445993 (8:436) (13,186) (8487)  (514291)
At31 December 2022 W_E-ZF+ZR=1-H 2754100 4399794 16023212 672216 204425 1290331 25344078
Accumulated depreciation Eﬂﬁ% :
At January 202 R 385,792 494599 3,519,044 310,784 110986 - 4821205
Depreciation during the year (Note 7 ERRE () 97,246 159234 102249 7,724 23,086 - 1374785
Disposals ﬁ‘i (8,795) (5963)  (288,344) (7,900) (10,886) - (321,888)
At 31 Decernber 202 RZBZZETZA=1-H 474283 647870 4253195 375,608 123,186 - 5874102
Impaiment: B
At January 2022 R-F-—%-f-H 8027 2097 71525 9 - 11,841 99,589
Disposals e (8027) (2,097) (77,265) (99) - - (87,488)
At31 December 2022 R-B-—E+-A=1-0 - = 20 - = 11,841 12,101
Canying amount: E'EWE :
At31 December 2022 RZBZZE+Zf=1-R 229857 3751924 11,769,757 296,608 81239 1278490 19457875

The Group has plant and machinery with a carrying value RMB1,968,110,000  ANSEEEHBREIES IS AR 1,968,110,000
(2021: RMB925,867,000) and RMB1,662,102,000 (2021: RMB1,563,211,000) TT(ZE = —% : AR¥925867,0007T) JA

respectively are mortgaged to secure the Group’s bank loans and financial BAREE1662,1020000(ZE=—F :+ A

lease payables (Note 33). R #1,563,211,0007C) BB R eS8 A&
EHRITERAREMN S REERMER
(B&E33) o
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14.

31 December 2021(restated)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14.

Y - BB R ()
—E-—-F+-A=1+—H(L=E)

Office
Other fixtures equipment and
and structures Plant and fumiture Construction in
Buldngs  EfEE  machinery BOZ  Motorvehicles progress Tota
BT WEnkEE RRREE  REREE B FRIE it
RMB000 RMB 000 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO0 RMBO00 RMBO00
Group FEE AEBTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  AR%TR
Cost AR
At January 2021 RZE=-F-8-H 1797407 2296388 9526562 42730 164940 5008660 1922177
Additions e 5507 823% 63812 18536 34042 377833% 3928467
Effect of the adoption of amendments to IAS16 FOEReENZ 65T R
e - - 1.9% - - - 1,994
Reclassfication EFip 644610 1122816 3716745 104661 810 (556964) -
Transfersto ight-of-use assets (Note 15) ERzpREaE (M) - - - - - (8614) (86142)
Transferfiom right-of-use assets (Note 19) e mEEEEE (Hs) - - 471 - - - 4712
Transfer from other assets EpEEER - - 185625 - - - 185625
Disposals HE (148%4) (20677) (2396) (4251) (1134) - (290429)
Transfer to construction in progress BEERRTR (38.545) (56,789) (573453) (6200 - 674988 -
At31 December 2021 RZEZ-FTZA=1-H 2304085 3369075 1310673% 540064 188450 3786198 23385508
Accumulated depreciation ZithE:
A1 January 2021 R-2-—F-H-H 36495 409610 2986457 MM 100562 - 4004366
Depreciation during the year (Note 7 ERFENET) 81911 116463 745465 49313 20,284 - 1013436
Transferfiom right-of-use assets (Note 19) i mEEEEE (M) - - 21095% - - - 20953
Transfer from other assets HEpEEER - - 93708 - - - 93708
Disposals it (6:440) (896) (15389) (3954) (9:360) - (183,13
Transfer to construction in progress BEERRTR (16174) (22488) (362230) (5817) - 406,709 -
At31 December 2021 RZEZ-FTZA=1-F 385792 494599 351904 310784 110986 06700 5227914
Impairment: Wi
At January 2021 RZEZ-5-A-H 11448 6075 %957 125 - 11,841 126446
Additions hE - - 5847 9 - - 5856
Disposals & (3421 (3979) (5279 (3) - - (2713
At 31 December 2021 RZE--ETZA=T-R 8027 2097 71525 % - 11841 99589
Canying amount; BEfE:
At 31 December 2021 W2 -ErZf=1-R 2000266 21813019 9510167 29181 77 464 3367648 18058005

REOEDN —T—

ZEFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

15. LEASES

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, plant and machinery
used in its operations. Leases of plant and machinery generally have lease
terms with three years, while land generally have lease terms between 2
and 50 years. The Group's obligations under its leases are secured by the
lessor’s title to the leased assets. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets and some contracts require the
Group to maintain certain financial ratios.

The Group also has certain leases of machinery with lease terms of 12
months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The Group
applies the 'short-term lease’ and 'lease of low-value assets’ recognition
exemptions for these leases.

(A)  CARRYING AMOUNTS OF RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised
and the movements during the period:

15. HE

AEBEELZEEERY  SERKLERH
REAMESELN - BB MERER - B
FHR=HENHERBER3IF ML
HENHEMBER2ENF - AEEE
HEPAAENEBHEEAHBEEEE
MFTERER - —RME - AEETEE
ENBHEEEE  MADANERALE
BMERAS E M REE R o

AEETEETHREE  BEHR 12
AT - THEREBENHARE - K

SEHRSHERMA [HHMHEE ] M EE
BEEME ] AR -

(A)  FERAEEENREE

TREHINZ PR EREAREENR
HERNLHEED

Land Machinery Total
+ b e st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®T AR®T
Group REE
As at 1 January 2022 N-EBE-_—_F—HF—H 975,098 4,948 980,046
Additions NE 4,642 6,177 10,819
Transfer from construction in WA TR (5T 14)
progress (Note 14) 429,079 - 429,079
Depreciation expense (Note 7) EER (M) (30,772) (2,581) (33,353)
Disposal HE (267) - (267)
Lease modification due to revision ~FUECKFHEAMETAAE
of lease term 336 - 336
As at 31 December 2022 N-—E-_—_F+-H=+—H 1,378,116 8,544 1,386,660
|
As at 1 January 2021 HW=—B=-—%—A—H 904,074 236,256 1,140,330
Additions NE 18,014 4,021 22,035
Transfer from construction in MR T IR e (MRt 14)
progress (Note 14) 86,142 - 86,142
Depreciation expense (Note 7) wEER (WiE7) (23,606) (20,153) (43,759)
Disposal HE 2,719) - 2,719
Lease modification due to revision  FE{ERFMHEAMIEF]FAE
of lease term (6,807) - (6,807)
Transfer to property, plant and HEEME - REMEE
equipment (Note 14) (FfF5E14) - (215,176) (215,176)
As at 31 December 2021 R-B=—F+=H=+—H 975,098 4,948 980,046
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. #HE (&)
(B)  LEASE LIABILITIES (B) HEET

=

5
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under ~ F&R#EIINZAFEEEE
interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the RREF) HERE R R EE

(B EE

period:
Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETIT
As at 1 January R—A—8H 23,258 72,541
Additions NE 3,628 4,021
Accretion of interest BB 1,306 1,931
Payments (NE-N (5,168) (48,672)
Lease modification HeE# 227 (6,563)
As at 31 December W+=-—B=+—H 23,251 23,258
T
Current BNER 3,738 2,541
Non-current FEENER 19,513 20,717
]
() AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS Q RIEREINEE
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: AT RRIB=ERN S
Group
rEH
2021
—E=-= —E -
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets TREEENEER (M7)

(Note 7) 33,353 43,759
Interest expense on leases liabilities (Note 8) HEBEMNBMAXZ (HiEs) 1,306 1,931
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in 2 AT EERE &

administrative expenses) (Note 7) BT ATTEEI ) (FF3E7) 6,586 5803
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RERERNEEE 41,245 51,493

]
(D)  TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW (D) RERLLHE

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of RMB11,754,000 in 2022 (2021: AREBR - ZE-—FWHERSRLER
RMB54,475,000). BAREN 754000 (ZZE=—F: AR

#554,475000 7T °
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Notes to Financial Statements
MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. EEEE
Patents Software Total
=H B4 et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AR¥ TR AR® TR
31 December 2022
Group
Cost:
At 1 January 2022 R-_E-——F—H—H 47,003 49,238 96,241
Additions NE 200 2,253 2,453
At 31 December 2022 R-EBE-——#+=-HA=+—H 47,203 51,491 98,694
Accumulated depreciation: KT E -
At 1 January 2022 RZZE-_—F—A—H 16,685 13,591 30,276
Depreciation during the year FRINE 4,432 4,767 9,199
At 31 December 2022 RIE_ZF+_HA=+—H 21,117 18,358 39,475
Carrying amount: BREE
At 31 December 2022 Ro-BE-——#F+=-fA=+—H 26,086 33,133 59,219
|
31 December 2021 —E-—%+=-A=+—H
Group AEE
Cost: PR
At 1 January 2021 RZE—F—H—H 38,528 47,309 85,837
Additions NE 8,475 1,929 10,404
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+-A=+—H 47,003 49,238 96,241
Accumulated depreciation: 2:HirE -
At 1 January 2021 R—E=-—F—HF—H 12,175 10,277 22,452
Depreciation during the year FRFE 4510 3314 7,824
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ—F+HA=+—H 16,685 13,591 30,276
Carrying amount: ARHEE :
At 31 December 2021 WZEZ—F+=-A=+—H 30,318 35,647 65,965
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17. GOODWILL

2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Group REE AR¥T T ARETTT
At 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 RZZEZ—F—H—AK
TR CFF A=+ 63,022 63,022
T
IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL EER BRI

Goodwill acquired through business acquisitions have been allocated to
following cash generating units (“CGU") for impairment testing:

Coal mining cash-generating unit;

Medical intermediate products cash-generating unit;
Furfural products cash-generating unit, and

Humic acid products cash-generating unit

COAL MINING CASH-GENERATING UNIT

The recoverable amount of the coal mining CGU has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a 27.5-year period approved by management.
The pre-tax discounted rate applied to the cash flow projections is 11.8%
(2021:11.1%).

MEDICAL INTERMEDIATE PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT, FURFURAL
PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT AND HUMIC ACID PRODUCTS
CASH-GENERATING UNIT

The recoverable amounts of the medical intermediate products CGU,
furfural products CGU and humic acid products CGU have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering continuity periods approved by management.
The pre-tax discounted rates applied to the cash flow projections are 17.4%,
19.7%, and 19.8% respectively (2021: 17.4%, 17.9%, and 17.4% respectively).

Based on the annual impairment testing, no impairment charge was
recognised during the year.

BREHEHWBENHEECDEENA TR
TEEEM(ReEELRM]) - UETTR
BRI

RIEF SRR S EE B
BEPREERREELEM
WEERRSELEMN - &
BERERREEE BN

AR FERIR & B A B A

HEREERSELEMMNITKESED
BEAEEFEAEEETY  MERAEE
TIRBREREIENYETESE AE%E
WE2/SFHEMNRSREBANGE - B
AR e RETRAFEA118% (=T =—F
11.1%) BUHTIREITIR -

BETHBERRSELEN BEEmM
ReEABUNBERERRCELSEM

Bt EEERRESELEN BEER
ReELBURRERERRSELS
AR El R E R FEREETEAEE
BE - MEREENFASEEBILEN
i EE AR REEEHRNRER
STEAE - HAR e R85 BIERA
174% ~ 19.7% K 198% ITIR BT/ (- F
Z—F  DRIERA174% © 17.9%%17.4%) °

RIBFREBERR - RNAFERL EHER
TRE R
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17. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

MEDICAL INTERMEDIATE PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT, FURFURAL
PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT AND HUMIC ACID PRODUCTS
CASH-GENERATING UNIT (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-generating
units is as follows:

Medical
Coal mining intermediate products
REMR BahERER

2022 2021 2022 2001
—g--f [l -

== —<— ==

RMB'000 RIVG{VCONE RMB'000 VGV

AERT RSl \RETT PGSRl \RETT GGl ARETT RN
1,528 1528 2112 2112 63,022 63022
T T T -

Carrying amount of goodwil

HEREE 25,361 25361 34021 3400
T

ASSUMPTIONS USED IN THE VALUE-IN-USE CALCULATION

The following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake the impairment testing of coal
mining CGU, medical intermediate products CGU, furfural products CGU
and humic acid products CGU:

0) BUDGETED SALES AND OPERATING COSTS

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted sales
and operating costs are compared to the historical data and adjusted for
management’s expected efficiency improvements and expected market
development.

(1) GROWTH RATES

The forecasted growth rates are compared to the historical data and do not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the industries relevant to the
medical intermediate products CGU.

(1 COMMODITY PRICE

The basis used to determine the value assigned to commodity price is the
expectation of future changes in the market.

(V) PRE-TAX DISCOUNT RATE

The pre-tax discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant unit.
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Furfural products

ZE-F e

—_F——

17. BHE(E)

EEF B ()
BudiEERRESELSEN  BEER
BeEASENNMNBERERRSELEN
€=))

SEREFReELNSEMANHERAMABN
T~

Humic acid products Total

BEER REBER it

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“EC-F bl T -F ekl —E - F
RMB'000 RUON  RMB'000 RUGONGM  RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT INREE

EREEERANRER

EXBERROTAL - BILEEEERIE
RensRAERERTEREELSEM -
BETRBERASELEN BEE®R
AeELEURBERERRSELEN
EITRERD

()  TREHERREERAR

FIREE T 4K R A B AR 4
EEREREL BR TR - FAREE
T 10 T AR B RS R AL
B -

)RR

TR R BB BRI TR - BT
BE SR RRA S E LB ARNTER
MR o

a  EmEg

AREEAmERNEEEBENEERT
ISRKEFETE o

(\v)  FAIITIRE

RAMBATITIR RSB ATY RARE 1R
BILRESRER °



17. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 17. BE(E)

ASSUMPTIONS USED IN THE VALUE-IN-USE CALCULATION FREEERANERR (8)

(CONTINUED)

With regards to the assessment of value in use for coal mining CGU, medical HATEEERTESELSMN - BEPHE
intermediate products CGU, furfural products CGU and humic acid products B E@mREEA BN - BEERBRSE
CGU, management believes that no reasonably possible changes in any £ B4 M BEEE mIR € ZE £ BB
of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the coal ~ BIEME @ EEER A T LIlEBR
mining CGU, medical intermediate products CGU, furfural products CGU s Z & IR A e F &I~ & FBUEEM I
and humic acid products CGU to materially exceed its recoverable amount. PELEN  BHEPHBERRSELS

i - BEEMRESEESNREERE SR

%ﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ’\]ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁi@ﬁﬂ%@ﬁ

18. COAL MINING RIGHTS

31 December 2022

18.

JE B B BR

Total
#BET

RMB’000
AR®F T

Group rEE
Cost: B AR
At 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 RZZEZ=F—A—AK
T _H+_A=+—H 265,374
Accumulated depreciation: REtiE
At 1 January 2022 RZEZ=F—H—H 28,413
Depreciation during the year FAFE 3,527
At 31 December 2022 WZE_—_F+-_A=+—H 31,940
Carrying amount: AREE
At 31 December 2022 W_T__—_F+_F=+—H 233,434
|
Total
[E
RMB'000
ARETFT
31 December 2021 —E-—-H+=-A=+—H
Group REE
Cost: B
At 1 January 2021 NZE-—F—H—H 109,570
Additions NE 155,804
At 31 December 2021 WZZE_—F+_-_H=+—H 265374
Accumulated depreciation: ZFHTE -
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=——F—H—H 24927
Depreciation during the year FRINE 3,486
At 31 December 2021 WZZE-_—F+-A=+—H 28413
Carrying amount: BRMEE -
At 31 December 2021 WZE-_—F+-A=+—H 236961
|
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

18. COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF COAL MINING RIGHTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group performed
impairment assessment on the coal mining CGU as disclosed in Note 17
to the consolidated financial statements, which include the above coal
mining rights of RMB233,434,000 (2021: RMB236,961,000), goodwill of
RMB25,361,000 (2021: RMB25,361,000), property, plant and equipment
of RMB813,504,000 (2021: RMB757,736,000) and right-of-use assets of
RMB16,391,000 (2021: Nil). The key assumptions are included in Note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Based on the annual impairment testing, no impairment charge was
recognised during the year.

19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

18. ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ*w% (IIE)
IR R SRR YR E RIS

HE_Z-_—_Frk-_FE-_—F+=ZA=
+—HLEFE  AEEHHEERERSE
& BT TIRE R (AR A B S SRR FT
7RI - e iE il IR EEA
R#233434000 T ( ZE - —F : ARK
236,961,000 7T ) & B2 AR ¥ 25361,000 7T
(ZZ=—F : AR¥25361,0007T) (M5
17) W% - BE Rk AR 813,504,000
TT(ZE=—F : AR 757,736,0007T) &
FAEEE AR 16391000 (T ——
FE) c FERBHNRGAE YV EHRERME
17 °

RIBFRBERR  NAFERL EHER
TRE R

19. BRAVEFABRSHRERE

PROFIT OR LOSS
Group
rEH
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETIT
Non-current IERE
Unquoted equity investment, at fair value: TR E - W ATE
PRC ik 6,708 6,708
T
Current TRED
Listed equity investments, at fair value: FTARIERE - IBATE
Singapore N 2,844 2,127
Hong Kong B 8,973 10,949
11,817 13,076
T
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19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

19. EAFEFABSNRERE

PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED) (&)
Company
RAFE
2022 2021
—E=-= T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREETIT
Current B

Listed equity investments, at fair value: FTRIERE - IBATE
Singapore i 2,844 2,127
Hong Kong B 8,973 10,949
11,817 13,076

T
LISTED EQUITY INVESTMENTS EokERE

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the listed equity investments are
classified as current assets because the directors of the Company have
intention to dispose of these investments in the forthcoming year.

UNQUOTED EQUITY INVESTMENT

The Group's investment in unquoted equity investment represent equity
investment in Manas Biyuan Water Supply Company Limited (“Biyuan”).
The Group has no control nor significant influence over the financial and
operating policies of Biyuan. The Group does not intend to dispose of them
in the near future.

The investment is carried at FVPL and the fair value as at 31 December 2022
is RMB6,708,000 (2021: RMB6,708,000).

RZE——FrR_FE-_—F+-_A=+—
B FREREHBEARDEE A
BARAARNEZRAREARAR—FREEZ

B -

FEMRERE

REE 2 IF E MR B TR I A TR
BERHKEREERR(ZIR]) KR
RE - ARBEFRAEANSEFEER
FE - AEBEERARRRKEEAHR

WERNFEFABRIE R -
F+ A=t HHNAFEAARE
6,708000 7 (=T ——4F : AR¥ 6,708,000
JC) ©
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. FANFKIE - ZEREMERR
RECEIVABLES b= |
Group
rEH
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREETIT
Non-current IERE
Prepayments for purchases of property, plantand B8 E¥% - BiE MR &
equipment ORI NE 117,923 81,892
T
Current B
Prepayments: TERFRIR ¢
Advanced deposits to suppliers AN ER RS 1,194,718 1,000,236
Others Hity 35,865 27,501
1,230,583 1,027,737
Deposits and other receivables: e RHEMEWFIE
Deposits b7 a 7,017 6,184
VAT and income tax recoverable FEYCSET 124,884 405,278
Others Hith 62,227 61,202
194,128 472,664
Total prepayments, deposits and other TENFRIA « me REM
receivables-current FEWGRIEABRE - R &) 1,424,711 1,500,401
T
21. OTHERASSETS 21. HEE
Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E_— T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFT
Non-current IERE
Deposits for finance leases mMEHERS 50,140 29,138
Prepayments for purchase of lands B8 T H B FRIE 38,668 -
Others Hity 3,230 7,745
92,038 36,883
T
Current B
Deposits for finance leases EVEHEFN 13,799 -
T
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22. INVENTORIES

22. FE

2022 2021

—E—_— —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%TR ARETIT

Raw materials at cost R A BRH) TR 583,978 749,081
Parts and spares at cost LR BRE BB R B E 265,644 213,641
Work-in-progress at cost R AR BRAITE R 29,558 32,262

Finished goods at lower of cost and net realisable  JARK 7N J2 A] B3R /R 288K &
value FFENERK SR 829,908 624,427
Allowance for inventory obsolescence FHIBHREE (9,629) (12,026)
1,699,459 1,607,385
T
23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. fT£E€mIT A
Group
rEE

2022 2021

—E-— T

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AREFT

Future KR _
Foreign currency swaps SN 2 H = 28
9,827 28

T

Derivative financial instruments are denominated in RMB and are secured
by time deposits of RMB2,753,000 (2021: 1,943,000) (Note 27).

PTEESMTAUAREE  WATEH
FE#HAR®275300 T (=8 = — 4 :

1,943,000) YEHEH (Bi97E27) ©
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

24. BEZRUWREREVRRE

Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETIT
Trade receivables H 5 EMGRIE 495,184 362,890
Less: allowance for expected credit losses B TREMEE SRS (24,560) (21,339)
Total trade receivables (Note 6) B S REGRIEREE (fize) 470,624 341,551
Bills receivable eSS 552,912 669,449
Less: allowance for expected credit losses B AR EESIERE (3,861) (6422)
Total bills receivable e R 4 RE 549,051 663,027
1,019,675 1,004,578
T

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on
terms of 30 to 180 days. They are recognised at their original invoice
amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition. The Group’s
bills receivables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms
of 90 to 180 days. Trade and bills receivables are denominated in RMB.

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly payment in
advance or on credit for certain customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.
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0E1BHNFEE - B S EUKFKIANEK
EBRAAREHE °

AEBHRETFNRZIHFREZREAMNK
B ATEFPXADBZEER - 85FA
EEHLER - NEESKERHE R
HIE) R WG IR R BB AE ) UREE E A
o BB ERSREIREEHEHN -
EN EXAt - RAKENE 5 RIKIR
DHRAESHNEF  MIEBEAEER
ShEE - NEEYN EHRZSTEHRT AT
A F R EMEERE ©



24, TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
RECEIVABLES THAT ARE PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as
follows:

24. BEZRWHREREBURRERE (&)
EEHERRIE < U RRIR

REBEE 5 RWFIAN R E BRI RE D
i (RIEHZE A RIREE) 0

Group

rEE
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
Within 1 month TEA AR 276,885 155,707
110 3 months TE3EA 68,152 106,227
3 to 6 months 3F6MEA 56,754 39,066
6to 12 months 6= 1218 A 68,833 40,551
470,624 341,551

I

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Group are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer based on
customer type and rating.  The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one
year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

KRB TR ABE BY R MR IR B A 23 HYOR
B REENDBEFER -

EEHERBE M B UIA RS T EHASE
EFERIFFBCHNBIEFPEH - R
BEBELR  AAREERSBANZS
BRHIERERE  REEEREIEEX
EE LSRR AR 28U

BRHEEEE

REREBHHRABERELETRED
i UEFEEMEEEE - BEXDER
BEFERINFENZETPETYEME
HN A EE - ATt ERREFARINE
R BERELANRESEMAIGNER
BIEEIR B AR N R R (R IR R
MEEEASEER - —RME - BHREK
FIRINR B HAER B — I B AR R BT
RENR) BRI T DA -
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The movement in allowance for expected credit losses of trade and other

receivables computed based on ECL are as follows:

24. EFRWHREREBURERERRE (&)

REEEE (&)

REFREEBRAENE S REMRERK
REMEHEEERBEESHNT

TRADE RECEIVABLES g 5 EWFIE
Group
rEER
2022 2021
—E—— T —4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETFT
At the beginning of year REH] 21,339 16,466
Written off i (2,137) (394)
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) EEEE - PR (MFE7) 5,358 5267
Atend of year FAR 24,560 21339
T
OTHER RECEIVABLES HAth FEUWFRIE
Group
4
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARETIT
At the beginning of year ) 18,436 26,598
Written off Hifi g5 (2,695) (11,032)
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) BEEE - B (MR 7) 370 2,870
Atend of year RER 16,111 18,436
T
DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES/SUBSIDIARIES FEN RRE N B BB A RIFRIE
Group
rEE
2022 2021
—=E—— T4
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETIT
At the beginning of year REH] 26
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) WIEETE - PR (M) 217 11
At end of year RER 254 37
]
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 24, BESRWFERENREE (E)

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (CONTINUED) FEHEEEE ()
BILLS RECEIVABLE EWEE
Group
AEH
2021
—E- 4
RMB000
AREFIT
At the beginning of year REH] 6,422 3,864
Written off H 58 (6,422) (3,864)
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) BEEE - FRE (M 7) 3,861 6,422
Atend of year RER 3,861 6,422

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the — FX#HJIGEAEEE FREUWFKIE - HA
Group's trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related FEUIGRIE - {5 3438 1 B P iy i U B s 1 7

companies/subsidiaries and bills receivable using a provision matrix: SHBARFERERNEENEERRE
ECL FOR TRADE RECEIVABLES B ZRKIENEREEEE
Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to2years Over 2 years
Ik DR-F 12F 254
2022 —ECCE
Gross carrying amount (RMB000) BEREARETT) 281,820 202,106 3,551 7,707 495,184
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BHEEER(ARET) 4,935 8,367 3,551 7,707 24,560
|
2021 B
Gross carryingamount (AMB000)  BRREE (ARETTT) 159,163 190331 3,559 9837 362,890
Expected credit losses (RMB'000 EHEEBRNRETTT) 345 4487 3559 9837 21339
|
ECL FOR OTHER RECEIVABLES Hh fe i IR R TR B E B e 18
Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to2years Over 2 years
Ik DR—F 12% 254
2022 —ECCE
Gross carrying amount (RMB000) BEEEARETT) 27,236 8,964 4,002 45,153 85,355
Expected credit losses (RMB000) EEEEER(ARETL) 449 613 156 14,893 16111
|
2021 —E8--%
Gross carrying amount (RMB000)  ABBREIE (AR TT) 28400 6714 31,883 18826 85823
Expected creditlosses (AMB00D) ~ BEEEEB(ARETT) 416 9% 856 17074 18436

|
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 24, BESEWHEREVELSE (&)
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (CONTINUED) EHEEEE (B)
ECL FOR AMOUNT DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES/SUBSIDIARIES JEEE RN T, B AR RIENTESEE
[E518
Past due
Current Less than 1 year 1to2years Over 2 years
L PRA-& 128 260
2022 —ECCE
Gross carrying amount (RMB000) BEEE(ARETT) 1,137 3,850 2,836 40 7,863
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BHEEER(ARET) - 226 23 5 254

2021 —EC-F
Gross carryingamount (RMBO00)  ERREE (ARKET L) 6902 1460 313 252 8927
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EEEEER (ARSI 1 8 1 17 37

ECL FOR BILLS RECEIVABLE

ERE RN ERER

Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to2years Over 2 years
Ik SR-F 126 25N E
2022 —ECCE
Gross carrying amount (RMB000) SEEAEAEYETT) 552,912 = = = 552,912
Expected credit losses (RVMB000) BHEEBR(ARETT) 3,861 - - - 3,861

2021 —E--E
Gross carryingamount (RMB000)  RREME (ARETT) 669,449 - - - 669,449
Expected creditlosses (AMB00D)  BEEEBBE(ARETT) 642 - - - 6422
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
BILLS RECEIVABLE

At 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed bills receivable accepted by
banks in Mainland China (the "Endorsed Bills") with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB3,833,008,000 (2021: RMB1,545,551,000) with maturity
ranging from one to six months at the end of the reporting period, to
certain of its suppliers for settlement of the trade payables due to these
suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Endorsed Bills have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, all risks and rewards
relating to the Endorsed Bills have been substantially transferred upon the
Endorsement. Accordingly, the Group has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables. The
maximum exposure arising from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Endorsed Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Endorsed Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Endorsed Bills are not significant.

During the financial years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
has not recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the Endorsed
Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement,
both during the year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has been made
evenly throughout the year.

25. CONTRACT ASSETS

24. BEZRWHREREBURRERE (&)
FEW R

R-ZT-—F+-_A=+—H K&EEP
mMEETHERSZSERBRANMERETH
I BREEBRE A A K% 3,833,0080007T
(ZZ=—%F: AR¥1,545551,0007C) B9
FEWEE(EEER])  WEEBENZSE
HEFNESEANRBE(EEZ])  BR
NFEREPHR—ZNEANRN - RIEFEE
AR EERIRA AR MPBERITERE
N EEEBRNEAAGERAAERER
RE(HEL2H]) - BE2RE HEEE
BEBEMNBABYRBRMEREELES
BEEEE - Bt - AEBEKRIEERE
EZENABNEZRNFTENZEER
B ALEBERBELOASEZEMERNY
BRARBRMBELOZESEZBRNRITER
ERE UHESENERABE - E5RAE
AEBRBEL2HESEZBENAFELTE
j( °

REBEEZE-_—_FR=-_FT=-_—F+=A
=+ —HAUEHMERFE  AEEWERERR
EENEFE A BT MRERER - R
FANREEHE - HERGFESHANT
AN BEERER - BEERBEFE
WEHED -

25. BHEE

31 December 2022

ATSISHEAKERE

Contract assets arising from:

35 & B dn

Sales of goods

Contract assets primarily relate to the Company’s right to consideration for
goods delivered but not yet billed at reporting date. Contract assets are
transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as at 31
December is within one year.

—_E__ —=E-
+=A=+-~ +t=A=t+—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
6,084 -
]

AREEXERATHERSAHERN
HRRKERNEDEIARENERNER -
BREENENZEREFRITHEEERIK
A e

BHET-_A=+—RH " FEitlEx&EES
RIEENRER—FA -
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Notes to Financial Statements
MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

26.
SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES/

Particulars of the balances with related companies and subsidiaries, in
which certain shareholders, executive directors of the Company are also
direct/indirect shareholders and directors are as follows:

26.

SHEEARMER RN

2021
T
Notes RMB'000 RIVIB(000
(b ARETR ARETFT
Due from related companies N O
Current: BNER :
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment %ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁ/b@/b{blﬁ%ﬁ 0)
o, [TD. BRAF 3,958 7,520
Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. /TﬁiL/U ELOEEIR
BRA 57 99
Anhui Xinlianxin Heavy Sealing CO,, LTD. K@/ULIUE’*” g2
BERA 45 72
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co,, Ltd. ﬂ?@/b@/bﬂi%ﬁ—li
SERGHERAR] 19 20
Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation %ﬁ?ﬁg?ﬁ@m bR Zes
Co, Ltd. BRATA 6 1,177
Henan XLX Jingmi Fengtou CO, LTD. /—JF'TL\L/L\ RS EE]
BRAA] 2 2
4,087 8,890
Due from a related company JERTRAE R ]
Non-current: JEBNHY :
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment o OE M TR 0)
CO, LTD. HREAF] 3,522 -
Due to related companies/related parties )‘Eﬂi F&é@@ﬁ/@%@ﬁ
TIE
Current: BNER :
Jiujiang Pengcheng Port Co, Ltd. JULIEHABE BE (i) (54,000) (52,536)
Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation FT48 it FH B % (iii)
o, LTD. BRAF (13,107) (3626)
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment 48T /08 0MbE T 345 (iv)
Co, LTD. BRAA (3,282) (24,197)
Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy CO, LTD.  JAlFA 38/ 0 3E L BER
BRAA (842) (428)
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group CO, LTD.  JAIFa DB LM T3
BRAF] (261) (261
Qingjin,Zhang RED (80) (60)
Yunhua,Yan EEES (40) (25)
Henan XLX Jingmi Fengtou CO, LTD. AR E R HER
BRAF] (14) (14)
Anhui Xinlianxin Heavy Sealing CO, LTD. ?@/D?@/Diiﬂi L}
BRAE] (5) (18)
Xinjiang Antai Shenzhou Fengtou CO, LTD. %ﬁéa;z%'%ml\ﬂsﬁ
BRAF] (1) ()
(71,632) (81,166)
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26.

BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES/

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

26.

ERENTME QRN

(%)

Company
AT
2022 2021
—E=-= T4
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BiEE AR%T ARETFT
Due from subsidiaries FELR B B A R FRIE
Current: BIES
Henan Heli Energy CO, LTD. A AR 1 BEIRAR 17 W)
BRAT 7,220 -
Henan Xinlianxin Chemical Group CO, LTD.  jAlmaELMEE T 2 )
SEBRNERRTA] 6,437 6,437
Henan Hydrogenpower Energy CO, LTD. AESIERERAF v) 3,899 12,399
17,556 18,836
T
Due to a subsidiary FE — KB A RIFRIE
Current: BPER
Henan Xinzhilian Enterprise Management ;] /O B B (b 35 78
o, LTD. GLEYNG] (1,200) (1,886)
0) Balances represent the down payments made for the purchase of () ERERF ST OEMETIRES

equipment from Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO,, LTD.
Further details are set out in Note 43(a)(ii).

(ii) Balances represent the other payables for the capital contribution
for the associate, Jiujiang Pengcheng Port Co., Ltd. from Jiujiang
Xinlianxin.

(ii) Balances represent the other payable for maintenance fees and anti-
corrosion expenses charged by Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion
Installation CO.,, LTD. Further details are set out in Note 43(a)(ii).

(iv) Balances represent the other payable for installation and
maintenance expenses from Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals
Equipment CO,, LTD. Further details are set out in Note 43(a)(ii).

(v) Balances represent the investment receivables from subsidiaries as

ended 31 December 2022.

The balances are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free and
the carrying amounts of these balances approximate their fair values.

(iv)

v)

RARBEERENE N - #E—
ST EEIB THEA BT RE 43(a) i) ©

BEARENLLEL RSB ERRIT
EHAEBERATLENEMERN
A e

SRET AR T AR M BT B A R R
R E € B AN D7 18 B B0 EL A JE A5 3K
THHREE o - PRIBIENM T
43(a)(ii) °

wertemmm O E M IRERR
NEILTEEREEBNHEMENK
T8 o #E — R8T EA BT 3E43) i) °

EHREEE T -1+ A
—t—HIFEERKHBRAGKRE
T

R AEEN  MBEREMNRREAZF
R REEEE A TERS
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

27. REeRREEEYUREER

TIME DEPOSITS ERFR
Group
rEE
2022 2021
—=2—_— B —F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
FaE AR® T AREETFIT
Cash and bank balances Be MBI 8 1,469,765 893,116
Pledged time deposits [REiEE I ET N
Current e 571,663 743,845
Non-current ERED 23,833 9,700
2,065,261 1,646,661
]
Less: Pledged time deposits: B BT EIER
Pledged time deposits for bills payable MENZEC R 29
M E TR (217,687) (325,668)
Pledged time deposits for bank loans FIRITERE I
BV RE BRTF X (168,400) (212,750)
Pledged time deposits for L/C PASFAEREM
and others [mELeHoRE
= (206,656) (213,184)
Pledged time deposits for derivatives POTHE T AR 23
#ITE B R (2,753) (1,943)
Cash and cash equivalents Re kESEED 1,469,765 893,116
]
Company
RAF]
2022 2021
—E=-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETTT
Cash and bank balances, representing the cash 38 MIR7T456% @ 18RS
and cash equivalents NIReEEY 2,032 7,634

At 31 December 2022, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB1,375,030,000 (2021:
RMB869,590,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
TIME DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

28. TRADE PAYABLES

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

27. REeRREEEFYUREIER
EHFR (&)

RITIF IR B B RITI BN R 6y F 8 A =
REAE - EREMERNF—HE=(E
AzBmrZ2HE  REAEEAER
EFRME - WIZE B NEHERFHRA
REREAE - RITERNDERERIE
T2 A] Se R AT B R A SRV ERTT ©

28. EBHZEMNNIEA

25 (1 BORI 55 B K A0 B2 9 1 (1R

Group

rEH
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT AREETIT
Within 1 month TE A AR 469,717 498667
110 3 months TE3EA 86,675 179,668
3to 6 months 3E6MEA 37,820 48715
6to 12 months 61218 A 25,666 19,789
Over 12 months 12{E A LA E 25,820 27,584
645,698 774423

I

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on
terms of 30 to 90 days. Trade payables are denominated in RMB.

29. BILLS PAYABLE

The Group’s bills payable have an average maturity period of 180 days and
are non-interest-bearing. Bills payable are denominated in RMB and are
secured by time deposits of RMB217,687,000 (2021: RMB325,668,000) (Note
27).

B HEMFTEARB N —MRN30E90HA
BB - BHEMNTIBUAREE -

29. EBNRE

AEEMEMNEZEHRFHR180BNEIH -
BARE - BNEBUAREE - WA
FHERAR®E 217687000 ( ZF = —
F 1 ARM 32566800070 ) A (T 27) ©
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Notes to Financial Statements

MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

30. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

30. ESEARHEMENSTE

Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
Current: BNER :
Accruals fEETE
Accrued expenses FEET 423,160 334,981
Accruals for construction costs and purchases BREBALNEEDE  BE
of property, plant and equipment RERERTER 1,151,688 1,182,296
1,574,848 1517277
T
Other payables ELAh e FRIE
VAT and other operating tax payables IR{E N H A R A T IR 25,983 17,088
Tender deposits wiEiZ e 119,298 124,015
Others EAh, 216,319 156,904
361,600 298,007
Total accruals and other payables (current) FEET B A R H A e 58
FEEE ) 1,936,448 1,815,284
T
Contract liabilities (Note 6) SH8E (Mite) 1,514,349 1,079,227
T
Non-current: JEENER :
Other payables related to the construction of ERME - BB NERE
property, plant and equipment ZE M ER FRIE 589,384 549,896
T
Company
RAF]
2022 2021
—E—— —EB-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFT
Current: ENER :
Accruals FEEtE R
Accrued expenses e 15,710 15,589
T

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of six
months.
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31. DEFERRED GRANTS

31. IEZEMEEY

Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETIT
Cost: B
At 1 January m—H—H 146,052 145,822
Received during the year FAUER 10,666 230
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 156,718 146,052
Accumulated amortisation: N S
At 1 January R—H—H 64,552 54,400
Amortisation during the year FNEEH 9,672 10,152
At 31 December W+-—A=+—H 74,224 64,552
Net carrying amount: BREDVFE -
Current e 10,426 9619
Non-current FERED 72,068 71,881
82,494 81,500

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, deferred grants related
to government grants were given to the Group for the construction of
production plants and installation and building of machinery to implement
energy-saving production methods and to reduce production cost. They
are amortised over the useful lives of the related items of property, plant
and equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants. During the year, aggregate government grants of
RMB10,666,000 (2021: RMB230,000) were received by the Group.

RN_E-—F+-_f=+—HE T —
F+-A=1+—H AEEERERM
WELE BRI MEL - EREERE I
MR R EREES - B BEITELER
EEAFAERIEEERDS - WIRIEEREY
¥ BEAKXBEENAFERAFEE -
AEBWHEEZE/HM AN RETIRGE
HKAREE - NFERN - BB RAERR
F it AR%106660007T( ZF — —4F ¢
AR 230,000 7T) FFEEE o
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32. LOANS FROM A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

32. FEREZEN

Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
Loans from a non-controlling interest R R E R 48,800 47,800
Less: Vo
Current portion BNEAER 7 = -
Non-current portion JEENEREL 5 48,800 47,800
]

In 2022 and 2021, the loans from a non-controlling interest are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and are repayable only when cash flows permit. The
loans are not expected to be repaid within the next twelve months from
the financial year end hence classified as non-current liabilities.
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33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 33. GFTEBITREMMER
BORROWINGS
202]
“E-E
Contractual Contractual
interest rate Maturity RMB'000 interest rate Maturity RMB000
Group 1£E AHRIE AR ARETT RHRIE 5I%A ARETT
Current ik |
Bankloans ROER
- secured -BER 3.85%4.1%(b) 2023 833,419 30440 m 389365
“E-CE “ECF
- Unsecured = i 27%-6.24% (o) 223 4132624 300%-652% 02 5444639
“BoCE S 2
Loansfrom leasing company/ ~ RERAEF/EXH 430%(d 2023 590,042 465 02 568209
finance lease payables HERE k- dat:3 S 3
5,556,085 6402213
Non-current b it
Bankloans HITER
- secured -EHA 5.25%6% (b) 202402027 892,205 5.23%-6% 2023 102027 543,500
ZE-mEE _BCEE
TECtE I
- unsecured = i 3.65%-6.2% a) 2024102027 5,422,550 2705:6.20% 2023 102007 394803
ZE-MEE _BCEE
- 3 “BotE
Loansfiom leasing company/ ~~ BELFEF/ExH 430%(¢) 2024102025 464,687 465% 2023 10204 474819
finance lease payables mﬂﬁfﬁf -3 ZFICEER
ka3 2
6,779,442 4966562
12,335,527 11368775
| ] |
RELED —T - FFHR
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33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 33. FFERITREMER(E)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFT
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: AERBIRITER
Within one year or on demand —FARIREREER 4,966,043 5,834,004
In the second year BE_F 3,634,656 2,080,704
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EFRF
(& 2,680,099 2,241,039
Beyond five years hFE - 170,000
11,280,798 10,325,747
Loans from leasing company/finance lease ENHEEARER
payables BENE
Within one year or on demand —FARIREREER 590,042 568,209
In the second year F_F 362,120 332,883
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EFAF
(%) 102,567 141,936
1,054,729 1,043,028
12,335,527 11,368,775
]
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33.

Notes:

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s bank facilities amounting to RMB12,848,354,000 (2021:
RMB9,996,000,000), of which RMB7,579,079,000 (2021: RMB7,605,553,000) had
been utilised as at the end of the reporting period, are unsecured.

The Group's bank loans of RMB1,725,624,000 (2021: RMB932,865,000) are secured
loans. The current bank loans amounting to RMB720,145,000 are secured by the
pledge of certain of the Group’s bills receivable amounting to RMB3,745,000
and time deposits amounting to RMB168,400,000. Besides, the current bank
loan amounting to RMB113,274,000 and non-current bank loan amounting
to RMB892,205,000 are guaranteed by property, plant and equipment of
RMB1,968,110,000.

The loans from leasing company of RMB1,054,729,000 (2021: RMB1,043,028,000)
are secured by certain of the Group's items of property, plant and equipment.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, all the bank loans was
denominated in RMB.

33.

i

(@)

FTERIT R E AR (&)

REB AR 12848354000 T( —F = —
F 0 AR #9996,0000007T ) B IR 1T AL &
B B AR 75790790000 (ZF=—
F: AR¥7,60555300070) Rk EERE
EEA - THEEE -

RNEBERRTERARB1,725624,000
7ﬂff**¢ AE%%M@%W@
BEERBER HETERARE
720,145,000 JL AR £ B & ?%WiEAE
AR 3745000 R E B E AR
168,400,000 TLYEHE R o Ltoh - BNARERITE
AR 113,274,000 T R FEENEAE XA R
892,205,000 7T 1 A EE ¥ 1,968,110,000 7T
B - R RRBRMHER -

HAERARERARE1,054,720000 T (=F
——F  ARHE1,043,0280007T) HAEE
BTV - BE RE&EEE EER -

RZEZ—F+-A=F+—HZZT-_—%F
+ZA=+—8 " FIERITEFAARE
FTHE °

FELED T _FFH

187



Notes to Financial Statements
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33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 33. FFERITREMER(E)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of liabilities (excluding lease liabilities) arising from ~ BMEGBELEZABEB(TEEHEAR) 2

financing activities is as follows: HERWT -
Non cash changes
RSB
2021 Cash flows Other 2022
Group X5H —F_F HeRe Hith —2--
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETFT AREFT ARBTT
Loans from a non-controlling IR ER
interest
- non-current k) 47800 1,000 - 48,800
Interest-bearing bank and other TRIBTREMER
borrowings
- current -RE 6,402,213 (3,075,248) 2229120 5,556,085
- non-current -FERE 4,966,562 3961743 (2,148863) 6,779,442
Bonds payable ERRERES
- current - & 198,222 (200,000) 301,259 299,481
- non-current -3ERE 296,482 - (296,482) -
Total 5t 11,911,279 687,495 85,034 12,683,808

188 China XLX 2022 Annual Report



33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

33. FTRBITREAMMER(FE)

Non cash changes
EpY
Foreign exchange
2020 Cash flows movement Other 2021
Group X&E —TCEF RERE 32k Hi —EC-—F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFL AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Loans from a non-controlling FEREZER
interest
- current - & 24870 (24,870) - - -
- non-current -FmE - 47,800 - - 47800
Interest-bearing bank and other 51 84817 R EMER
borrowings
—current -RE 4,137,660 681,504 (460) 1,583,509 6,402,213
- non-current -JEmE 5210059 1283871 - (1527,368) 4,966,562
Bonds payable [ENBEESR
- current o) - - - 198,222 198222
- non-current -ERE 489,892 - - (193,410) 296,482
Total a@st 9,862,481 1,988,305 (460) 60,953 11,911,279

The ‘others’ column relates to reclassification of non-current portion of loans
and borrowings including obligations under finance leases due to passage

[Efh] — P EHEAREECERTIBER K
AR 2 IERBEI D FE

fER(BERERE

of time, interest accretion on bonds payable and reclassification of finance ~ TEZFAA SIEIN M B EHERNFIAE
lease payables to lease liabilities. DEREEBERM -
34. PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION 34, WMERE
Group
EE
2022 2021
—E-— B —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR% T ARBFTT
At the beginning of year REH] 25,342 24723
Additions NE 406 619
At the end of year RER 25,748 25,342
]
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

34. PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION (CONTINUED)

A provision for rehabilitation is mainly recognised for the present value of
estimated costs to be incurred in complying with the Group’s obligations
for the closure and environmental restoration and clean-up on completion
of the Group’s mining activities. These costs are expected to be incurred
on mine closure, based on the estimated rehabilitation expenditures at the
mine when the mining licence expires, and are discounted at a discount
rate of 4.65% (2021: 4.65%) for the year ended 31 December 2022. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates. Over time, the
discounted provision is increased for the change in the present value
based on the discount rate that reflects current market assessments and
risks specific to the provision. The periodic unwinding of the discount is
recognised in profit or loss as part of interest expenses.

35. OTHERLIABILITIES

34, MERE (E)

MEREETERBAERR TR AEEF
BEERETAERIRRMENSENE
B EERGF R ARIRERR o RIBK
BT A BB AR LA ETIRIES - %
ZRATERH S ERILBERAREL - WIKE
AR _F+ZA=+—BILFENIT
I ERa65%( —ZF = —F 1 465%) Frif o
BRERNED A SR EHTEEERY
2 BEESHNER  THRBHEEENK
BRE BT S A A M2 B E S T R A TR
EKHIREEFMIL I - EEERITANIE
mP R AT BRI —ID -

35. HthaE

Group
rEE
2022 2021
—=E—— —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AERETTT
Accruals for purchases of coal mining rights BERIBEENETER 111,856 117,867
Less: N
Current portion mEhE s 6,280 5,983
Non-current portion ERBNE D 105,576 111,884
T
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36. BONDS PAYABLE

36. EES

Group

rEE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARETFT

Analysed into amount repayable: DT RENEE
Within one year —FR 299,481 198,222
One to five years RE—FEZERF - 296,482
Current BNEA 299,481 198,222
Non-Current JEBNEA - 296,482
299,481 494,704
T

The bonds of RMB200,000,000 each issued in 2018 and 2019 have a maturity
term of five years and three years respectively; bearing fixed interest rates of
6.98% and 5.70% per annum respectively. In May 2020, the Group issued a
bond of RMB100,000,000 with a maturity term of 3 years and a fixed interest
rate of 5.20%. The bond issued in 2019 was fully repaid in November 2022.

NRZE—NFRZE-NFETHARE
200,000,000 T EHF D RIRAF R =F K
BIHA - R [EE FF R 6.98% K 5.70% 51 8. °
RZEBE_ZEFRA AEEETARE
100,000,000 TTHIfE S » BIHEFH B =4 -
BETEFFE520%:T8E - RZZT—NF
BITNESFCN T - _F1+— AHEE
% °
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B RREIEE  For the financiar vear ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F+ A =+—HIHTKFZE

37. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Group
A%

37. EIEHIE

AFEERENMBEGEREEZFBEAN
T~

EERAEE

Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries
W B R
Total
st

ATFEER
AP EAE
(Note a)
e
RMB’000
AR¥T R

Withholding tax
FENBE

(Note b)
(Mi=Eb)
RMB’000
AR®TR

RMB’000
ARMF T

At 1 January 2021 RZZEZ—F—H—H 30,126 20,017 50,143
Deferred tax (credited)/charged FREIEZEE GEA) B

to profit or loss during the year IRIEFR IR (F3E11)

(Note 11) (2,605) 20,982 18,377
At 31 December 2021 and 1 RZEZ—F+=A=+—H

January 2022 KRN —_E-——F—A—H 27,521 40,999 68,520
Deferred tax (credited)/charged FAREBIE GIA) /B

to profit or loss during the year IRIEFRIR (FIFE11)

(Note 11) (2,605) 52,147 49542
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+-_H=+—H 24916 93,146 118,062
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37. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 37. EEHIE (&)
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS EERIAEE
Loss available for
offsetting against
future taxable
profits
K SH AR IR Deductible
A RBRF 2 temporary
REIF differences Total
HIEEE FNRERES et
(Note )
(P &E )
Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TEE AR%T R ARET T ARET T
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—H—H 38,765 61,665 100,430
Deferred tax (charged)/credited FREBZE GIA) /HBRE
to profit or loss during the year RIERIE (B 11)
(Note 11) (4414 ) 6,507 2,093
At 31 December 2021 and 1 R —4F+=-_A=+—H
January 2022 ERZFE_—_F—H—H 34,351 68,172 102,523
Deferred tax charged to profitor G R{EEZSIRFIRR B R AL FL 18
loss during the year (Note 11) GESR (13,206) (4,580) (17,786)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZ=F+=-A=+—H 21,145 63,592 84,737

Notes: M e
(a) Deferred tax liabilities arising from fair value adjustments upon acquisitions of (@
subsidiaries represent the deferred tax liabilities on the fair value uplift of the
net tangible assets owned by the subsidiaries, arising in 2010,2014, 2017,2019
and 2020. The deferred tax liabilities are amortised to the profit or loss over the
estimated useful lives of related assets.
(b) Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied (b)

on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign investment enterprises

established in Mainland China for earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower

withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland

China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group made provision for

deferred tax liabilities on withholding tax at 5% of the forecasted dividend pay-

out of the earnings of all its PRC subsidiaries because the directors believe that

the PRC subsidiaries would pay out all their earnings as dividends.

U B BT A Rl E AR O A FE SR M E £ HY
EERAABRER -2 -FF  —F—0
FTAF CE-AFR-TCF

FEEMBARMER BV EEFERZN
R IR RS < RERA R BT AR
BEMGHEMFHRaEN -

REPECEMAERE L _TTLF
TZA=+—RBRZWEmAET BRI
MSNEIRE D ERFIMNEEE SRS
@ﬁ@%m%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ°%¢ﬁww&
BIMEREBEER BIEREER] A WBIERGD - Al
REMNAMV XA EM - AEBER
Hoeh B T8 22 R 69 P 8 B M) 9 TROB SR AR
B 5% BURIET IR B EFHR TR EE
RAEERARTEMBARITESEME
BRERRBBIRE

FELED T _FFH
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

37. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(©) Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the tax losses
amounted to RMB97,857,000 (2021: RMB65,325,000) as in the opinion of the
directors, it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. The tax losses of PRC subsidiary can
only be utilised within the five-year periods commencing from the year in which
the loss is incurred.

38. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of ordinary shares

EEREE

Issued and fully paid BEITRAE 1,228,121,000

The share capital is equivalent to Singapore dollars (“SGD”) 296,373,860 in
2022 (2021: SGD 231,590,960).

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when
declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share
without restrictions. The ordinary shares have no par value.

39. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

SPECIAL RESERVE

The special reserve refers to the safety fund accrued but not yet used for
high-risk production.

China XLX 2022 Annual Report

1,171,621,000
I

37. EERBE(E)

BieE - (&)

(© KRERAMBEENECHBEEAESEAA
R¥97857000 (=T = —F: AR¥
653250007C) * AR TEERKER
7t B B Al AR BLE K AR KB TR IE &8 - H
BT A R F B A B E ] R ELZEE
FEBTRFHANEA -

38. KA

Amount
&8
2022 2021

—E—— T4
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARMT T ARETTT

1,493,096* 1,194,686*

A% AN FE S — T — = 47 296,373,860 1 11
Wra(FmEr) (ZEZ—FHEERN :
231,590,960 FT N IT) °

ETERFEEAGEEEARARAETIRAK
B AT RREE - SmReE
HEE -

39. f{#E

AEERANFEMEBEFENFESRR
BFREHC R RaEHRAZT -

15 Bl

Bl R tE = B AR EE P R ATHE W R R A
HREBES o



39. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
STATUTORY RESERVE FUND

In accordance with the Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise Law applicable
to the subsidiaries in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required to make
appropriations to the Statutory Reserve Fund (the “SRF"). At least 10% of
the after-tax profits as determined in accordance with the applicable PRC
accounting standards and regulations must be allocated to the SRF until
the cumulative total of the SRF reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the SRF may
be used to offset any accumulated losses or increase the registered capital
of the subsidiaries. The SRF is not available for dividend distribution to
shareholders.

OTHER RESERVE

The other reserve mainly consists of acquisition of non-controlling
interest shares of subsidiaries, capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and waiver of the interests generated from loan
from non-controlling interests.

Further details of employee benefits reserve are included in Note 40 to
these financial statements.

40. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS RESERVE

This reserve represents share-based payments arising from the issuance of
Restricted Stock Units ("RSU") by the subsidiaries, Henan Shenleng Energy
CO,, LTD and Henan Xinlianxin International Business and Trade CO., LTD to
its employees.

The RSUs are generally vest over two to three years and the employees
must remain in service for a period of two to three years from the date of
grant.

In 2022, 7,450,000 RSUs with average subscription price of RMB1 per unit
were granted. (2021: 10,000,000 RSUs with average fair value of RMB2.25 per
unit were granted).

RMB?7,613,000 share-based payment expense was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB11,419,000) with a corresponding
increase in the non-controlling interests recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

39. f#fE (1)
EERES
BIEEBRFENEATNINEGEEDE

% REMBRARABRRELERER
(DEEMEER]) - REBEERNTEG?

J &ﬁ%#i%ﬁmémﬂmz$m%
WESEREETHES BEE2ETHRES
Eﬁ%%u+§§%EEiii I:Z Z KB A Rl E &
B9 50% o ¥ FEARE P BB L 1R - VA ERE
HEr] BERIEE A Rt B8 g NS

MERARMNEMER - EZEREES TR A
RABREH R E DK °

HAvf#

HipfE w2 B mU BB D m SRR
@A ~ M A RIHE AR AT E R
RIFERAE S E T TE LS o

EERAFEROE - TFBHR AT B
RMFFE40

40. ERERAFHE

ZEE BB R AR LB RZ LR
MAERABMAEEE TREN UKD
SRR o ZFEBHRIMERE BN
(RSU) ETEIRH -

REIMEREELBETRNMNFE=FAR
B EECEERTHERESEREME

BE=fFo

RZZEZZF  ERETFHIRBERETE
i AR #1708 7,450,000 17 R HIl ME AR Z &8
M(ZEZ—F: REFHRBERTE
iz AREE 2.25 70H 10,000,000 173 BR Il 14 A% 22
B{7) o

AR 9 S B BB AR i R St AR 18 7,613,000
T(ZFE=Z—F: AR 1141900070) B
REZE-ZFE-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
R WHERARA IS RR NI
RIFEEIE K -
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

41 (A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group's investments in associates are summarised below:

41, EXKEHt

41 (A) REFE R RIIRE

REBREE A RIRER AT -

Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E—— —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARBFT
Jiujiang Pengcheng Port CO, NI BBER AR
LTD. ("Pengcheng’) (TZ# 1) 96,620 91,094
Huanong(Beijing) E-commerce CO, LTD. EEULR)EFREARAR
(“‘Huanong” (TEED 6,212 -
Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. S EEOEDERAR AT
(“Lingtong") (F8@]) 4,486 4,549
107,318 95,643
T

During the financial year, the Group acquired 25% interest in Huanong with

a consideration of RMB7,000,000.

REFE » REBNUKEARE 7,000,000

TOUEEZE R B 25% HE S o

Place of
registration

Nominal value of Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
=L AR AR R AMEAREE FRAEERERD L TEEH
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F

Jiujiang Pengcheng PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000,000 30% 30% Cargo handling,
Port Co,, LTD FELREAM AR 300000000 storage
("Pengcheng’) * EMENRE

JULZ AR
BRAR([Z#])

Henan Lingtong PRC/Mainland China RMB15,000,000 35% 35% Gas operation, and oil
Xinlianxin Energy hE BRI ARY 15000000 retail
Co, LTD. ("Lingtong’) MR 2B A

AMERLELER TE
BRAR(ER])

Huanong (Beijing) PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 25% - E-commerce
E-commerce Co, LTD. RELRERH AR 5000000 BFEH
("Huanong”)

R (UER)ETEHK
BRAR(TEED
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 41.

41 (A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Aggregate information about the Group's investments in associates that are
not individually material are as follows:

Total comprehensive income net of tax

The summarised financial information in respect of Lingtong, Pengcheng
and Huanong, based on its IFRS financial statements and a reconciliation
with the carrying amount of the investments in the consolidated financial

XS0 (E)

TJ-A FE/_\T ( )
EBAREERE S AFIRE (GEERIEX)
HEEEERINT -

Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E-— T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AERETTT
2 W e R R A 4,675 1,232
]
AR I8 L B B B 7 R 5 A R Y B IS SRR A %

= A
/\/ZVTIZI

FAE®

MBRETPRERDENER - §
EHARERNMBERBED

statements are as follows: N

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION MR KR E

2022
—E_—
RMB’000
Lingtong EE AR® TR
Inventories FE 180
Trade receivables B 5 EMGRIE 1,064
Other receivables H A FEURIE 2
Other current assets HttmeEh&eE 3,167
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEE 12,147
Trade payables B 5 ERHIR (1,091)
Accruals and other payables EEtE A R EMENRIE (2,652)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BN EF SRR #E ) FEEER 12,817
Proportion of the Group's ownership REEHEFREMLL R 35%
Group’s share of net assets AEFELFEE 4,486
|
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Notes to Financial Statements
MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 41. XEBEHG(E)
41 (A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 41 (A) REFE R TIIRE (8)
SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) AR RBE (8)

198

2022
—E—=
RMB’000
Pengcheng E41 ARBT T
Other receivables HAb EYGRIR 33,130
Other current assets Hibmeh&eE 257,037
Property, plant and equipment Y ] 467,819
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R E A FER FRIE (40,378)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings sHESRITREMER (395,541)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEFENR B FEELE 322,067
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBGEEEANLL X 30%
Group's share of net assets REEEGFEE 96,620
|
2022
—E-=
RMB’000
Huanong E--4- AR¥T T
Other receivables HAb ENGRIE 7,267
Other current assets Himeh&eE 17,065
Property, plant and equipment W -~ B MR E 1,166
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R H R 508 (544)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTERIT REMEK (106)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEFAENT BN FEEES 24,848
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBEBENLLE 25%
Group's share of net assets AEEELFEE 6,212
|
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41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

41 (B) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

interests is provided below:

41. XEBEH(E)
41 (B) EAIFIEMRAET

BEASFER R M B R R 15 E
FIEAR

2022 2021
—E—_— —F-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETTT
Percentage of equity interest held by non- IR ERISTE R RRELLF)
controlling interests:
Henan Xinlianxin Chemical Group CO, LTD. AELEMEET ¥EE
P G R A 7] 23.57% 23.69%
T
2022 2021
—E—— —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFT
Profit allocated to material non-controlling 4l 5 & K FEIERETZ AR
interests: F
Henan Xinlianxin Chemical Group CO,LTD. AEOEMEE T ¥EEE
R BIR AR 107,914 68,274
Capital contribution from non-controlling L )ESNCIELS 2 e D)= )
shareholders of subsidiaries 37,319 42,7206
Acquisition of non-controlling interests of WEEME R RIB IR IR 2
subsidiaries (73,704) (56,217)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ST T IR AR R 2R O AR (30,357) (39,367)
Accumulated balances of material non- HE A HAFFIER SN
controlling interests: ZETEREE -
Henan Xinlianxin Chemical Group CO,LTD. AELDEMEE T EEE
BRIDBR A 358,852 298,650
T
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Notes to Financial Statements
MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

41. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

41 (B) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of the
above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

eliminations:

41, EXKS/(E
B) EAIE#ER

TERART L HEA
Ko mENS
S

R ()

TE’JE“HM‘X%{

BMINETRBIREHER <

2022 2021
—E=-= T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
Summarised statement of profit or loss: BRRPE ARBT T ARETT
Revenue from contracts with customers REEPE DA 23,736,145 15,316,723
Cost of sales SHE KA (18,551,544) (10,699,524)
Gross profit il 5,184,601 4617,199
Profit before tax FRBE A& R 2,212,587 2,001,759
Income tax FriSHi (311,309) (378,326)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 134 4% % = 4 10 & B %5 F 1,901,278 1623433
Total comprehensive income 2HREEZE 1,901,278 1,623,433
Attributable to non-controlling interests FEIENR R RS PR 107,914 68,274
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests AT T IR A AR 30,357 39,367
T
2022 2021
—E-= T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
Summarised statement of financial position: B IR R RELE : AR®ET T AR¥ETF T
Inventories and cash and bank balances T8 ReMRITHES ORE) 3,500,415 3,037,116
Property, plant and equipment and other non-  #13 « iR N 2@ M H A
current assets ERBEE 22,965,628 21,107,444
Trade and other payables JFEASHBR R HoAth B A5 5k 1B (4,413,294) (4/403,172)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowing and FTEERTT R H A BRI AT
deferred tax liabilities "RAasE (13,092,081) (12/475,275)
Total equity MR 8,960,668 7,266,113
Attributable to: AT AT RS -
Equity holders of parent (SYNCIL ERESYSUN 8,601,816 6,967,463
Non-controlling interests IR A RE i 358,852 298,650
]
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42. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital and other commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

42, EiE

REBRHREMREEG AT EAR R A5

Group
rEE
2022 2021
—E-= —TE-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFIT
Capital commitments B ESE
Contracted, but not provided for: BRT4BARBE -
Buildings Bg¥F 108,457 351,694
Plant and machinery R Mo s 243,191 1,085,455
Coal mines B = 165,610
351,648 1,602,759
]
Other commitments H A dE
Purchases of raw materials BB RV E 350,014 550,618
]

RELCED —T - —FFRH
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 B4 = E = —F +=H =+—HIFHHFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related

parties during the year:

43. BEIXRS
@ BTELE

ER R R R E A 50 St

E’Js&%ﬁ\\  ANEE B A G N ELREE
ET NI S -

2022 2021
—E-=F - —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MiE ARBT T AREFT
Sales of electricity, water and steam to; * FATREHEKEREA (i)
~ Jiujiang Pengcheng Port Co, Ltd. - NIZHABERAR 1,777 1,295
—Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. —AEERLNELR
BRATE = 45
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, LTD. # —F LB TR
BEAF - 9
1,777 1,349
T
Sales of goods and raw material to: FATREHEERR
JRATEL :
—Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. —AEEBLELR
BRAF] 298 125
~ Anhui Xinlianxin Fengtou CO, LTD * - ZROELHBEBRAR 29 -
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, LTD. * - T OB MY TRk
BRARN - 162
327 287
T
Purchases of equipment and service fee expenses from: R TARIBER
&Hlﬁ’xﬁiﬁ (i
- Jiujiang Pengcheng Port Co, Ltd. - NUIEHAABERAT 57,165 16,264
~ Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation CO, LTD.* - ¥ 4B & 2o
BRAR) 24,165 7453
~ Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, LTD. * B :ir il /UL/MKI;@{%
EEL 10,271 30778
~ Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy Co, Ltd. - ﬂ?ﬂﬁi@b%/bﬁﬁﬁ
BRAF 508 14,360
~ Anhui Xinlianxin Fengtou CO, LTD * - REODELHBEAR AR 5 -
92,114 68,855
T
Purchase of goods or raw materials from: FATAREERE M
JRATEE : (i)
—Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy Co, Ltd. —AREBLELR
BRAF 4,791 1713
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, LTD. * - mOEMETRE
BRAR) = 61
4,791 1,774
T
Operating lease income from: REUTRBEERERA
~ Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co, Ltd"* -FBmOEMETRE
BRAF 353 210
T
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a (continued)

43.

(a)

BELFRS (&)
(8)

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MtE AR¥T T ARBFT
Service income from: REUTRAIR RS
WA ()
— Anhui Xinlianxin Fengtou CO, LTD * - ZRLENEBEBRAR - 34
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, LTD. * - T @M TS
BRRF" 19 19
—Henan Xinlianxin Jingmi Fengtou Co Ltd —AELNEOERETE
BRAF: 19 19
— Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group CO, LTD/ —AmLENME T EE
BRAF 19 19
57 91
]
Loan guarantee from: REUTREIRERER
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, LTD. ¥ -FBmOEMETRE
BRRF - 10,000
]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

These companies are subsidiaries of Henan Chemicals Equipment CO,, LTD.,,
which has common shareholders with the Company. The Company’s executive
directors and executive officers have certain equity interests in Henan Chemicals
Equipment CO,, LTD.

The amounts represent gross sales of by-products.

The sales of electricity were made according to the unit cost of electricity
announced by the Henan Province Development and Reform Committee ORI

BERNNERZES

mutually agreed terms with reference to the sales contract between the parties.

). The sales of water and steam were made according to

The purchases of property, plant and equipment were charged based on the
mutually agreed terms with reference to the sales contract between the parties.
The service fee expenses were the maintenance costs, which were charged by
Jiujiang Pengcheng Port Co,, Ltd,, Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation
CO, LTD,, Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO,, LTD., Henan Lingtong
Xinlianxin Energy Co,, Ltd. and Anhui Xinlianxin Fengtou CO,, LTD respectively.

The purchases of goods and raw materials were charged by Henan Lingtong
Xinlianxin Energy CO., LTD. from which the group purchased fuel oil, spare parts
and gas respectively.

The service income represents brand royalty paid by related parties.

GEE

(ii)

(iff)

(iv)

ZERA AL TREERQFEME
AA] - E(C TR R EARRTRBRIERA
Rl > KARHMITESZ RITRA BRI
ETREERAREEE TIHE -

ZETBRRRBERNHEEE

HWEENDIRBEIAEERNAEZES

RPEVE S BAIRAVES © HE KR
FATIRIRIHE S KR N R E 2 15
RAEL -

BEWE - BELREDRIZHEESHE

T%Eﬁﬁ%mZ%ﬁwm AR5 8 2

BEEER  DRIHVIEREEBERA

A AT AN R & \ﬁ@Aa‘ﬁ%
mEMEIREERAR - AEERL

meﬁﬁ@ Tuﬁimugbﬁﬁﬁ
RN A YER o

R RAMEM R R ERELEER
ARATUER - AEEREBE RS
TR RFEA -

IRISYASE RIEE 7 A M b e -

FELED T _FFH
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a (continued)
All the related party transactions above constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) Compensation of directors and key management personnel of the

43. BEIXRZ (HE)

(@) (%)

EXHREBETRZEREEHAERS
PIERARESZ EMRAE AR

ENRBEREXSRBERS -

b) AEEEFRTIBZEEABNF

Group: [

Group

rEH
2022 2021
—E-= —TE-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETIT
Directors'fees Yok 1,050 1,050
Salaries and bonuses e RAEAT 33,688 32,025
Contributions to defined contribution plans TE R G EIE kAR S 117 133
34,855 33,208

T

Further details of the directors remuneration are included in Note 9 to these
financial statements.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments the

end of the reporting period are as follows:

FINANCIAL ASSETS

44, BOFEIRHEHMITE
RBEHR SEcRITAMNEERAEW

IFRS 9 measurement category

BB SR R SE 9 ST B

Fair value through

profit or loss Amortised cost Total
RATE AER BERA @t
Group Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
bis-. | firsk ARET R ARET R ARET R
Equity investments at fair value through BATERT A BER
profit orloss R B 19 18,525 = 18,525
Trade and bills receivables BRI R
eSS % 549,051 470,624 1,019,675
Financial assets included in depositsand 3T AR S R E U
other receivables TEMSREE 20 - 69,244 69,244
Due from related companies W EBE N RIFUR 26 - 7,609 7,609
Pledged time deposits EEREHER 27 - 595,496 595,496
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBR2S5ED 27 - 1,469,765 1,469,765
Contract assets BRNEE 25 - 6,084 6,084
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA 3 - 9,827 9,827
567,576 2,628,649 3,196,225

RELCED —T - —FFRH
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E\ZI- 7_]’% iﬁi‘é BﬁH For the financial year ended 31 December 2022 &,

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments the

end of the reporting period are as follows:

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

EsN

44,

- %

0 R B

Ft-—A=+—HILHBFE

TREE (&)

IFRS 9 measurement category

BRI TSRS 2RI o5t B R R

ROBIIRHNEEMT A (&)

EHeRMIANKmEN

2021
R
Fair value through

profit or loss Amortised cost Total
RATER ABR BHpR Bat
Group Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
s | Ptk AREFT AREFT AREFT

Equity investments at fair value through ~ FRAF{ERT ABREH
profit or loss iR & 19 19,784 - 19,784

Trade and bills receivables B S EUHIER

eSS % 663,027 341,551 1,004,578

Financial assets included in depositsand 3T AR S RE (B
other receivables TEMSREE 20 - 67386 67386
Due from related companies fEW BE N\ R 2 - 8,890 8,390
Pledged time deposits EEREHER 27 - 753,545 753,545
Cash and cash equivalents ReLReSEN 27 - 893,116 893,116
682811 2,064,488 2,747,299
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

44, ZEDFEHRHNESETE (E)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

REBHEHEASENEMEE

2022 2021

—_=E__ —E-—%F

Group Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

rEH BteE ARETR AREFT

Trade payables B 5 R RIE 28 645,698 774423

Bills payable FERTE& 29 496,618 850,474
Financial liabilities included in accruals and ~ 5F AFERT & A & HAb

other payables JERFIENSRBE 30 2,499,849 2,348,092

Due to related companies BN RAE R B FE 26 71,632 81,166

Loans from a non-controlling interest FEIERIERE N 32 48,800 47,800

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5188877 K E b f&3X 33 12,335,527 11,368,775

Bonds payable JERHES 36 299,481 494,704

Lease liabilities HERIE 15 23,251 23,258

16,420,856 15,988,692

]
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44, BROFEIRNEBMTE (F)
(CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL ASSETS EREE

IFRS 9 measurement category

AR & X R SE 9 SR AT B3R R

2022
—E__F

Fair value

through

profit or loss
Amortised cost R AFETA Total
BE AR A B et
Company Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RATH tikz3 AR%T T AR®TT AR®TT
Equity investments et & 19 - 11,817 11,817
Due from subsidiaries FEUSHI B A RIZkIE 26 17,556 - 17,556
Cash and cash equivalents B RESEEY 27 2,032 - 2,032
19,588 11,817 31,405

IFRS 9 measurement category
BIRR B TSRS HERIZE o SR At B 2R

2021
- —F

Fair value

through

profit or loss
Amortised cost  FRAFERFTA Total
BESRRCAR B wmEt
Company Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
¥ NN B ARBTFT AREEFIT ARETIT
Equity investments R E 19 - 13,076 13,076
Due from subsidiaries FEUSH B A RIZRIE 26 18,836 - 18,836
Cash and cash equivalents B RASEEY 27 7,634 - 7,634
26,470 13,076 39,546
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

44, ZEDFEHRHNESETE (E)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

REBHEHEASENEMEE

2022 2021

—_=E__ —E-—%F

Company Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

RATF] B AR®T T AREETIT
Financial liabilities included in accruals ETAJEET B AR EAM

and other payables ERRIERN SR AE 30 15,710 15,589

Due to a subsidiary R —RWB A RIFIE 26 1,200 1,886

16,910 17475

]

45. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHIES

The Group categorises fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy

that is dependent on the valuation inputs used as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the

measurement date,

Level2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly, and

Level3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

45. BEREBENATVE

DNHEER

AEBRARAHEBRH A FEEET
DR RERBURRM T ERNEESR

A

£ - AEEEFEBRNAESH
HEEEXABEREETS

BR(E (R

BE) -

F-R - FAMBRBENMIME
EXREZBABE  AJH
BEIEEHE K

£ - EEKRENTATEEHA

B
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WERBRMEE  ror the financiar year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE = F = —4F+ = =+—HIHKFE

45. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

The following table shows an analysis of each class of assets and liabilities
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period:

Quoted prices in
active markets

45. BEERABENAVEGE

RAFPE

n_l‘l_'

ENEERES
TREIRHFERREA

%

BERBEDN

TEE
2022

———

—E=—=
Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using

RAUTERRBEHMANAFERNE

Significant

foridentical observable inputs Significant
instruments other than quoted un-observable
(Level 1) prices (Level 2) inputs
HETERAER REUNEE (Level 3)
TIENRE FREEAARE EERUHEH Total
(B—%) (B=8%) ABE(E=HR) EH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T ARBT T ARBTT
Assets measured at fairvalue I AFEEIENEE
Financial assets: THEE -
Equity investments RHERA 11,817 - 6,708 18,525
Derivative financial instruments T4 4RI T A - 9,827 - 9,827
Bills receivable FEMSRIE - 549,051 - 549,051
Financial assets as at R-B-_—F+=A
31 December 2022 =t—HHEREE 11,817 558,878 6,708 577,403
|
Group
REE
2021
T —F
Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using
AN TERRNRERRN D TEE
Quoted prices in
active markets Significant
foridentical ~ observable inputs Significant
instruments  other than quoted un-observable
(Level 1) prices (Level 2) inputs
BRATARER  RENEE (Level 3
MHENRE FBREEABE S2TTHRES Total
(B—%) (BZf)) AE®B(E=H) wEt
RMB’OOO RMB'000 RMB’OOO RMB'000
ARBFT AREBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Assets measured at fairvalue RATEHENEE
Financial assets: PHEE -
Equity investments MR E 13,076 - 6,708 19,784
Derivative financial instruments ST &R TE - 28 - 28
Bills receivable USRI - 663,027 - 663,027
Financial assets as at 31 R-B=-—F+=H
December 2021 =t+t—HHEREE 13,076 663,055 6,708 682,839
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45. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

Quoted prices in
active markets

45. BEEREBENXVEE

BAFEFENEERERE (A)

Company
AT
2022

—=——

—E——
Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using

RAUTERRBEHMAN AP EE

Significant

foridentical observable inputs Significant
instruments other than quoted un-observable
(Level 1) prices (Level 2) inputs
HEITERER WEUNEE (Level 3)
MENRE TREGARE EETTUHEH Total
(B—%) (B=8) ABB(E=4) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBTT
Assets measured at fairvalue AL EIENEE
Financial assets: 2HEE
Equity investments IR E 11,817 - - 11,817
Financial assets as at 31 R=-E=-——F+=A
December 2022 =t+—HNemEE 11,817 - - 11,817
|
Company
RAT]
2021
—E -4
Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using
KANTESNBERRNATETE
Quoted prices in
active markets Significant
foridentical ~ observable inputs Significant
instruments  other than quoted un-observable
(Level 1) prices (Level 2) inputs
HETARER REMINER (Level 3)
TISHMRE FBERRARE ZETEEHR Total
(B5—#%) (=) ABR(E=R) BEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREBFT ARBFIT ARETT
Assets measured at fairvalue AP EFTENEE
Financial assets: PHEE
Equity investments R E 13,076 - - 13,076
Financial assets as at 31 R-B=-—F+=H
December 2021 =t+—HWEmEE 13,076 - - 13,076
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 B4 = E = —F +=H =+—HIFHHFE

45. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

LEVEL 2 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following is a description of the valuation techniques and inputs used
in the fair value measurement for assets and liabilities that are categorised
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy:

BILLS RECEIVABLE

The fair value of bills receivable is estimated by discounting expected future
cash flows at market incremental lending rate at the end of the reporting
period.

DERIVATIVE

Foreign currency swap and future are valued using a valuation technique
with market observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation
techniques include forward pricing and swap model, using present value
calculation. The model incorporates various inputs including the credit
quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
forward rate curve.

LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

0) INFORMATION ABOUT SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS USED
IN LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Unquoted equity investment

The fair value of the unquoted equity investment designated at fair
value through profit or loss has been estimated using a market-based
valuation technique based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size,
leverage and strategy, and calculates an appropriate price multiple, such
as enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“"EV/EBITDA") multiple, price to earnings ("P/E") multiple and
price to net book value ("P/B") multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of
the comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is
then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences
between the comparable companies based on company-specific facts
and circumstances. The discount for lack of marketability is applied to the
corresponding earnings measure of the unquoted equity investment to
measure the fair value.
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45. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

0) INFORMATION ABOUT SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS USED
IN LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

Unquoted equity investment (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at
31 December 2022:

45. BEEREBENXVEE

B=RAVEE (E)

)  F=RRFEAERAEREEDT
AR ASIERERER (8)

JEETIREIRE ()
TR E-—F+-_A=+—H&m

TARBRENEATNBRERARBREE
[FlA] FE E VGURE DT -

Significant

Valuation unobservable input
technique EARFAEHE Range  Sensitivity of fair value to the input
fRERM WABE = ATEHEARBNSRE
Unquoted equity investment at fair Valuation multiples Averagncee P/B 2022:1.15 5% (2021: 5%) increase in multiple
value through in profit or loss) HERE multiple of peers (2021:12)  would result in increase in fair value by
WA ET ABZAAR T FTTEF —TE 115 RMB358,000 (2021: RMB306,000)

IR E MEEREH (ZT=—F:12) BEEIEM5% (ZF=—%F : 5%) -

A TAEGMA R 358000 7T
(ZZ=Z—%F : AR¥3060007T)
Discount for lack of 2022:20% 5% (2021: 5%) increase in discount

marketability

BRZEIEIERRLER

(===

TECF 0%
—4F 1 20%)

(2021:20%)  would result in decrease in fair value by
RMB76,000 (2021: RMB76,000)
BRIRIE NN 5% (Z T = —%F : 5%) -
S AT ER D AR 76000 7T
(ZZ=—4% : AR¥760007T)

(1 VALUATION POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

It is the Group's policy to engage external valuation expert to perform
valuation of unquoted equity securities. The management is responsible
for selecting and engaging valuation experts that possess the relevant
credentials and knowledge on the subject of valuation, valuation
methodologies, and IFRS 13 fair value measurement guidance.

Management reviews the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted, and the reliability of the inputs used in the
valuations.

There has been no transfer from Level 1 and Level 2 to Level 3 for the
financial years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

n  (HEERREEER

AEBNRREZEFIIBEERRLE KRR
EBORAFFETHE EREREEE
NIERAERHMETRR - FHETE R BIBR B 55
WEERE 13 [ AFEFAEES I T@E
HAMEREEZENBNFEESR -

B E iR I ERA R G ETDERRERAE
B ARBEMREARBOR S -

Bz Z- "+ _A=1+—HEKZ=Z
T F4+ZA=t+-—"HILUBFE £
PEE - RUWEEBZEE =L -
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45. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT MEASURED AT
FAIR VALUE AND WHOSE CARRYING AMOUNTS ARE REASONABLE
APPROXIMATION OF FAIR VALUE

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged time deposits, trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from/to related companies, trade and bills
payables, loans from a non-controlling interest and financial liabilities
included in accruals and other payables approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance team reports
directly to the Chief Financial Officer and the Audit Committee. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the Chief Financial
Officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amounts at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities approximate to their fair values.
The fair value of the non-current portion of accruals and other payables,
loans from a non-controlling interest, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and bonds payable have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s
own non-performance risk for non-current accruals and other payables,
loans from a non-controlling interest, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and bonds payable as at 31 December 2022 was assessed to be
insignificant.

LIABILITY MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE:

The Group had no financial liability measured at fair value as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and
the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management
of these risks, which are executed by the chief financial officer and finance
manager.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's exposure
to the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and
processes for the management of these risks.

(A)  CREDITRISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial
instruments should a counterparty default on its obligations. The Group's
exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables.
For other financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, pledged
time deposits, available-for-sale investments, amounts due from related
companies, bills receivables and deposits and other receivables, the
Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterparties.

The Group's objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising
losses incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only
with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
the majority of customers who wish to trade are required to pay cash on
delivery or in advance before collecting any goods. A minority of customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.

The Group has determined the default event on a financial asset to be when
the counterparty fails to make contractual payments, within 90 days when
they fall due, which are derived based on the Group's historical information.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(A)  CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

The Group considers “low risk” to be an investment grade credit rating with
at least one major rating agency for those investments with credit rating.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information which includes the following indicators:

- Internal credit rating

- External credit rating

- Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
change to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

- Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of
the borrower

- Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of
the same borrower

- Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of
the borrower, including changes in the payment status of borrowers
in the group and changes in the operating results of the borrower.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is
presumed if a debtor is more than 90 days past due in making contractual
payment.

The Group determined that its financial assets are credit-impaired when:

- There is significant difficulty of the issuer or the borrower

- A breach of contract, such as default or past due event

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation

- There is a disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulty

The Group categorises a loan or receivable for potential write-off when a
debtor fails to make contractual payments more than 360 days past due.
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. Where loans and receivables have been written off, the Company
continues to engage enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivables due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit
orloss.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(A)  CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

The Group's debt instrument at fair value through profit or loss comprised
solely of bills receivable that are graded in the top investment category by
A and, therefore, are considered at low credit risk.

The Group provides for lifetime expected credit losses for all trade
and other receivables using a provision matrix. The provision rates are
determined based on the Group's historical observed default rates analysed
in accordance to days past due by grouping of customers based on
customer type. The expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking
information such as GDP growth and central bank base rates.

The information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade and
other receivables using provision matrix and the loss allowance movement
of trade and other receivables are disclosed in Note 24.

EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial
assets recognised in the statement of financial position.

CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATION PROFILE

The Group assesses concentration of credit risk by monitoring on an on-
going basis the aged analysis of its trade receivables. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group. At 31 December 2022, the
Group's trade receivables of RMB98,186,000 (2021: RMB30,289,000) were
due from its 10 largest customers.

(B)  LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting
financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group's exposure to
liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial
assets and liabilities. The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by banking
facilities.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by management to finance the Group's operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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ARE(E -

EERBR SRR

AEESZBFBELEREE FHRUGHIASE
ERERNNERRSMTEEERROSE
PREE  ARBVEGFTEEAGERRE
FoRZEZZFF+_RA=+—H K&
B E 5 U FIE AR 98,186,000 T (= F
——F: AR¥30,2890007T) AR+ A
BERFIE -

B) AREBELER

MENE SRR A7 R E S R R M 2 A
BT EENER - REBERE AR
ExRRTIERESHEERAEDHE
BIREEEC - ARBMBIEREBERER
RITHBEFESHBHRER 2R
-

AEBERIHAFERER/THNESD

KRReEBYRF  UBAEENZE
NRERERERDNTE -
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 46. BiBEREEEEZERBEK (E&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(B)  LIQUIDITY RISK (B) REELEMRE(E)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end of the ~ RIFEG AV FFRNK - XEEEHEE
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payment, is as  RIEREFHROF LR -

follows:
Within 1 year or on
demand 1to3 years 3to 5years Over 5 years Total
1ERSRERRE 1235 3B5% SERE a5t
Group RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
158 ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
31 December 2022 —E-CE+CZREtT-R

Trade payables 5k 645,698 - - - 645,698
Bils payable EREE 496,618 - - - 496,618

Financial abiftes included inaccruals T AERTE B REM TR
and other payables RER 1,936,448 589,384 - - 2,525,832
Due to elated companes FEREEAANE 71,632 - - - 71,632
Loans from a non-controlling interest FARERER = 48,800 = = 48,800
Interest-bearing bankand other borrowings 3 &R REM B 5,992,531 4,257,931 2,855,126 = 13,105,588
Bonds payable EfES 302,751 - - - 302,751
Lease liabilies HERE 5021 4,495 7,967 1324 30,707
9,450,699 4,900,610 2,863,093 13,224 17,227,626

|
31 December 2021 S =

Trade payables BHETE TI4433 - - - TI44B
Bils payable EREE 850474 - - - 850474

Financialliabliies included in accruals SAETER REMERFURN
and other payables £REE 1,815,284 5498% - - 2365180
Due to elated companes EREEAANE 81,166 - - - 81,166
Loans from a non-controling interest FERERER - 47800 - - 47800
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 3T S8R4T REMER 6804941 2607166 2647104 175178 12054389
Bonds payable RS 28748 300713 - - 531461
Lease abiltes BERE 3871 3883 8219 15724 31757

10558907 3531438 2655383 190902 16936650
|
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(B)  LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payment, is as
follows:

46. HEEKMEREREREE (&)

(B) RBETEMR (&)

BEBEAQOMERRMNR ARFSHEE
RIEHROZEBORAT

Within 1 year or on
demand 1to3 years 3to 5years Over 5 years Total
1ERSRERRE 123F 3B5F SERE a3t
Company RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AN AEETR AEETR AEETR AEETR AEETR
31 December 2022 —E-CE+ZB=t+-A
Finandialiablites ncluded inaccruals 5T AR B REMERZIER
and other payables SHAR 15,710 - - 15,710
|
31 December 201 “E--%+-A=1-H
Financial labiltes included inaccruals 5T AEATE B REMEFFURN
and other payables ERER 15,589 - - 15,589

(C)  INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the
Group's financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily from its loans and borrowings subject to a floating
interest rate.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR INTEREST RATE RISK

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

O  FI=@EPk

NEXERAAEESR T ANNFESK
KB ERERTISHERE S M HRKER
R o NGB FTE Y TS A R AR
TERBEFBNEERRLER o

2R B B SRR E DA
ERTANAFHEGREDSN
rAEETERESEREERAEEBIE

R ATEAS - Bl - FIER B A B
VBB T B -
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(@ INTEREST RATE RISK (CONTINUED)
CASH FLOW SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR VARIABLE RATE INSTRUMENTS

For variable rate financial assets and liabilities, the Group has determined
the carrying amounts of cash and short-term deposits based on their
notional amounts, which reasonably approximate to their fair values
because these are mostly short-term in nature or are repriced frequently.
For interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, a change in interest rate at
the reporting date would (decrease)/increase profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency rates, remain constant.

46. FIBEAESEEEZERBEE (#)

(O  F=mEE (&)
FERETANREREHREDT

WEEERMEERAGEMNS ARECDE
EREREHFERREESBFHOER
BEANHEREMMES  HEXEDE
ANE EBREHREEEHRE - Bst B
RITREAMERM ST - FIRREBHRE D
IR T XIS R D) ENE
@ o WA HRRAEEMAZERE - L
HEINEERRRFAE

2022 2021
Increase in basis —E_— T4

Group points RMB’000 RMB'000
rEE EEEm AR¥ T ARETFT
Interest expense FERZ

RMB AR 10 (207) (237)
Interest income FLEMA

RMB AR 10 13 14

]

(D)  FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group holds cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies for working capital purposes.
At the end of the reporting period, these foreign currency net assets (mainly
in SGD, USD, HKD and EUR) are as follows:

(D) SMERRER

AEEFENINEFENRE RS EE
M BRITERIELEESAE - N
FHR ZENIMNEEENFEE(ZE
RFTINETT ~ T - BT EBUT) AT ¢

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F

Group RMB’000 RMB'000
rEE ARETR ARETFT
SGD FThngoT 178 172
usD ETT 48,726 30461
HKD BT 1,287 989
EUR BRIT 74,353 120
124,544 31,742

T
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(D)  FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (CONTINUED)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in the EUR, SGD, USD, and HKD exchange rates (against RMB), with
all other variables held constant, on the Group’s profit, net of tax and equity.

46. EI\ZI-E&J_‘:F%MIEEE&IE&%(HE)

(D) SMERBR (&)

TRETEMBEMAIZRERZRFTE
T AEERF (EFBRTIE X iER) EER
T #IE T EXRET(RARE)H

0 S )4 T2 T AR B O B -

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
Group RMB’000 RMB'000
rEH ARETR AREFT
EUR - strengthened 5% (2021:5%) BT - 4H95 5% (ZF = —%F : 5%) 3,718 6
— weakened 5% (2021: 5%) - 4H5550% (ZF=—% : 5%) (3.718) ©)
SGD - strengthened 5% (2021:5%) ¥ ANETT - 898 50% (ZFZ—4F : 5%) 9 9
— weakened 5% (2021: 5%) —E555% (2T = —4 1 5%) 9 ©)
USD - strengthened 2% (2021:2%) 57T - 8858 29 (ZT = —4F : 2%) 975 609
— weakened 2% (2021: 2%) - 8552% (_ T —F 1 2%) (975) (609)
HKD - strengthened 1% (2021:1%) /BT B 1% (2 —F 1 1%) 13 10
— weakened 1% (2021: 1%) -85 (Z T —F 1 1%) (13) (10)
T
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47. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the financial years ended 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

As disclosed in Note 39, subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are required
by the Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise Law of the PRC to contribute to
and maintain a non-distributable statutory reserve fund whose utilisation is
subject to approval by the relevant PRC authorities. This externally imposed
capital requirement has been complied with by these subsidiaries for the
financial years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

China XLX 2022 Annual Report
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47. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 47. EXREHE(E)

AEBEREEABRLXRERESN  BE
BELESBEFERABERNNAEF
o BEFHEEET BRITREMER
ENES  EHRNFIBNRENREE &
NEEARFIA - RftBE - BEHER -
HENFERHEERE  BRELRE
FEVMEERTR EXABRERGABE
BARGREDBAERBE

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided
by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, short-term and long-term bonds payable, trade and
bills payables, amounts due to related companies, other liabilities, accruals
and other payables and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the
parent less the statutory reserve fund. The Group's policy is to keep the
gearing ratio below 90%.

2022 2021

—E-C —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETFT

Trade payables B S ENFE 645,698 774,423
Bills payable JER IR 496,618 850,474
Contract liabilities ‘BHaE 1,514,349 1,079,227
Accruals and other payables JEET B A S H A FE N 308 2,525,832 2,365,180
Other liabilities HibB & 111,856 117,867
Due to related companies JERTRBE A RIRIE 71,632 81,166
Loans from a non-controlling interest FEERERE N 48,800 47,800
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTERITREMIEK 12,335,527 11,368,775
Bonds payable EHES 299,481 494,704
Lease liabilities HEAE 23,251 23,258
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BERReEEY (1,469,765) (893,116)
Pledged time deposits BT EFER (595,496) (753,545)

Net debt BEFE 16,007,783 15,556,213
Equity attributable to owners of the parent M ARHER AEL R 6,886,203 5,694,856
Less: Statutory reserve fund B OEERES (665,869) (511,091)
Adjusted capital AR 6,220,334 5,183,765
Capital and net debt BEARRBEFHE 22,228,117 20,739,978
Gearing ratio BARAGHE 72.02% 7501%
T
REOED —T - —FFER
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48. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investments in subsidiaries

RIERRNERE

Particulars of Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of registration

Nominal value of

48. RMBATNRE
Company
¥ NN
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETIT
2,014,915 1,717,275
T

AR BARMFENT ¢

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
£ T REE R AMEAREE FRRAEEREED L TEXK
2022 2021
—E-CE —E--F
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B# EF3 Bk il
Henan Xinlianxin Chemical PRC/Mainland China RMB1,948,000,000 76.43% - 76.31% - Manufacture and trading of
Group CO, LTD. ("Henan hE/ A AR urea, compound fertiliser,
XLX") * 1,948,000,000 7T methanol, dimethyl ether
ARLEMEE and liquid ammonia
TEEERD BUERHERE -
BRAT] EEE - B
(DAmLEL])* —FRRRER
Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB2,100,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Investment holding,
Chemical CO, LTD. RE,/ R B AR manufacture and trading
("Xinjiang XLX") @ ¢ 2,100,000,000 7T of ureaand compound
MELELERCT fertiliser, methanol and
BRAA melamine
(TFBLEDL ) REER  BUER
HERE - BAIE-
Rl R =FaR
Akesu Xinlianxin Compound PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
Fertiliser CO, LTD. (‘Akesu FE,/ R E RN AR compound fertiliser
XLX) e 200,000,000 7T BEREERALE
gL E LA IE
ARAH
(TP s &R L ) et
Manas Tianxin Coal CO, LTD. PRC/Mainland China RMB794,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Coal mining and sales of
(Tianxin’) @ FE,/ R E R AEH coal
HLIPNIVEES 794,000,000 7C REFRREREE
BREFLA
(TR e
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48. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 48.

Place of registration

Nominal value of

RE B AR RE (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
A% T REE R HEMEREE KAREERE AL TEEK
2022 2021
—E-C —E--F
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B ik B il

Jiangxi Xinlianxin Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB2,700,000,000 - 76.43% - 7631% Manufacture and trading
(O, LTD. (“Jiangxi XLX") & ¢ HE/ R A AR of urea and compound

TRLELMERE 2,700,000,000 7 fertiliser, methanal,
BRAT] dimethyl ether and liquid

(DIALEL])e ammonia
HERHERER B
fE - FEE - —HEB R
REER

Henan Nongxin Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB37,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
(O, LTD. ("Nongxin’) @ * RE,/ R E R AR compound fertiliser and

ARRLPEERAT 37,000,000 7T related products

(TRU et SERHERAIERIAE
Em

Xinxiang Country Shoudian PRC/Mainland China RMB97,165400 - 7643% - 7631% Selling and distributing
(O, LTD. ("Shoudian’) & ¥ HE/ R A AR electricity

FRHLELEE 97,165,400 7T HERDEES
BRARI(TEE]er

Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Testing equipments
Testing CO, LTD. FE/ RN AR ol
(Testing’) @ ¢ 1,000,000 7T

RO R A
BRAR(MAl)e

Henan Hydrogenpower PRC/Mainland China RMB173,000000  100.00% - 100.00% - Manufacture and trading of
Energy CO, LTD FE/ R E RN AR furfuryl alcohol
("Hydrogenpower) * . 173,000,000 7T BUER RS

A NERAR
RAEl([E@NaeiR])*

Henan Xinlianxin Blue PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
Environmental Protection FE,/ R E R ARHE vehicles urea solution
Technology CO, LTD. 50,000,000 7T BUERNEER
("Henan Blue") @ * REAR

WELEDEBRR
RRBAR AT

(IhELESR]) e

Henan Xinlianxin Tailan PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 38.98% - 3892% Manufacture and trading of
Environmental Protection W/ R EA AR vehicles urea solution
Technology CO, LTD. 10,000,000 75 BUERHEERREAR

("Henan Tailan") @ *
AELELFERR

REARAR

([mgZRE e
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48. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of registration

Nominal value of

48. RKBERARRE (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
A% T REE R HEMEREE KAREERE AL TEEK
2022 2021
—E-C —E--F
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B ik B il
Henan Black Ecological PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 - 52.67% - 5259% Manufacture and trading of
Technology CO, LTD. FRE/ R A AR humic acid
("Henan Black’) e 60,0000007C RE R HERER
THREERRE
ARAH
(TAfRE])er
Xinjiang Black Ecological PRC/Mainland China RMB110,000,000 - 5267% - 5259% Investment holding
Technology CO, LTD. RE,/ R E R N ORI
("Xinjiang Black’) ©* 110,000,000 7T
TRREEERERR
ARAA
(T#BRE])et
Henan Shenleng Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB110,000,000 - 47.56% - 4402% Manufacture and trading of
O, LTD. ("Shenleng FE/ R E AL AR gas
Energy’) & ¢ 110,000,000 7C SUERIHERE
MERRBER
BRAT]
(DRREER]) et
Xinjiang Shenleng Gas PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 47.56% - 4402% Manufacture and trading of
O, LTD. (Xinjiang FRE/ B AR gas
Shenleng’) @+ 30,000,000 7 SUERIHERE
MERREBERAR
(TFh@xR2])e
Henan Xinlianxin Shenleng PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 47.56% - 4402% Trading of gas
Gas CO, LTD. (*Henan B/ BN AR% HERHERE
Shenleng’) @ ¢ 1,000,000 7T
MELELFLRERR
A=), el
Jiangxi Super Blue PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
Environmental Protection REHEAN AR 200000007T vehicles urea solution
Technology CO, LTD. ERHESARRDR
("Jiangxi Super Blue”) © ¢
IRBRERRRRARR
Al (DIFEE e
Henan Heli Energy CO, LTD. PRC/Mainland China RMB78,000,000 51.28% - 51.25% - Manufacture and trading of
("Heli Energy’) *¥ BB A AR furaldehyde
AERNRERR 78,000,000 7 BUE R ERE
ARAH
(TRNBEIR])**
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48. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of registration

Nominal value of

48. RKBERARRE (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
A% T REE R HEMEREE KAREERE AL TEEK
2022 2021
—E-C —E--F
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B# ik B il
Xinxiang Huineng Yuyuan PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 51.28% 5125% Selling and distributing
Power Generation HE/ R A AR electricity
(0, LTD. (*Huineng 30,000,000 75 EERDHEN
Yuyuan') *
TRTEEEREE
ARAH
(TE&EFIR])
Jiangxi Shenleng Gas PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 47.56% - 4402% Manufacture and trading of
(O, LTD. ("Jiangxi R/ BB ARE gas
Shenleng’) @+ 30,000,000 7T SEREEMRR
TIERLZRERRAR
(DIARR et
Jiujiang Pengcheng Power PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Selling and distributing
(0, LTD. (iujiang HE/ B AR electricity
Power’) € 35,000,000 7C HERDHEN
NIZHENBRAA
(TIBAl)et
Xinxiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Agricultural production
Agricultural Development FE/ RN ARE RELE
(O, LTD. ("Xinxiang 10,000,000 7T
Agriculture”) ©#
A LEOEERE
BRAR(FBER )
Urumgi Black Ecological PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000 - 52.67% - 5259% Manufacture and trading of
Technology CO, LTD. RE,/ B AR humic acid
(‘Urumai Black’) ¥ 35,000,000 7 RE R HERER
BEABERERERR
BRAT]
(REABRE])e!
Henan Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB18,550,000 - 7643% - 7631% International business and
International Business FE,/ R E RN AR trading
andTrade CO, LTD. 18,5500007C ARAZRES
("Guojimaoyi”) @*
MEOELERR A
BHBRAF]
(TERES])et
Shanghai Yibo Water PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Technological development
Technique CO, LTD. FE,/ R E R ARHE U
("Shanghai Yibo") @ ¢ 200,000,000 7T

LBSRKBERBAR
RA([ EEaR ) e
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48. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of registration

Nominal value of

48. RKBERARRE (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
A% T REE R HMEREE KAREERE AL TEEK
2022 2021
—E-C —E--F
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B# ik B il

Jiujiang Yibo Water PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Technological development
Technique CO, LTD. hE/hE R AR% R
("Jiujiang Yibo") ©# 200,000,000 7T

NIsBKBRBAR
AR NI ) e

Henan Xinxing Chemical PRC/Mainland China RMB85,000,000 60.61% - 6061% - Manufacture and trading of
CO, LTD. ("Xinxing RE,/ B ARE chemical production
Chemical’) ** 85,0000007C BERHE( SR

ﬂﬁ/‘uﬂﬂi{ LEMHBR

Al([DELE )+

Henan Xinlianxin Intelligent PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
Equipment Technology FE/ R E AL ARE intelligent equipment
€O, LTD. (“Intelligent 100,000,000 7T BUERIRER R RRE
Equipment”) @

ﬂﬁ'ﬁilb‘@b%ﬁ%iﬁ%ﬂ&

BRAR([ES
KfEl)e

Harvest international HK/Mainland Hongkong HKD 5,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% International business and
Business Limited BB/ HEEE 5,000,000 7T trading
("Harvest’) *¢ BEREBRES

PRI BN BIR
RE ([T )

Xinxiang Ruicheng PRC/Mainland China RMB62,500,000 - 51.00% - 5100% Manufacture and trading of
Technology CO, LTD. FE/ R E RN ARE medical intermediate
("Yinxiang Ruicheng’) * * 62,500,000 7C BUERIREREPREE

AR AR
RAE) ([ smas )

Xinxiang Ruinuo PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 - 26.01% - 2601% Manufacture and trading of
Pharmaceutical CO, LTD. BB A ARHE medical intermediate
("Xinxiang Ruinuo' ) *4 60,000,000 7T BE e B

MR ERARA

(T #imaa 1)

Xinjiang Xinlianxin Tailan PRC/Mainland China RIMB6,000,000 - 38.98% - 3892% Manufacture and trading of
Environmental Protection FE,/ R E R AR vehicles urea solution
Technology CO, LTD. 6,000,000 7T HERHEERRRAR

("Xinjiang Tailan") ¢
FENELORERRRR
BRAR([#5E

RE |)et
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48. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 48. RHBRANRE (F)
Place of registration Nominal value of Percentage of equity interest
Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
£ A RS HMEREE ERRAEEREE DL TEEH
2022 2021
—E-C —E--F
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B# EFE3 B it
Jiujiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Agricultural development
Agricultural Science and HE/ R A AR RERR
Technology CO, LTD. 10,000,000 7T
("Jiujiang Agricultural’) @
NIDELRERBAR
AR NIEE]) e
Hangzhou Xinnuo Chemical PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Trading of gas
(0, LTD. (*Hangzhou FE/ R E R AR SERE
Xinnuo") @ 10,000,000 7
ML ITRRAR e
Shandong Heli PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 51.28% - 5125% Manufacture and trading of
Biotechnology CO, LTD. FE/ R E AL ARE furaldehyde
(“Shandong Hel)e* 50,000,000 7T BERIHE R
WRARNEDREAR
RA([RARA e
Henan Xinzhilian Enterprise PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 100.00% - 100.00% - Consulting
Management CO, LTD. FE,/ R E RN AR #i
(*Henan Xinzhilian") @ * 5,000,000 7T
AELEHARER
BRAR7
(DA R LR ) et
Guangdong Xinmenglan PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
Environmental HE /B A AR% vehicles urea solution
Protection Technology 20,000,000 7T RS RIHESER
(0, LTD. (“Guangdong REER
Xinmenglan”) @ *
ERLVBERRRR
BRAR
((BRLEBE])er
Xinjiang Xinlianxin Chemical PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 7643% - 7631% Manufacture and trading of
Industry CO, LTD. hE/ A AR compound fertiliser
(‘Zhundong Xinlianxin”) ¢# 50,000,000 7C BUERIHEREE
MBLEMEIBRAT
(DERDED ) e
Gansu Xinlianxin Modern PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 7643% - 7631%  Agricultural production
Agricultural Technology HE /B A ARE BEAEE
CO, LTD. (‘Gansu 50,000,000 7T

Xinlianxin”) @ *#
HELELRREERR

ARAE

([HELEL]) e

RELCED —T - —FFRH

229



230

Notes to Financial Statements
MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

48. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of registration

Nominal value of

48. RKBERARRE (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
£ A RS HMEREE KAREERE AL TEEK
2022 2021
—E-C —E--F
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B# ik B it
Meifuya Biological PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 5267% - - Manufacture and trading of
Technology (Shanghai) FE/ R A AR beauty products
€O, LTD. ('Meifuya 100000007C HEREERTEM
Biological’) @* Note (a)
ERBENRR(L8)
BRRR([FXRE
1) e Mzt o)
Saikete Gas Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 49.82% - - Technological development
(Shanghai) CO, LTD. B/ ARE BiffipA%
("Saikete Gas") ©* Note (b) 10,000,000 7T
BRI ( L8) A
ANCIE-Qkszk 1
3T (b)
Henan Jindadi Shenleng PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 2426% - - Manufacture and trading of
Gas CO, LTD. (‘Henan RE/ BB ARE gas
Jindadi) € * Note () 100,000,000 7 BEEREERE
MEEAHRL B
BRAT
(DA rgEARM]) e
fit3E
Jiangxi Blue Environmental PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 38.98% - - Manufacture and trading of
Protection Technology RE,/ BB ARE vehicles urea solution
(O, LTD. ("Jiangxi Blue’) 2,000,0007T HERHEERREAR
Note (d)
IRECRRNEAR
AR(IIfmER])®
AT (@)
Jiangxi Xinlianxin Trading PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 7643% - - Trading of chemical
(O, LTD. (*Jiangxi RE,/ R E RN ARE production
Trading’) @ Note () 50000007 HELEER
IRELELESERAF
(NIw/ES))e
fiti @)
Shanghai Ruigan Biological PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 51.00% - - Technological development
Technology CO, LTD. RE,/ R E N AR U
('Ruigan Biological’) @ * 5,000,000 7T

Note (f)

PEREEMREERA
al([hEEy]) e
BiEE ()

China XLX 2022 Annual Report



48. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 48. RMEXTNRE (&)
Place of registration Nominal value of Percentage of equity interest
Name and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
A% T REE R HEMEREE KAREERE AL TEEK
2022 2021
—E-C —E--F
Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect
B ik B il
Liaoning Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 76.43% - - Manufacture and trading of
Ecological Technology FE/ R A AR compound fertiliser
(0, LTD. ("Liaoning 100,000,000 7T BERHEERE
Xinlianxin") © * Note (g)
EELELERRHY
BRAT
([BEELED])
izt ()
Neimenggu Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 51.25% - - Manufacture and trading of
Biological Technology FE,/ R E N AR furaldehyde
(0, LTD. ("Neimengqu 50,000,000 7T LB RHERE
Xinlianxin") @ * Note (h)
AR G DEOVENRIE
BRAR
(TARELEN]) e
BitEE (h)
* The subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law. * 2T B R B RAR YR R B 2 s M A S A9 S
[BEiES=E
e These subsidiaries are established in the PRC and registered under PRC law. e 2 M B A R R AR BIRK 32 AR 1R A B A

Not audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore or another member firm of the Ernst

& Young global network

#

EER
It JE 6 Ernst & Young LLP, #7038 22k &

FTRNETS P 2B H K B S5t E
B PEEZ -

RELCED —T - —FFRH
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MEBRRHT rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —F = =4+ = H =+—HIFHKF/E

48.

Notes:

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

On 11 January 2022, Xinjiang Black established a new subsidiary named
Meifuya Biological Technology (Shanghai) CO., LTD. with registered capital of
RMB10,000,000. The main business of the subsidiary is manufacturing and trading
of beauty products.

On 9 March 2022, Shenleng Energy established a new subsidiary named Saikete
Gas Technology CO,, LTD. with a registered capital of RMB10,000,000. The main
business of the subsidiary is technological development.

On 11 February 2022, Shenleng Energy established a new subsidiary
named Henan Jindadi Shenleng Gas CO., LTD. with a registered capital of
RMB100,000,000. The main business of the subsidiary is manufacturing and
trading of gas.

On 26 April 2022, Henan Tailan established a new subsidiary named Jiangxi
Blue Environmental Protection Technology CO.,, LTD. with a registered capital of
RMB2,000,000. The main business of the subsidiary is manufacturing and trading
of vehicles urea solution.

On 20 July 2022, Jiangxi XLX established a new subsidiary named Jiangxi
Xinlianxin Trading CO,, LTD. with a registered capital of RMB5,000,000. The main
business of the subsidiary is trading of chemical production.

On 9 August 2022, Xinxiang Ruicheng established a new subsidiary named
Shanghai Ruigan Biological Technology CO., LTD. with a registered capital of
RMB5,000,000. The main business of the subsidiary is technological development.

On 9 September 2022, Henan XLX established a new subsidiary named
Liaoning Xinlianxin Ecological Technology CO.,, LTD. with a registered capital
of RMB100,000,000. The main business of the subsidiary is manufacturing and
trading of compound fertiliser.

On 2 December 2022, Heli Energy established a new subsidiary named
Neimenggu Xinlianxin Biological Technology CO.,, LTD. with a registered capital
of RMB50,000,000. The main business of the subsidiary is manufacturing and
trading of furaldehyde.

China XLX 2022 Annual Report
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49. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been restated due to (i) adoption of
amendments to IAS 16 disclosed in Note 2.2 to the financial statements and
(i) reclassifications to conform with the current financial year's presentation
to better reflect the nature of the expenses.

49. HEREE

() ERABFR S ERE 165REFT A (W
BRMBSEHARM L 22) K () BF O BAR
BAMRFE2INAE I RRFAZIEE
MEZE T HEREUE -

Amendments
tolAS 16
31 December adjustments 31 December
2021 e LR 2021
—E-—F %1657185T  Redlassifications —EB-—fF
+=ZA=+—H o E¥o¥E +=-A=t+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFIT ARBFIT ARBFIT ARBFT
Statement of profit or loss BEk
Revenue WA 16,815,321 161,960 - 16,977,281
Cost of sales FHERA (12/426,464) (159,966) (286,733) (12,873,163)
Gross profit EX 4,388,857 (284,739) - 4104118
Selling and distribution SHE M HHR X
expenses (762,708) - 286,733 (475,975)
Profit before tax BRI AT 2,175,602 1,994 - 2,177,596
Income tax expense PSR (406,232) (282) - (406,514)
Profit for the year FREA 1,769,370 1712 - 1,771,082
Profit attributable to non- FEFERR M AR PR AR Ve A
controlling interests 475,231 406 - 475,637
Statement of financial AR R R
position
Property, plantand W - BE RERE
equipment 18,056,011 1,994 - 18,058,005
Income tax payable PSS HE (167,055) (282) - (167,337)
Retained profits REEH| 1,780,875 1,135 - 1,782,010
Non-controlling interests PR 2,267,832 406 - 2,268,238
Statutory reserve fund EERER 510,920 171 - 511,091
50. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 50. HLEMBEE

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 24 March 2023.

EExeg N _BE-_—F=-A_+mWAHtE
I AT BE B TSR o
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Five-year Financial Summary

EEMBEREE

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below.

VAN 051 AN 5% [ 10 48 25 1 B TR 4F /2 VAR
ERENEERGEHRE  DREEACT
B RBERIBERE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
— B CZT-BF —EB-NF ZFB/\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
LS ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARKBTT
(Restated)
(#&E%)
Results E4
Revenue WA 23,071,897 16,977,281 10,444,722 8928255 9,194,676
Cost of sales SHE RS (18,723,015)  (12,873,163) (8511,863) (7,230,435) (7,189,371)
Gross profit EF 4,348,882 4,104,118 1,932,859 1,697,820 2,005,305
Other income and gains HABYA Rz 187,293 169,368 198,730 160,349 112,716
Selling and distribution SHE RO HFAX
expenses (529,379) (475,975) (338,899) (272,610) (273,922)
General and administrative —RRITHF X
expenses (1,071,615) (934,618) (624,260) (661,442) (496,623)
Other expenses HibFfz (87,200) (88,589) (129,755) (16,712) (223,416)
Impairment losses on financial % @& &
assets REEE (9,806) (14,570) (5,640) (10,007) (22,241
Share of profits/(losses) of FE(GHEE A R]
associates mAlL (E18) 4,675 1232 (582) 2,298 657
Finance costs BTSSR AR (662,193) (583,370) (401,379) (374,076) (325,329)
Profit before tax RRBEAT R 2,180,657 2,177,596 631,074 525,620 777,147
Income tax expense FriSiif sz (372,482) (406,514) (106,926) (111,557) (121,833)
Profit for the year REERR 1,808,175 1,771,082 524,148 414,063 655314
I
Attributable to: LATN AL eSS -
Owners of the parent HARERA 1,326,211 1,295,445 347,662 316,495 624,932
Non-controlling interests FEFERR MR 481,964 475,637 176,486 97,568 30,382
1,808,175 1,771,082 524,148 414,063 655,314
I
Assets, liabilitiesand non- &%&E - 88K
controlling interests IR AER
Total assets BEE 27,867,176 25,508,667 20,955,092 16,490,865 13,655,296
Total liabilities wamE (18,299,348)  (17,545573)  (14,530,718)  (10,769,185) (8,742,497)
Non-controlling interests iR (2,681,625) (2,268,238) (1,893,941) (1,486,439) (990,985)
6,886,203 5,694,356 4,530,433 4,235,241 3,921,814
I
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Glossary
AR

In this annual report, unless the context states otherwise, the following
terms shall have the following meanings:

"AC" or "Audit Committee”

AGM”

“Board”

“Companies Act”

“Company”or“China XLX"

or "XLX"

“Constitution”

“Director(s)”

"EGM”

“FY2021"

"FY2022"

“Group”

"Henan XLX"

"HKD"

“Listing Rules”

Audit Committee of the Company

Annual General Meeting of the Company

The Board of Directors

The Companies Act (Chapter 50) of Singapore

China XLX Fertiliser Ltd.

Constitution of the Company
Director(s) of the Company

Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company

The financial year ended 31 December 2021

The financial year ended 31 December 2022

The Company and its subsidiaries altogether

Henan Xinlianxin Chemical Group Co,, Ltd, a
wholly holding subsidiary of the Company

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the SEHK
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Glossary
AR

“Model Code”

“NC"or “Nomination
Committee”

“PRC" or "China”

"RC"or "Remuneration
Committee”

“RMB"

/rS$u

“SEHK”

“SFO”

“SGX-ST"

“Shareholder(s)”

"XLX Chem”

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules

Nomination Committee of the Company

The People’s Republic of China

Remuneration Committee of the Company

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

Singapore dollars

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited
Shareholder(s) of the Company

Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co,, Ltd.
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